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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL GROWTH PATH)

BALANCE SHEET (Rupees in Million)
PARTICULARS 31.03.2007 31.03.2008 [31.03.2009 | 31.03.2010 | 31.03.2011
|. SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
Share Capital 105.20 109.70 109.96 128.36 139.20|
Convertible Equity Share warranis = — 61.85 36.64 1410}
Fully Convertible Debuntures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00|
Heserves & Surplus 1337.43 192130 255945 3463.34 4064.90|
144263 2031.00] 2731.04] 3628.35| 441820
LOAN FUNDS
Securad Loans 93 58 96 41 340.09 445.07 192 82
Unsecurad Loans MIL 80540 507,33 88840 108258
93.68 701,81 937.43 1434.48 1875.40|
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 4,68 14,57 21.68 38.30 64.13
TOTAL 1540.99 2747.38 3690.15 510113 B3ST.T3
II. APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block 85271 1584600 2100.79 2760.05 2794.90|
Less : Depreciation 102.28 241.99 505.35 B8B.B6 805.49]
Nel Block 550.43 1342 61 1585.43 1871.20 198941
Capital Wark-in-progress 169.00 198,49 206.79 653.97 937.94
719.43 154110 1802.22 252517 2927.35|
INVESTMENTS 0.00 5.42 160.50 331.00 414.81
CUORRENT ASSETS, LOANS
AND ADVANCFS
Inventories 196.79 380.44 512.11 700.54 778.40|
Sundry Dablars 381.81 B90.55 0g1.98 1166.58 1479.78
Cash & Bank Balance 235.01 111.00 368.83 416.20 473,83
Logns & Advances 94.11 281.84 187 .85 418,60 BO7.16
911,72 146423 2050.77 2702.03 3539.17
Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES 25.71 142.33 237.38 313.75 442 00|
PROVISIONS B4 45 121.05 85,95 143.32 81.51
90.16 263.38 323.34 457.08 523,60/
NET CURRENT ASSETS 821.56 1200.88) 1727.43 2244.95 3015.57
TOTAL 1540.99 274738 3A690.15 5101.13 63s57.7Ta

Figures rounded off o the nearest decimai
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'FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL GROWTH PATH |

{Rupeas in Millions)
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
PARTICULARS 31.03.2007 | 31.03.2008 | 31.03.2000 | 31-03-2010 | 31-03-2011
INCOME
Ingome from Operations 1,067.T6 1,718.7T6 &, 306,67 3,102.24 3,742.93
Other Incoma 1.40 4.91 0.57 2383 16.88
REVENUE 1,069.16 1,724.67 2,307.24 | 3,926.17 3,759.81
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Sales E75.75 BS5.56 1.14289 | 1,574.41 2,052 .86
Stall Cost 24.73 33.30 51.85 111.69 TBAT
Administrative Expenses A3 87 37,42 20.43 125.29 314,77
Salling Expenses 19.49 51.00 75.24 5122 46.37
Operating Profit (PBIDT) 415.32 747.30 1,007.84 | 1,263.55 1,267.84
interest 656 13.37 25.53 B5.35 152.81
Dapraciation T5AT 138.89 263.42 383.69 B17.33
Profit before Taxation (PET) 333,59 504.03 718.80 794.51 597.50
Provialon for Taxatlon
Currant Tax 22.50 80.00 T2.80 141.50 129.08
Doferred Tax 2.30 9,89 712 16.62 25.83
Fringe Benefii Tax 0.28 042 0.68 0.00 0.00
Income Tax for Earlier Years .01 -1.57 12.64 0.00 1.16
Profit After Taxation (PAT) 308.41 525.29 625.64 636.39 441.43
m" of Profit from Previcus 308,80 563.26 | 103203 | 163823 | 219471
g;;ﬁ;iig‘;ﬁlﬂéf 617.20 |1,08B.55 1,658.57 | 2272861 2,636.14
figures are rounded off to the nearesi decimal
Forward-Looking Statement

Corain stalements it tis repof conteming ouf fulure growth prospects ane foward-Sookng stalements (0 enakbe inveslons 1o
fulhy apprecEle our prospectus and take informed meetmeant decisione, (Rt imvobea 8 numbesr of riske @d unoertanties ralalfing
in thess siatemend include, but are nod imited b, reks and ncenaintes That could causes aciual fresults to differ matenally from
those in such lorward-looking statempnts. The fsks and urtemalnbes relaking to these statermens inckide, Hut she not Bmiked ko,
rigks and uncerainties regarding Mocfuations @ eamings, our abilify 1o manage growth, Blansa competilion including hoss
iecinee which may elfsct our oosf advartage, waps incresses, our ability bo stirect and ratain highly slaled professionals, ime and
cost overung on confracts, cllent concentration, reduced demand i our key focus aress. disruptons in ielscommunicelion
nehvorks, our sbllily 1o successlully compiets and inlegrate polentsl acguisitions, labaty for damages on our confracts,
withdranwal of governmental fiecal rcendhas, poilical inalabifity, legal resinclions on resing capital o Bcounng Companise
custside mdia, end unauthonsed wse of our imellechsl propsrty and general sconomic conditiona sffecting our Bdustng. The
company does not Unoedake o publicly update any lorwand-lopking efatements thet may be mads from fims to Bme by or on
bahat af the company, whathes as 6 resull of new (nformation, tulure fvents of oinrwise
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2.HIGHLIGHTS |

a. Accomplishments & Awards

We are pleased to announce the laurels which nave
een echisved Dy your company, Thanks to all the
Staft for iheir

hard work and dedication that keeps your company
growlng and thriving

+ Awearded the Intemational Quality Sunmmii Award
i Many 20001

« Honoreg with the esteemed "Deloilte
Technology Fast 50 (India) Award' for the fourth
year inarow (12" Moy, 2010)

 Won the “The Bzz 2010 - World Business
Leager

# Accorged with the Forbes "Best under a Billion™
award among 20 Indian and 200 Asian
Companies selected out ot 12000 reputed
COMpaniss

«  Apcordad with the *Deloitie Technology Faat 500
Asia Pacific Award” for being ore of 1he S00
fastost growing companies I Asla for thind
conseculne year 2009-110

« Accordedwith the "Deloitte Technology Fast 50 Awarded with the prestigious
{ Inctia ) Award” for beng one of fhe S00 fastest ‘CFO-Winning Edge 2010° accolada
prowing companss in Asia lor thind consecutive
yaar 2008-10

o Accorded with NASSCOM “Innovative Products
Aowrard” for Wi-F| Security System, 2008-09



. Tie Ups and Business Expansions

Micro Technologies Launches 'Micro Technologies
Australia' - Your Company intensified its global presence
by expanding its wings further with the launch 'Micro

Technologies Limited (MTL) to cater to Australian
Market and then further expanding its presence into the
US and Europe markets region by providing
Customized solutions to these regions by carrying out
the R&D activities through its Australian Entity.

Micro Technologies' expansion in Australia has been

facilitated by The Australian Trade Commission with an

element of planning to craft partinerships & networks across Asia Pacific, listing in the Australian Stock Exchange
[ASX], and other manifolds,

Your Company signs a partnership understanding with Tata Teleservices for penetrating its security products through
Tata Teleservices Lid.

Your Company signed a deal with Tanzanian based ey

JKBRS International co. Lid., engaged in sales and

»
marketing of software and hardware security solutions in
the Tanzanian and East African Market. M I L
Your Company teams up with CIAN Pty. Ltd to
internationally distribute their security products. In Juy llMlicro Technolo g ies Lim |teq

2010. Your company is a leading global developerr and 70 Deans Marsh - Lome.Deans March VIC 3235

marketer of IT based security solutions for its clients

across the globe collaborated with CIAN Pty.Ltd, Australia for distributing their security products in Australian market.
CIAN delivers unigue and comprehensive Infrastructure, Financial and Resilience solutions for the broadest scope of
corporate, government and public agencies worldwide

Your Company enters the Kuwait Market with an agreement with a Kuwait based company to expand its business to
the Kuwait market to provide highly advanced security products of your company March 2010.

Your Company security product enters South East Asia through tie up with Kobian Pte Ltd. The company is famaous for
its mercury brand ranges of products. Itis operating in more than 8 countries around the world

Your company also signs with one of the largest VAS resellers with close to 70,000 plus outlets to push its mobile
range based products.

Blue Sky Software USA, this company is into reselling of technology and IT products. Your company has partnered
with them for expanding its business in US and South America.

Your company has also engaged with Pill Info for promoting its products in US market

For expanding its technical expertise your company has tied up with Jill and Alcheistein for procurement and product

development activities. This has helped the company to have a better product tum around time.



New Launches

Launch of Micro Emergency Responsa System (Micro ERS) on 11th December 2010

Your Company Launched Micro Emergency Response System ( ERS) a systern to keep you safe where ever you go.
(Micro ERS) for the end users, clients or consumers, towrists, special forces, airdromes, Police stations and
construction or transportation agencies ofc. It's a location based Intelligence; Downloadsed;2A GPS enabled
mobile phone, Which shall help user to understand data, such as their Location/environment, time, resources and
activities or events and essential emergency alerts can be presented to the user as textual instructions. It also
supports the detailed textual information with Maps regarding evacuation and shelter locations.

Launch of India's Unique “International Command & Control Centre * on October 18th, 2010

Your Company and Israel based H.A.8.H Systems proudly announced the launch of India's most unique
‘Intemational Command & Control Centre”.

International Command & Control Centre will be one of the most
advanced and technologically sophisticated centers in the
world, assuring complete safety and security with increased
efficiency to the movable and non-movable assets of clients.
The control center will not only remotely monitor, diagnose and
generate reports for all kinds of assets such as Mobile Phones,
Vehicles, Homes, Laptops, and Desktop Computers ete. but
could increase the consumption of Energy/ Efficiency of the
premises and the Work Efficiency of the Employees with a view

to increase the overall Security and Efficiency Levels by 20%

Micro Technologies and Hash Group Launches “Safe & Secure City Project” for Global Marketon 11% Jan 2010 ;

Your Company launched “Safe & Secure City Praject” in collaboration with Israeli Company H. A. Sh. Group
System Services Ltd. Your Company and Hash have jointly planned serious inroads in the domestic market of Israel
to provide security for the major sectors like Port, Coastal and Container, Identification, Cyber Security, Transport
Security and Infrastructure Security. This launch would be one of its kinds wherein for the first time an Indian Security

productis being exported to Israel Market.
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FROM THE CHAIRMAN'S DESK |

Din behall of the Board of Directors and &ll stakeholders; | am pleased o bea bringing this messegs to you and wa heraty
presant you the 19" Annual Bepor, Thes vearwe continue 1o develop a prograsshve track record of achlevements and | am
proud to share a few insights on the key factors that have lad 10 Our sUCCRSS,

It iss axbwrys illrminating to reflsct back atter & year-end and see whara your company has been. Your Comparny's financial
resdlls in 2010-11 reflact the progress we have made loward crasting a mane lacusad, compatitive Micro Technologies.
With an erviable balance sheet, your companys future looks ragant. Mat turnowver at INR 377 Crores. grew by 20.25 %
attrioutaiie to shamsholders, which stréngihened Its batance sheet and the company's abifity to finance futre growth

Your company success also fies in its strong research and development team. Research and Development (R&AD) as well
az mnovation are e drivers of changs and the key determinants of growih inyouw company. Innovation competence will
contmue fo ba a major success factor for your company, We have an excellant product porttoio that subsumes more than
300 praducts, a large and growing ssles and marketing team and excellent developing capahilities that enabla ws 10 take
advantage of the estramely favourable market emdronment in which we oparate. |n the last year. your company has
sxpanded s product diversity by including Micro ERS, Micro ICCS, etc. This product momentum wili coninuee in the
corming years and we will do our best lo mest the expeactations of our ousiomers and partrers

Diur success 18 incraasingty relatad o our ability 1o meal new sacurity challenges; maintain financial strength, offer state-
of-art secunty products and solutions to our customers in order o caler thelr securnily needs: safeguand our work forog;
and deepen relationships with communities and key siakeholders. This report demonstrates our efforts o be mors
tranaparent and o integrate environmantal and social nsks and opportunifies mto avendhing wa oo

We continue to seek [0 new opDofUnilies 1o ncrease our activities within India and cverseas with a commilment 1o
maintain the guality of our services and products. With a vigilant eye that kept to screan the marketing stancdards and
enabla ua 1o expand our products in new gaograph=e suoh &8s Barmuda, Kerya, Nigeda, larasl, Mall, Francse, and
Ghana

Your Company has also estaniished Micro ICCS (Micro Intemational Command & Control System), which = a set of
persanngl, policies, procedures, laclities, and equipment. integrated into 8 common arganizational structure designad
I Improve emargency respanse opemalions of all lypes and complexities. As the sladium and arena securily grows In
Impoftance &nd attention, your company has provided Stadium Sacwrity Systam for Savel Mansingh Stadium in Jaipur
tor Rajasthan Rovals and one of the large Stadiums in Kokata through one of the pariners during IPL 4 season,



Your company thinks that the security not only improves the quality of life of every citizen or society as whole but also
brings automation to enhance the productivity and finally serves as an engine for growth of industries. Your Company will
bring about a series of books on security issues and mitigation for various Critical Infrastructure & Key Resources (CIKR)

and technology sectors.

A dedication to making the customer first priority, keeping on top of current security trends, thinking creatively, knowing
which technologies are important, keeping up to date on governmental policy and playing in a global marketplace yet

being responsive to the needs of India are what keep your company on top.

With all these factors in place, we understand what matters to our clients and have demonstrated our capability to adapt
to the changing security environment. We continue to engage and partner with stakeholders in each of our states on
critical issues such as infrastructure protection security, safe and secure city, building automation and energy efficiency,
security enhances economic growth and many more. In addition, in order to enhance the brand value of company's
business, Company focused its efforts majorly in two kind of prominent media tools viz. Print media and Online based

media marketing technique.

We are committed to show another year of strong performance in 2011 driven by our Branded and Injectable businesses
as your company continue to grow into a leading specialty security company and deliver high returns on investment to

our shareholders.

We would be pleased to invite you to partner with us — and allow us to be your trusted guide, to help you navigate this
same journey, on your pathway to growth. | am delighted to report that your company continues its proud past and looks
forward to a successful future.

Thank You

With warm regards,

Dr. P. Sekhar

10
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ADVISORS |

Wr. N, Vial idfiated e concepl of Sofwars Techiology Pae and ibarallzshon of telecom and Minigty of nkormadion
Technology, wih an ssperience o over 43 years n tha feld of puibic adminsretion end irdustnal Managamant he retired from
Ihe 1A post b wiich he was ihe chaifman of 1he pubhs enlerplises . seteclion boand e was dlso Bpoaniled & the Cerrs
Vigitance Commissianer

Mr. N. Gopataswaml was lormor Chis! Election Cormissonir of Inda and éx - Home Becmtary, GO on the schsary board af
ihe compary Mr Gopalaswsmi was &n 145 oflicer and Chief Election Commissionar ol India for the lzal eection. A dynamee
aader, by, Gopalaswami joned the Indian Agmimistrative Sorvce in 1086 and worked In variowes capacities in Guaral, during
1967 10 1892, He hald various op level posis nclacing that of the Managing Direcion, Gujgeat Communicanon and Eleciionce
Lirrvbed, &= marmbay Jadminisealion @nd purchasa) in the Gujeral Blecircily Board. secrsary o Gomrrhend (Solece &
Technology and Technical Educaton) eng Secratany, Depadment ol Revenue and Secretary General i e Matone! Hamen
Aighla Coermmssian, His with Bso an international Blecbon TEmonar in LISA (2004}, in Mawilus (2005), MNepal (2008) st Brutan
(2008)

Dr. 8. Guha & the pesdent and D00 of unted Soar Chonic, manulacoorer of thin frm sobr parele. He s an mernational
authorily withmaors Enan 200 puibicedinns and over 35 LIS patents, Wih several awands 1ohis credil, he 80 senas B3 8 mermher
o the advisory commilites & the mional center of photowliaic of US Depl of Ssergy, and on the board of Solar Energy
Incsiries Aesociation

Dr R. Rajaramwas anaminanl Profeseor al incian instiule of Caomagraliem, Mumbal He belongs (o the same ilustrious lamiy of
[ Y Aamar ang v 5, Crandrasekhir, (e ofly hwo seniman dois| Praos Winnar in Priysics rom Indin ©0 8 Fagnam was
aEsoHatad wilh variaty of progrems of research in Geomagnatism and hea the credil of prasanting 50 resgarch pubicatong m
It il ety Hey wag prasented wdh MASA Groun Achievernern| Ao for he Cluster program end slso Dean swaned
hiAES Benior Fost Doctoral Fellowshp m 2006,

Wr. 5. N. Zindal, Direcior Gererat of the Soltwars Technacogy Parks of india (ST, Ministry of Communcabens and IT Dunng
his prolassonataxpetpncn of 31 yaes b hisaced maks projects In gowemement, prvale and publc secioes, Me Zindalis & senor
mernberfaliow of many prodessions bodies such az the IEEE. UBA, TF [ETE, New Dethi, Broadcast Engineering Socehy, Mow
Digtni; eine M Zindal hetd mamy prestigioes posts where he chered ihe ET & T Corporstion LI and headed he Congampe
Elactrorcs Divisen at the Depl. of Beciromics. He played & key rali In the successiul operations al tha Eecironics Soome Board
and Fublic Address Syelame foe the |X Aslan Gemes in 1582, Mr. Zinded |8 & graduste from Bira Instaule of Technalogy and
Scianca (BITS), Piléni and a possgraduat of e kidian Instilubest Technoiogy (IT), Kanpe

Mr. Glan Prakash Gupts & eqai in Profc! Fnancing which inciudes: infrastnuciure projetts, Capial Mered, Financksl end Genersl
Maragamenl. He wirked wilh IDBI fndustia Devainprnent Bank of India) in vanous epecifies and laior held presticious posts of bang the
Enerutive Dvrecior and then e Chamman & Menegng Dieecioral DB, He was alen the Crarmnan of the Lint Tet of Indie, poor iowhich he
wats assnciabee wilh Shed Aarn Codege ol Cormmiso, Dol Lindersty &5 8 lechnst Mo has s boon on boand of mamy oher prestigious
organzaone. He cumantly eercen on tha board of vanooe magor openbotons §o Adaha Siia group, koes: Caluler Limted and Lodba
Deervericaps Lic], A i s P edusabions) ouaificaion he'has cormpiessd his Mashers Dagros in Cormmeros sy irom Deld Unsersity

.\ Sarangapani fas over 36 veere of expensnce of wiich 28 years In TCS. He epent over | B yans in Meragamen: consuliing group
of TCB. Aller @ slind of 3 yoars i Manpowes Niocalion Tisk Commitines, Bugingas Asencinhos Manadgomon| and viss socion, ha joinoed
Giovamment Solutions Unk and camed ot projects in Govermmant esclor il retirermant and ihereafier alzo. He s cumently workdng ez en
Achisar fof 8 Tchrekagy Cormpsry specabrng in aecironic secuify products oned seevices i is pso associaied wilh 52 Jain ineifes
of Mensgement and Fszaarch, Mumbsi as an Exernal Fecuty membar for the Executive MBA program:. He sz conducls faining
proer T lof oiher phganizeions . HEepenence covies S wide spetirom ol sheas i Bolh pubic secior ard privale secior oraniiahions

Mr. 5. 5. Motbal, 6 (Fafd | & Cmde. Indian Alr lorce, with over 31 yeare of expenance ha held varioes presiigious sssignmeants
wiich Included control of all the communicatione. qualiy contecl ol indiganouss 3gweall ag imported equpmeant, indigenization of
defensa procucts snd technical taining. He headed soffwers imegration ASD for Irerdial Navigation System Developrment lor
Jecpiar Arcratt. A veberan of 1985 & 1807 ware, ha refired rom 1he post of D PLAN ADGES. He neld many sminet posiions wih
WAL Organizations ke Bcom S Lid, 1T Limied, FIBCOM, inclis Saoorm Lid and s bes assocsabed wilh many repused
companies like Dalamatice frdormetion Technology Lmiled and Hinduesen Shipysrd Lid. Mr Molisl completed his M Sc. from
dacimg Linhwrsty and b, Tech, from 0T, R Dialhi, whaie he aiobd Festin big st

11
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS |

Or. B Sekhar, Chairman and Managing Director

D, B Bekhar s ihe foundor Chairman and Managng Director of Micro Techniloges (indis) Lid which was formed
in e year 1892, Micro Techaologies (India) Lid is o Pulblio Bsbed comparmy havineg an 550 8001 -2000 and B0
28000 cedificalion. The company under his guidance s speashaading in the field of mnovalive IT soltwars
zolulions and securty products. He has bean the key dnwng force @ concewing and develoging more than 300
innenative [T products, D B Sekhar i 8 creative thinkes, respongive o the changing markets, an individual driven
by athical values and & perfect blend ol democrstic and delegate lasder, A3 a viaicnary he strongly belisved thal
mdim musd ba in the forefronl, when it comes o Echnology and a5 an enirepreneur, hs had the cpportunity fo
trangiate this into realty. Wien Indig s being termed azs an emenging Supsr Power In the figld of sofwane his
ambition wWas 1ose rapidly ermsrging wirsess tchnologes 1o craate products thet could be used by common
rman glotaly and rmake a difference in the sociaty. His vision and dream was o infrocguce innovalive technelogy
producis io the world o improve the @ shve by ohing safety, security. and §ie suppan through Micro
Technoingies {india) Lid With several awards to The cradil of the orgenization, like “Maharazhira [T Award®,
"Dhiteaiite Fast 500 Asia Pacillc Mwand” *Dun & Bredsimat ECGE - Indian Exporers’ Excellence Award®, He hald
prmioar of execudhe posibions and had bean an adviser o Sate govarnmen orgarezatons [or iher siralegic plins
and compuieriation ol operations, telecoenmurscation and othar IT elatad initalives. D Sakhar is also an adlive
mamiber in e core commites of F3AI (Fire and Safety Aseociation of India) taking care of ihewsstern regeon, Dr,
B Bekhar holds a Masters Dagres In Scienco wih o doctorsia in Solid State Elecironics and Muciear Phyvsics

Ma. Jayanthi S, Executlve Direcior

bs. Jayandhl 5. b ond of the key founder mambsers of Mioo Technologies, Sho played a  kin (o in devaloging
tha quaity doiven carporats culture at Micrmo Technologies, Har analytical lafents fava immeraely halped to shodi
upthe sevel of the wide range of products developed by Micio Technologies.

She plays & very lundamantal ol in Bhie Sverdll sdmimstralion: and he proper functaning of IT operalions,
supaiviess the Logistice Coordirston 1o ansure guality logistice, procurement ang simultaneoieshy monitors (ha
develooment end mplementaton of asset management policses. As far as her educational quabfication ahe
hobdes a Magians Degree in Business Economics with a goid meosal

Mr. A, R, Kale, Independent Director

Mr. Anard B Kake, MBA Irem Lesds Unwersty, LB, has besn on e boands of various lamge Public Seclo
undortakings with an asporionoo af moro than 38 yoorn. Mombor of covorgd prootidgious orgonizafiono of Indian
Civil Accounts Service, nfermnatanal Ingtitite of intemal Auditors and had held &minent posta in vanous govt,
clepartments being Chiel Conlroder of Accounts and Pianesens) in Department of Abommiks Enangy

Dr. R. 5. Deshmukh, Independent Director

DA & Deshmukh, & gosiorie in Solld Stale Eecionics and wilh his withe experence in iechnciogy, he has
guiitded Micro Tchmalogies activitizs in the 5158 ront and geve 8 thoroaegh understanding in analyzmg he mathad
of study, determimng the design fools, coding method with the backup procecures



Prof. Paul Jerome Coleman, Independent Director

Prof. Paul J Coleman, M.S. in physics and a Ph.D. in space physics hold the position of the Chairman of NASA
funded Girvan Institute of Technology. He was awarded with outstanding awards for his contributions to the
exploration of the solar system by NASA and in exploration of the moon. He was a John Simon Guggenheim
Fellow and a Senior Fulbright Scholar and was appointed by President Reagan to the National Commission on
Space. He was also appointed by Vice President Quayle to the Space Policy Advisory Board.

Mr. Raghavendra A. Raichur, Alternate Independent Director

Mr. Raichur is a B.Tech (Electrical) from IIT Bombay, with over 26 years of experience in design & development and
is an industry acknowledged authority in analog design. As an entrepreneur, he established Seto Technology Pvt.
Ltd. and was involved in the total technical development of the organization. He has been involved in various
professional activities as member and a co. member in reputed organization like The Institute of Engineers (India),
Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineer (IEEE), Indian Society of Non Destructive Testing (ISNT).

Mr. Prakash Bhave, Independent Director

Mr. P H. Bhave has more than 30 years of experience in the areas like Quality Control, Quality Assurance, and
Laboratory management, Measurements, Testing and Products Certification. He has been on the boards of
Ministry of Communications and IT, Government of India, Meltron, Mumbai, Electronics Test and Development
Centre, Pune. Mr. Bhave has also been the Auditor for various management systems like Quality, Information
Security and Laboratory management etc. He was the Vice Chairman of Quality Forum, Ex President at the
International Society of Reliability Engineers (India chapter) and Fellow of Institution of Engineers. Mr. Bhave was
one of the assessors for Business Excellence Awards for Rajiv Gandhi National Quality Award and Ramakrishna
Bajaj National Quality Award for 4 years. Mr. Bhave is a B.Tech (Electrical) from IIT Mumbai.
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KEY MANAGEMENT |

Mr. Mukund Gupta - Executive Director

M. Murund Gupte has earmed a Master Dagree in Infarmation Management framihe Unversity of Mumbsiwith 8
Ciplgma i Scftwane Engneenng and Embecided Syaterns from ane af (e most prestigious unversties of the
pounind. Ha has grown theough the (echiical minks, developing & sel of musces netessary [ sense whan thi
effarings ane giming aght. With a immenss bheod of expertics in vamous inarcial aspects, systam anaiysis and
crifical knowladge sboul techrology, resource planming and managemeand, Mi. Gupta created the driving lorce in
[ compy, reaching new hodeong and beyond and kor which he hag been ewarced and Currently holkds the
posilion as Executive Directar{ED) of Micro Technologies (India) Lid. In Fs role ba has led the mid- 1o long-lerm
srategic plarming for takng the enmmpriss, senvice providar, public sector, commenzial, and consumer markatis
trraugh e austained period of growth dunng challenging economic fimes.

Me. Ganapathy V- Chief Executive Dfficer

Clarapsdy Y iz an Engineer by profession from Mumbea, Afler his Graduation degree he completed hie Masters in
Soience fromr Liniled Siates of Amenca, where he practiced, leamed and worked in one of the argest Energy Heseanh
Iruisfuie dlong with infisting vanois bechnobogesl amd scienoe onenbed research by galfing aflisted wih renowned
agenciessuch as MASA, Hehas buill e solid record of sralegic managemen, leadership, and business achevemants
with his exgperise end sirong unoerstanding with respec! o mbematona! markets and imiermstionel Bueinass.

W, Ganapaltny cumantly holds postion of Chisd Execoive oficar (CEC) with MTIL and is responsibie ior the cveall
suctass of Moo Technologies in Doméstic as weall ag Infemalional Marked and managing e companys
globaization srategy a8 well &3 meraging the shareholders of the company. Leading sales operations i all
Cushore Gl partrer engageTenl acihvities Thioughout e negions with higvision st drive grost and peoilabiliy

Mr. Mifind Mehta - Chisf Financial Officer

hiind Mahtz, 8 Cherared Acoouniant by profeseion emce 1982 'With more than 20 yaars of knowledges and
practice i the fiesd of Finances working at promineni =vels with public as well as privats limsed companies,
rranagere ek o, Incomi 1o, Auditing, Comporate Finance, Corporate Law and Taxation; He @ a cornaolgsaur
In Acoounting, anabyzing drd providing dats for tax relurs, tx pianming within current egistations and praviding
fimancisl seevioss e jax calowlations, cost evaluatons; budgat analysis, $io.

Hez significant regponsibllites and funclicnalily in the company has lead him o hesd the enfire economics of
ko Technologies and Fas been honored 1he prestigious ety of e Chiel Financlal Dficer of e companmys
As Tha Chiel Fnancial Officer, M Mehlba & responsible aulhonily lor managing ab the fmances and monalany
operalions fof Micna Technologiss. His major funclionaliiby comprisss (he fnancsd plarnng, supsigion of recond
keeqing, as wel a8 the interes! wih the shon- and fong-erm planning. He alao lekes care ol preparaton of
frsariciad plsdgess, oparational reporting and inerpoeting, evelusling coeraling resulls, DReOanTy iNoorme L&
rehem=s, eslabizhing intermal control procedures to safe-guard the compamy's assste.
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Mr. Karthikeyan R- Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Karthikeyan is an engineer by profession holding a Masters degree in Science with specialization in Electronics. In
his carrier as an engineer he has used his scientific knowledge of the behavior and effects of electrons to develop
components, devices systems, or equipment that uses electricity as part of its driving force. In his career he was also
engaged in numerous researches, design various components and develop various products. He has been
repeatedly recognized by many national groups for its excellence in the areas of IT and Security.

With his valuable contribution and commitment towards the company he has moved from position as head of
embedded division to become the Chief Operating Officer of Micro Technologies. As chief operating officer he
Manages internal operations, directing the company's product strategies and is conscientious for product
architecture, implementation, and project executions. In this capacity he is responsible for effective use of all IT
resources and technology issues.

Mr. Aditya S. Chief Strategic Officer

Mr.Aditya S. holds a bachelor's degree in Business Management and a master's degree in business specializing
with International business form one of the finest Business Schools in the Country. Mr. Adityaimmaculate creative
thinking driven by ethical values craft advanced strategies and policies, to develop the company's global
strategies around technical, business and policy issues. Another long-standing focus for him is privacy, security
and cyber-security. He has gone to great lengths to encourage people to incorporate things from their “personal”
lives into the professional setting.

Mr. Aditya currently holds the position of Chief Strategic Officer (CSO) of Micro Technologies (I) Ltd. Asa CSO he
understands what makes the company successful and how it will continue to be successful in the future, then to
translate that knowledge into the ability to judge specific activities the company is undertaking, and ensure all of
those activities are helping the company be successful. His role is not only limited to company's product offerings
but also to understand market strategy, acquisitions, and how to make the company relevant and successful in
long run. He is entitled with creating, communicating, executing, and sustaining a company's strategic initiatives.

Ms. Sudipta V,Company Secretary

Ms. Sudipta V has been associated with the organization since April 2009. She is the Company Secretary and the
Compliance Officer of the company. Her key responsibilities include compliance of all applicable corporate laws,
listing agreement, Corporate Governance Practices and Processes, Compliances with directions of MCA, ROC,
SEBI, BSE, NSE, RBI and other Self Regulatory Organizations and Industry Associations, formation of subsidiary
companies, to give advice on MOUs, NDA and other agreements and on various laws i.e. Company Law,
Industrial and Labour Laws, Economic Laws, IPR Laws, Environmental Laws etc. She is an Associate Member of
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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ANNLAL REPOAT 2010-11

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
ANALYSIS REPORT

(A) Industry Structure & Developments

1. Introduction:

Secunty implies stability and continuty. it brings civil mvohement, accountability and transparency. Civil mvohvement
reters to a hkevel of canlian participation, control and influence towards security of humankind. Security also brings

gronsth endd growth determinants such a5 savings. human capitsl investment, and in tum development of an
ECONONTTY

The most of common product lines GETY Accass Control, and Video Door Phones. Fire Secunty is considered as
extended or secondary product lines due to inharent compiexity and business volume. Solutions for vehicles, homsa,
Mobile Phone, Laptop are most sought after by business not for security purpose alons but also to improwve the
productiity of employess

2, Market Assegaments:

O i Market Share Maskat Arsa Grpwth Aate
o ) %)
Premises Securty
Wokiding CCTY .
Corrrrarci & incusTi b ol R 5
Carreras, Housings,
heritors. Gt T RYTR
A Coredd Large Orgareziions
(Corlroilers, Resadinrs, an sy Ecfucatioral )
Latkorg Hpndwang, ’ Setor, O A Gas !
Barriars. Cartial Sacier
Gowermmend & Somid
Socarmng Tachrology: 11 Cionaenmant i i
invrugion Detection
[Perimener & Bauilceng thuclaar Familios &
fiarm Controliers & Ll foartmant a0
Desactors, ingl. Blectric Complenas
Fancas)

Fig.1: Market Share of Infrastructure Security Businass

3. Growth Drivers of Elecironic Security Market;
Sucurity Business

»  Import Customs Duty: Compared 1o the prohibitive 250% Impont Custorm:s Duty of the 80, tha curran! rata of 35% ia
also being considarad as growlh driver loe the Industry, However, due 1o large current custom duty, | would create 2
lavourabie almosphere 1o develop securily products iocally 10 exenpt from inciusion of ey Impo Duty in the cost
stiucture of he produdts and thus, not only save lorslgn exchangs drainage rom the country but also enabiling the
Irnctusiny 1a raduce Ihe MRP of domestically manutactured products, This trand would definitely accelerate the R &D
agwall as Technology companias to devalop and manulaciure wise spactrum of sacurity products within the country
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» Usage in Key Sectors: Rapid growth in sectors such as transport (includes aviation, railways, sea ports and roads),
tourism (hospitality). finance (banks and ATMs), telecom, energy, real estate and coupled with the influx of
multinational companies are contributing to alarge extent of electronic security market in India;

= Government Department: Looking at the colossal expenditure on security measures, government is embracing the
Public-Private-Partnership (PPP) as a most favourable model not only to generate funds to meet the huge security
expenditure for the whole country but also provides the opportunity to the private players to participate in this novel
project of securing India;

»  Economicliberalization and development.

4, Growth Factors:

@ Technology develapments LI Consistent economic growth

and wealth creation
Markal dovelopment afforts & Growing awareness across
censultant influence

end user segmonis
Fall in prices drives marke! Globalization increases use of
penatration

electronic security
@ Need for realizing higher RO}

5 Changing lifestyle and
[ urbanization !

DRAG ; .| /> THRuUST

(1) Lack of standards and codes
@ Project delays
@ Lack of regulatory framework

@ Industry’s reluctance to open systems o 8I's response to technology, Inadequate
Adverse impact caused by “fly-by-night-

GRAVITY operators”

Fig. 2 : Security Business Analysis

» Standards should be formulated for equipment, suppliers and installers should be certified as per their performance
and professionalism;

« The crying need is for self-realization and commencement of accreditation programmes sponsored within the
industry by brand leaders to bring the skills and maturity levels to world standards.

5. Statistics of Priority Consumption Sector, Vehicle Sector and Home Sector:

Mobile Sector

There are some important statistics of Mobile, Vehicle and Home sectors summarized below:

= Around 812 million number of mobile handsets in India (March, 2011);

»  Total GSM based mobile subscribers in India is 570 million (March, 2011, excluding Reliance & TATA).
»  50% users across India victims of mobile theft;

»  Morethan 20 lakh mobile phones are stolen / lost every month;

= Only2% of stolen/losthandset are recoveredin India;

»  The second hand market for stolen mobile phones is estimated around INR.400 crores in India.
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Statistics of Vehicle Stolen in India
Sr. No. Type of Vehicle Stolen
01 Passenger Car / Taxi / Jeep 20,914
02 Goods Carrying Vehicles 2,209
03 Motor Cycles (include scooters) 1,10982

Fig. 3 : Vehicle Sector

Statistics of Burglary in India
Burglary Recovered % of Value of Value of % of Value
Cases Recovery Burglary Burglary Recovered Recovered
Of Cases (in Crore) (in Crore)
89,368 28,039 314 493 1563 31.1

Fig. 3 : Statistics of Burglary in India
Prospects & Trend:
Trend towards one-stop shopping in the commercial and industrial markets as customers seek to decrease their
systems integration costs;
Moved from Analog to Digital;
IP based systems gaining ground;
Convergence of IT and Physical Security;
Arrival of T network players;
The falling of prices of electronic systems worldwide;
Investment in brand development and customer awareness,;

Both Government and Private organizations make their purchases of security equipment by inviting tenders or
soliciting quotations from supplier companies;

. Electronic Security Market Size in India:

The market for electronic security equipmentin India is estimated at more than INR.2230 Crore (US$ 500 million) for
theyear2011; thisis growing at about 38.35% per year,

The market is estimated to reach to mark of INR.43,650 Crore (US$9.7 billion) by 2016;

The Indian CCTV market in India which is currently estimated at over INR.750 Crore (US$167 million), is projected to
grow at a CAGR of more than 34% during 2010-2012;

Urbanization, economic development and regulatory changes have created an approximately INR.4,500 Crore ($1
billion) fire alarm and security industry in India;

Electronic Security Market Size in India

{Yoar2009 - Year, 2016 {in Crores] | b

i L s ] e ) L Zea

Fig. 4: Electronic Security Market Size in India

References: Electronic Security comprises of Information security, Asset Security, vehicle security, Infrastructure
Security, personal Security and electronic Security equipments.
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8. Market Share

Competitive Industry Analysis
Sl. No. Companies EPS (Rs/Share) | CAGR (Revenue | Revenue* Market
Growth in %) (In Crore Share
INR) (in %)
1 Micro Technologies | Ltd 32.81 45 601 7
2 Honeywell Automation 150.20 219 1358 16
India
3 Zicom 14.00 40 245 28
4 Bartronics India Ltd 15.90 22.08 580 6.7
5 CMC Ltd 85.53 35 709 8.2

(B) Micro Technologies (India) Limited and Its Subsidiaries:

Fig. 5: Competitive Industry Analysis

*Revenues of the Company include consolidated reviews of all business including security

Your company, Micro Technologies (I) Ltd. (MTIL) is a leading IT-product based security solutions provider in India and
globe. The Company today has earned its reputation for providing leading security solutions in India and overseas inthe
space of Vehicle, Home, Mobile and Premises and continues to successfully partner with key world players from
countries like Israel, Japan, Belgium. The company has been supporting its R&D activities to conceptualize, develop
security products that succeed in competitive markets and meet environmental and regulatory requirements.

Your company is the recipient of “Forbes 'Best Under A Billion' Award for 2 consecutively years (2009 & 2010), “The
Technology Fast 500 Asia Pacific Award” awarded by Deloitte Touché Tohmatsu for three consecutive years (2008,
2009 & 2010), Asia Pacific, NASSCOM 'Innovative Products Award' for Wi-Fi Security System and many more...
Security interacts with growth and growth determinants such as savings, human capital investment, and develops a
participatory approach among communities in order to improve quality of life. And to this end your company has
showcased its innovation and cutting edge security technology to develop a diversified range of security products
and solutions with an aim at displaying not just the technological innovation and prowess but also the product
diversity in various segments of vehicle, premises, mobile, other assets. Today your company has more than 300
productstoit's credit.

Subsidiaries:

Growth refers to expansion, rise, progress, success, and improvement of a specific organ through development.
Growth may be achieved in vertical direction or horizontal direction or both ways at a time. To what extent corporation
achieves this through the route of formation and development of subsidiaries, is being traced through a financial
relationship established between the holding companies and subsidiaries.

Micro Secure Solutions Ltd. (MSSL):

Your company realizes that a customer is not only interested in security Products but also looks out for a complete
Security solutions and services to cater to almost all security requirements, and understands the value for money. To
this end, your company has opened another Subsidiary named Micro Secure Solutions Ltd (MSSL).

MSSL is a subsidiary of Micro Technologies India Ltd, a business unit formalized to deliver a range of security
products for commercial & residential premises. MSSL look forward to safeguard, its clients by addressing the total
security needs and protects people and their property. MSSL specialize in the areas of security products that have
been tried and tested within the industry and at the same time are at the forefront of technological advances. This
ensures that our clients receive reliable and up-to-date systems. MSSL has enhanced its Premises Security
Business to Stadiums security, Security for various Temples and Warehouse security, Office Security for Banks.
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Some of them can be briefly showcased below.

I.  Stadiums security Solutions for ticket management and Command Control Centre for securing Sawai Mansingh
Stadium Jaipur and Eden Gardens Kolkata for various Test series, ODI and even ongoing 2011 IPL matches under
ownership of Rajasthan Royals and Kolkata knight Riders respectively.

ii. Micro Secure Solutions Limited delivered security solutions for various religious and charitable organizations. Last
but not the least for Ware house security.

ii. Micro Secure Solutions Limited has provided security solutions for companies such as IL&FS and ICICI for catering
to security needs of their warehouse facilities, nationwide.

Your company has also setup a Production cum assembly unitin Baddi In Himachal Pradesh, to facilitate the growing
demand of security products of the clients. As Baddi being the industrial town of Himachal Pradesh enjoys the Tax
benefits (accept CST) Your company is in a position to reduce the Retail Price considerably in order to make it
available forthe end users.

Micro Retail Ltd. (MRL):

Your Company realizes that franchising is a profitable muscle machine that plows through challenge and persistently
produces success. And, it consistently achieves record growth across the nation and around the world. Moreover, it also
understands that franchising truly is a fiscal movement of broad based business. To this end, your company has opened
a subsidiary named “Micro Retail Limited (MRL).

MRL is a subsidiary of Micro Technologies (India) Ltd, a company engaged in the area of retailing the range of Electronic
Security, Software and messaging Products for vehicle, premises, and other assets. MRL is promoting retailing concept
in the field of security and one among the fist companies to do so. Today MRL's franchisee network tunes to the range of
201 stores across the nation.

Total retail sales in India will grow from US$ 395.96 billion in 2011 to US$ 785.12 billion by 2015, according to the Business
Monitor International (BMI) India Retail Report for the second-quarter of 2011. Strong underlying economic growth,
population expansion, the increasing wealth of individuals and the rapid construction of organized retail infrastructure are
key factors behind the forecast growth. With the expanding middle and upper class consumer base, there will also be
opportunities in India's tier Il and lll cities.

MRL is hence using this retail growth as a fuel for expansion and strategizing policies to capture untapped market place.
MRL also tied — up with “E-office” is a Joint Venture of “Reliance Retail” for with office depot distribution of micro security
solutions through their retail stores. Furthermore MRL also initiated a strategic partnership between “Future Group” for
implementation of our security products in their outlets.

Today, dynamic relations between the franchisee and franchisor exist for promoting the growth of the chain and to allow
communications, customer experience, and direct marketplace knowledge to flow both ways. Both parties also share
commitments to the company vision as they march lockstep to establish lasting values, foster brand development,
create corporate culture, set marketing directions, and cultivate bottom-line-enhancing worth. Everyone working
together toward the same winning goals.
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{) Business Strategy
Your company has established strategy built on five components,

P . 1 Innovation: Creativity sncourages innovation and innovation plays a

[ _'ﬂ vital role in the development of new business concepts, processes

| . and products. Like in previous years, your company has achieved a

A ——— high releasa rate of innovative products. Focus has been on Research
e o 9 P

s / and Development along with initiation of innovative technology to
- attain the competitive advantage to showcase our strong presence in
- ) . the IT based Sscurity Industry. Some of Innovations during the year
”“‘3?-“ 7 v“.:" i can be listed as development of fuel monitoring systems, Emergency
Response solutions, International Command and Control Systermns a
P complete Control centre for multiple business needs and many more.
Fig. 6 Business Strategy

Partnership Networl: Proximity to our partners and internal clients provides enhanced knowledge. During the year, your
company has advanced its partnership programs specifically catering to company's reta presence not only in domestic
market but also in international market. A survey among your partners showed that the choice of your company as a supplier
was largely based on the knowledge we possess and provide. Your comgany with help of its Strong partner network such as
HA.S.H systems, Biztech, Dhanuka, TTSL (Tata Teleservices Ltd), AIRCEL, OXIGEN, BICGAURD, Active Intelligence and
ANZ Stadiums. Your company with help of its Strong panner network such as HA.S.H systemns, Biztech, Reliance Retaii and
other such partners was able to enhance its reach both in the domestic as well as Intermational Market which also includes

establishment of 'Micro Technologies Australia (MTAL)' to cater to Australian Market.

Global Expansion: - Different markets offer different customers and a different customer base. The needs and
demands of countries outside your own are most likely the same but at different times. As the strategy uniolds and the
success of Your Company's global initiatives is demonstrated, the importance of our versatility in providing customized
Security solution is clearly highlighted. We look to secure business where it is most buoyant and find resources for the
business where it's most appropriate. During the year your company was able to expand its security business to new
geographies such as Bermuda, Kenya, Nigeria, Israel, Mali, France, and Ghana, Your company has developed business
plans to foray into the security markets of South America, Scandinavian Countries, Baltic region sand Caribbean Islands.

Customer Satisfaction: In today's economic environment, focusing on customer satisfaction and loyalty is more
important than ever, Over the past year, your company has remained loyal to its commitment to values that hold the
customer as central to our success. Your Company continuously develops and deepens relations with its customers,
supports its customers in the design, start up and operation of the eguipment and systems it delivers, as the
requirements of each customer dictate. Your Company uses a Customer Relationship Management process for
measuring customer satisfaction of the company's sales, delivery and service performance in individual projects and
customer relationships with its 24/7 customer support or service to attend any call from customer side in the event of any
technical snags with respect to security products as well as solutions. And hence has low customer attrition rate and
exhibits higher trend in profit margins. According to the CRM records the customer satisfaction level is more than
90%.Your Company uses a Customer Relationship process for measuring customer satisfaction of the company's sales,
delivery and service performance in individual projects and customer relationships. During 2010 the system was
updated to also track customer needs better and identify opportunities for providing added value to the customers.
Dialogue with customers is vital when developing operations, products and services some of them are as given below:-

“Terrorism is bigger challenge, Today we need to combat with it and Micro Technologes is playing a significantrole in
combating such situations by use of innovative technology and these efforts will certainly achieve some positive
directions against the war with terrorism.”

- Late Mr. Hemant Karkare, Chief, Anti-Terrorism Squad.
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| could locate my stolen car in a much faster and easier manner than the Police, in fact | helped the Police locate my
car, thanks to the Micro VBB installed in the vehicle.

(i) Segment Wise Performance

- Manish K Ajmera, Director, Ajmera Group of Companies

Segmenting Segmenting

Messagin?
sagmen
20%

Security
Segment
66%

Security
Segment
73%

Fig. 7 Segmentwise

(iii) Threats and Opportunity FY 10-11 Performance FY 09-10

“Security” has become a very prominent factor in economic growth and nation building, a secured climate, strengthens
the society towards a unified approach to improve their quality of life, and such unity brings in efforts to be together in the
way of life to counter any security challenges. Today any given economy is confronted with a globalized as well as more
unpredictable with multi-dimensional threats. Rapidly increasing urbanization, economic liberalization at different levels
of society, posed a challenge to the average Indian.

Your Company has a Strong and singular commitment to provide security for man , his assets and the information he
carries In order to simplify the opportunity in the security domain and its concept and with a view to enhancing and
broaden the meaning, we can classify the security threats and its nature into three parts which includes.

(iv)

v)

Personal Security: Allthe mankind and living creatures of the world that always tend to protect self and defending
himself to survive peacefully either from mankind or from the any natural disaster or epidemic.

Security of Assets: It is the second factor in security field as it is always co-existed with the man. The term material
includes all sorts of property in a form of cash, bank deposits, valuable items material or the value equivalent to the
possession of an individual, business, society and a country in a form of wealth. For eg. Security for Home, Vehicle,
Mobile, Laptop etc.

Security of Information: The security of information always governs our day to day life. The whole world is
operational due to the fact of many reliable source of information. “ Information management and security is one of
the key component of efficiently managing any enterprise. Today Information flows via various medium both and
modes, managing and securing them becomes very critical.”. Your company has developed security solution in
protecting personal and vital information's of your's, stored inside electronic gadgets such as mobile phone, PC and
Laptopetc

Outlook

Connecting the Pieces in a Changing World report finds that while issues like risk management and regulatory
compliance remain a challenge, there are a number of opportunities for growth — particularly through globalization
and expansion into new markets, innovative technologies to improve service delivery for both institutional and retail
clients. Just five issues have to be addressed

1.Globalize and localize to boost revenues and cut costs.

2.Adapt technology to improve service delivery.

3.Increase compliance effectiveness.

4 Enhance risk management Practices.

Human Resources

Your company understands importance and significance of Human resources and has always initiated its
core focus on content management, improvements to the facilities and systems available for learning and
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training, integration of key and critical information and communication technology systems as well as the
conceptualization of the organization performance measurement system for creation of a robust
performance platform.

Your company continuous to enhance the existing human resource policies and practices, in particular,
placed sharper focus on performance measurement and rewards management. With the increase in the
company's responsibilities over the recent years, the staff strength has also increased, with an attrition rate of
less than 10% Also, arising from the changing composition of the workforce in terms of background,
experience and age structure, the human resource policies have been realigned to the changing
requirements to be relevant.

As part of development activities many training programs related to personality development, sales and quality
control, communication skills etc were being organized under expert guidance followed by feedbacks and
evaluations Your company also conducts colloquium every week withy and objective to share Knowledge and
information among the employees. Company has the provision to obtain Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and Key
Results Area (KRA) from each employee to evaluate his or her performance level. Moreover your company
proactively involves in team building process through the interaction with senior management in order to build quick
decision making process and hence enhance the productivity and growth of the company.

(vi) Risk Management

Your business is subject to uncertainties and various risks that could cause actual results to differ materially. The
Risk Management at your company encompasses practices relating to identification, assessment, monitoring and
mitigation of various risks to our business. Your company seeks to minimize adverse impact on our business
objectives and to enhance stakeholder value. Our core values and ethics provide the platform for our risk
management practices. Your company makes a quarterly review under a team of audit committee of the company
toidentify and asses the risk and takes preventive action.

() Risk categories

The following broad categories of risks have been considered in our risk management framework:

Strategy: Risks emanating out of the choices we make on markets, resources and delivery model that can
potentially impact our long-term competitive advantage.

Industry: Risks relating to inherent characteristics of our industry including competitive structure, technological
landscape, extent of linkage to economic environment and regulatory structure.

Counterparty: Risks arising from our association with entities for conducting business. These include clients,
vendors, alliance partners and their respective industries.

Resources: Risks arising from inappropriate sourcing or sub-optimal utilization of key organizational resources
such as talent, capital and infrastructure.

Operations: Risks inherent to business operations including those relating to client acquisition, service delivery to
clients, business support activities, information security, physical security and business activity disruptions.
Regulations and compliance: Risks due to inadequate compliance to regulations, contractual obligations and
intellectual property violations leading to litigation and loss of reputation.

(i) Risk management practices
Risk management practices at your company include those relating to risk assessment, measurement, mitigation,
monitoring, reporting and integration with strategy and business planning as discusses below:

(vii) Internal Control systems and their adequacy

Your Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls commensurate with the size of your
Company and the nature of its business to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded and protected against loss
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from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly and
adequately.

Your Company's internal controls are supplemented by internal audits, review by management and documented
policies, guidelines and procedures. The internal control is designed to ensure that financial and other records are
reliable for preparing financial information and for maintaining accountability of assets. All financial and audit control
systems are also reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company on ayearly basis.

The CEO and CFO Certification provided in the CEO and CFO certification section of the Annual Report discusses
the adequacy of our internal control systems and procedures.

(viii) Financial Performance with respectto operational performance

©

Your Company's ability to improve profit margins will depend on factors that include the degree to which and the
speed with which your Company will be able to increase operational efficiencies and reduce operating costs.
Delays or difficulties in implementing and consolidating process improvements, such as those designed to
reduce travel, telecommunication and customer service costs, or installing new products and services and in
consolidating various functions, including administrative functions, eliminating duplicate operations and
consolidating facilities could adversely affect the timing or effectiveness of cost reduction and margin
improvement efforts. Your Company has an effective system of forecasting and budgeting for costs so as to
ensure optimum utilization of resources. It is continuously in the process of reviewing its systems and
procedures to implement tighter controls.

Your Company's Business Partners and its ability to retain customers are important factors in the understanding the
revenue and profits of your Company's businesses. Your Company's ability to retain existing customers depends on
anumber of factors, including:

Customer satisfaction

Service offerings by competitors

Customer service levels

Price

Contribution of Business Partners to growth

Longer the customer relationships are, they are more likely to be more profitable. A significant portion of your
Company's revenues is generated from existing clients and your Company has also been successful in adding new
clients every year. Moreover your Company owns all the intellectual property rights associated with its products
hence it has a complete control over the pricing. However, there can be no assurance that the Company would be
able to retain all/significant proportion of its existing clients.

Intellectual and Knowledge Capital

An organization's intellectual capital is said to be a source of competitive advantage and there is evidence that business
success can be partly explained by its intellectual capital. Innovation, customer relationships, brand value and employee
motivation, along with other knowledge and intellectual assets, are key indicators of future corporate wealth.

Your company has made substantial amount of intangible investments in terms of R&D, innovation, knowledge
creation and fertilization, marketing and advertising expenditures as we have unanimously considered as the most
important determinants of performance.

Knowledge is one of the key determinants of growth not only of an organization but of nations as well.

As your company is an IT company, it attributes its business value to intangible, knowledge-based assets. Your
company signifies that 'knowledge capital' is an important factor of production along with land, labour, capital and
energy. Your company's knowledge capital is the documented knowledge stored in various forms as reports,
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(D)

E)

articles, books, manuscripts, patents and software. To this end, company has taken proactive initiatives in
developing National Security Plan wherein understanding the overall security requirements of various Indian states
as well as India to tackle both external and internal threats in order to safeguard the Critical Infrastructures And Key
Resources (CIKR) of the nation. The attempt to construct a National Security Plan (NSP) has been translated into a
series of books which qualifies and quantifies the right set of information pertinent to security issues.

uality Control and Quality Assurance:
"A Place where excellence is not an accident but it's a habit."

Quality assurance is the main pillar of any business. Whatever is the business, either finance or a security
products/solutions or any service, quality is the most important aspect, which affects the level of success of the
business. The popularity of your product or service will enhance, only if you provide quality.

Your Company has a strong Quality Policy — Continuous Business Improvement. It states that achieve maximum
customer satisfaction through a consistent commitment to excellence and continuous improvement of all facet of our
business. We measure this through customer feedback, process KPI's and business improvement initiatives. A
committed Business Improvement team monitors and continuously improves all standards. The quality
management system is established across all divisions.

Quality certified since 2000, your company consistently surpasses the industry-average service levels. Your
company is a Quality Endorsed Company, gaining accreditation to ISO 9001.

Some of the Certifications for Your Company is as following:

Product Certificate:
. AIS 004
. ISO 7637
. ISO 116750
. ISO 10005
. AS/NZS CISPR22
. IEC/EN60950-1
Company Certification:
. ISO 9001 : 2008 certificate
. ISO 27001:2005 certificate

Your company is also been awarded with the Gold Category, International Quality Summit Awarded by Business
Initiatives Directions. In addition, accorded with NASSCOM 'Innovative Products Award' for Wi — Fi Security System,
2008 - 09. More over your company awarded 'Deloitte Technology Fast 500 Asia Pacific Award' for being one of the
500 fastest growing companies in Asia and 'Deloitte Technology Fast 50 (India) Award' for being one of the 50 fastest
growing companies in India for third consecutive year 2009 - 10.

Other Initiatives:
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

Your company believes that it is vital to perform business with the highest standards of integrity and a strong
commitment to protect and support its people and customers. Your company is committed to developing itself as a
socially responsible company that works to bring benefits to the broader community as it pursues its business goals.
We seek to establish fair and constructive partnerships with our customers, employees and suppliers, as well as with
the community at large.
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() Development of National Security Plan (NSP):

Your company has taken proactive initiatives to develop a National Security Plan (NSP), which articulates core
national security interests and propose a framework for addressing various threats to Indians. Company will also
bring another series of books on security issues and mitigation for various Critical Infrastructure & Key Resources
(CIKR) and technology sectors.

(i) MICT Training Program

Micro Technologies offers a culture that fosters the total well-being of each employee. To reach the professional potential,
Micro Technologies offers a myriad of tools and resources to help each individual. Micro Technologies also host a Learn
and Earn offer through its training division "MICT"- Micro Institute of Computer Technology. The prime idea behind the
concept of MICT is totrain all the budding programmers and shaping the future of tomorrow's ITworld.

(i) Innovation Award

It always takes more than a brilliant idea to produce innovative product. It also takes interdisciplinary cooperation
between research, development, engineering, production and marketing experts. Of course, successful innovation
isn't simply a matter of coming up with ideas. It's the ability to nurture those ideas, make them work, and bringthemto
market that distinguishes a truly innovative company. Moreover, innovations call for strong endurance and
entrepreneurship.

Intoday's challenging business environment, it's more important than ever to discover and nurture new ideas. With that in
mind, your company encourages its employees to self-initiative, creativity and innovation. An Innovation Award is a
cross-divisional award for employees of your company. It aims to honor innovative achievements that contribute toward
developing new products, increasing efficiency, saving costs or driving growth and hence productivity.

The Innovation Award is not only aimed at scientists and engineers, but all employees. As innovative ideas are often
borninateam, the Award is also intended to promote teamwork.

Research & Development (R&D):
() Modular R&D

Your company realizes that the module and platform approach always help reducing the cost with increased number of
units and effectively also increases flexibility through re-combinations of modules. For R&D, the modular approachiis an
important tool of technology transfer, knowledge management, as well as archiving and retrieving project results.

However, nowadays customer need became more personalized and diversified, if the enterprises want to win the
market competition, decreasing R&D period, improving R&D efficiency and having flexible designs are key aspects
to make success. Along with the rapid development of information science as well as the complication of production
structure, people realized the importance of modular R&D.

Your Company's modular R&D has the following main characteristics:

About Structure of the Production Facet: The production system usually consists of many components, the
system is complex and the system's functional structure can be divided;

About Research Assignment Facet: The modular R&D has been divided the R&D assignment into many modules by

structural function. Research organizer assigns the modules which compose of many components to different
research units;
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About Organization Facet: One research module correspond to a few research units, the moduleis further divided
Atthe same time, one research unit is accomplished of several modules;

About Information Communication Facet: Modular R&D system information is managed as information
encapsulation, excepting necessary information transitions under the chief research regulation there is no
information communication between the vertical and horizontal subsystems;

About Research Management Facet: Subsystem is independence with other subsystems on production design.
The competition relations are usual relation between the same research modules;

About Integration of Technological Knowledge Facet: The essential of modular division is technological
knowledge's division and the integration of the modules also is the technology's combination.

The Advantages of Modular R&D:

Information Efficiency: R&D's organizational structure is hierarchical decomposition (HD) orinformation assimilation
(IA). HD model information is transited from the top to down through the functional relation in the R&D system. The
subsystems hardly transits the information to upper level, they always charge by the upper level. The detail research
will be intervened by upper. The IA model, the way of information transition has many changes. There is plentiful
information communication between the subsystems in the vertical and horizontal level in R&D system. The
communication one side benefit to the product interdependency, the other side it weakens the independence of
subsystem. In information age, lots of information communication also is a kind of burden to enterprises. The
information encapsulation (IE) of modular R&D can reduce the unnecessary communication burden. It improves the
efficiency of innovation and accelerates production evolution. Subsystem's independence is the base of ensuring the
production meets the customer's need, which now becomes diversification and individuation.

Efficiency of Organization Management: Modular R&D reduces the cost of organization management through
outsource the assignment by modules to other research units. The outsourcing modules include more R&D tasks
comparing to simple component, it also improves single research unit's organization efficiency. The entire R&D
organizer has more optional space on same module through the competition between the research units in
horizontal level. Such option's essential is an organizational innovation. The characters of modular R&D are benefit
for reduce the risk of research and improve the efficiency. Through modular R&D may shorten the R&D period by the
modules choosing and combination.

(G) Product Line:

Your companies self reliance has created itself a diversified and cutting edge security company, adding innovation to
existing technologies as well as developing new ones. Its product line is diversified carrying more than 300 security
products ranging from vehicles, premises, industrial to personal tracking systems .Moreover it is defined to be a
group of products sharing a common, managed set of features that meet the requirements or expectations of needs
of a selected market or mission. Each product involves vast investments in requirements analysis, architecture and
design, prototyping, process and method of definition, tools, implementation and testing with little carried forward to
future products. Here some key products' usage and features are given below:

(i) Security Segment:

The concept of complete security in vehicle, home and mobile security is making its place inthe mind of people. With
burgeoning economy, plenty of disposable income, and breakdown of traditional Indian nuclear families the sense of
having complete security asset in amongst minds of many people. Security segment is divided into Vehicle Security
& Tracking products and Premises Security Products.
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(a) Vehicle Security & Tracking:

Micro VBB (Vehicle Black Box):

Your company provides a new class of innovative technology product - Micro Vehicle Black Box (Micro VBB) that is an
antitheft device integrated with functions of security, information and navigation, based on GPS-GPRS Telematic
Module with GSM & CDMA technology. Moreover, it is a real time vehicle tracking system, stealthily secured inside a
vehicle and enables you to monitor and control various vehicle features via SMS using cell phones. It prevents vehicle
thefts and increases the chance of retrieval of vehicle in case of theft with in short period of time.

Micro FMS (Fleet Monitoring System):

It offers an integrated Micro Fleet Monitoring System (Micro FMS) that can manage multiple fleet types and assets
such as Service Fleets, Transportation & Logistic Fleets and Trailer & Mobile Assets all on one mapping and reporting
system. Furthermore, its telematics and GPS location capabilities provide drivers with location-specific information,
security and functionality enhancing services that increase driver convenience, safety and efficiency of transportation
system.

Micro BSS (Bike Security System):

Micro BSS comprises of a compact hardware unit which s fitted on to the bike, along with a small receiver unit. Inthe
event of movement or tampering of the bike, the owner is immediately alerted through an alarm. Itsinnovative
features have areal-time alert system which alerts the userimmediately as soon as anyone tampers with the bike.
Micro BTS (Buddy Tracking System):

It combines three of the mostimportantinnovations of the past few decades —the Internet, GPS (Global Positioning
System) and wireless data. Itis completely downloadable software for high-end cellular phones for keeping up with
the whereabouts of yourfamily, friends and employees. ltis alocation based product, is geared towards delivering
highly personalized services to the present generation of mobile telephony users who are constantly onthe move.
And it allows pinpointing your buddy in a real-time from any PC (Personal Computer) anytime, anywhere in the world
at no additional cost.

(b) Premises Security:

Micro HSS (Home Security System):

Micro HSS is a premises security system, which can also be customized to specification and is available with various
features and in different models to suit cost and functional requirements. It is a security system deployed on the
premises to alert the registered user through SMS in case of any unauthorized or prohibited access in the user's
premises. It outfits a home with control panel/website and a key fob, a siren and accommodates a wide range of
wireless sensor devices controlled by a central computer. Security System Sensors like Door Contact Sensors,
Motion Sensors, Image Capturing on door intrusion and Environmental Sensors like Fire Sensors and Gas-leak
Sensors. It may be managed via a couple of interface options, including web-link software and key fobs.

Micro SSS (Shop Security System):

Micro SSS is an advanced shop security system that uses GSM / CDMA technology and wide range of sensors to
aware the shop owners of various safety concerns on shop's premises such as unauthorized access, intrusions,
power failure etc. Moreover it provides variety of shop security solutions to protect merchandise from burglary,
responding to smoke, fire or other emergencies and communicating between different locations. The Registered
User is warned about this intrusion through alert SMS. It provides the Registered User with various controls through
Messaging Service. The system is also incorporated with audio effects through Siren, which is an additional facility to
the system.

Micro OSS (Office Security System):

Micro OSS being an inexpensive way to protect your office and business, is a monitored security system that includes
a series of devices, such as various sensors, magnetic contacts and video cameras that detect unauthorized entry,
captures images and send alert messages via SMS service on user's mobile phone and signal as well as imagesto a
central monitoring station when an intruder is detected.

Micro IBB (Intelligent Black Box):

Micro IBB helps to prevent or reduce the destruction, loss, human suffering or any economic losses caused by the
Calamities, Accidents, and Anomalies by immediate detection and dissemination of timely, correct and relevant
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information to the correct recipient in the correct format and the correct communication device to mitigate the
preparedness planning. It is combined with custom — built hardware and reliable security system for the control of
unmanned premises. Moreover it is an embedded system with numerous sensors working upon wireless
technology. In addition multiple input and output channels which completely assure the transfer of data to the user
by means of mobile, landline phones, e — mail etc. in case of intrusion, fire, gas leakage, increase & decrease of
temperature and power failure or any such emergency cases.
Micro ACS (Access Control System):
Micro ACS is a user-friendly RFID, biometric based automated system secure for attendance registration of
employees and visitors. It is a Windows-based, distributed processing, card access system and operating on a
computer. This control system provides all the features you would expect from a top-of-the-line
access control system without the difficult to master complexities. It has most important feature of Database backup
and Restore facility.
Micro DMS (Disaster Management System):
Micro DMS helps to prevent or reduce the destruction, loss, human suffering or any economic losses caused by the
Calamities, Accidents, and Anomalies by immediate detection and dissemination of timely, correct and relevant
information to the correct recipient in the correct format and the correct communication device to mitigate the
preparedness planning. It is a customized technology, which meets your security requirement. It integrates many
types of sensors, audio-visual equipment and is the best solution to meet your specific needs. It has inbuilt
integration of Fire Management System also. It is a mechanical device fitted in a secured place, wherein it can be
effectively used as a warning to escape from fire, in case of sudden outbreak of fire. Based on the signals captured by
the server appropriate messages for intimation are sent to the various registered users through mobile or email
immediately.
Micro VDP (Video Door Phone):
Micro VDP that includes different types of home intercom systems, from “voice only” to video versions and is one of
the most cost-effective residential protection devices. Moreover it allows you to control and monitor your home
security, home appliances from mobile phone, keypad, handheld remote control, computer, or the Internet. Its unique
remote communications features allow you to talk to visitors at the door, hear your message, or listen to the sounds or
activity in the event of alarm activation.
Micro ISS (Intelligent Surveillance System):
Micro ISS identifies potential threat, sending out customized alerts and actionable information, while letting you
continue to track unauthorized people, coordinates personnel and controls the situation. It is an integrated security
solution comprising of Surveillance system, an intelligent device for monitoring critical parameters in critical rooms,
access controls software and hardware. Digital Video Recorders (DVRs) can be used to store data captured using
CCTV (Closed Circuit Television). Biometric based locks to restrict the entry of authorized personnel in critical areas of
operation of DRC (Disaster Recovery Centre). RFID (Radio - Frequency Identification) based locks for regulating the
access of the clients within a building; Metal Door Frame Detector to detect various explosive and narcotic
substances; Bomb Jammer is used to protect the personnel between jammer and equipped vehicles.
Micro ATM Black Box (Micro ABB):
ATM Black Box (ABB) is a unique solution for security of your ATMs (Automated Teller Machine). It is in conjunction
with CONTROL PANEL application that transmits intimation to authorized person SMS, E-mail. Simultaneously in
case of events Audio/Visual effect (Siren/Flasher) will be activated and heard by security, hence concerned official
can take periodic action for the activity. The control panel is a web based application monitored 24/7, this system is
backed with command control i.e. the periodic event on a real time basis from ATM is mapped to action taking official
following the events.

{c) Messaging Segment:
Mobile Security:
Micro LMTS (Lost Mobile Tracking System):
It is a cost-effective solution to secure compatible mobile phone handsets by installing the software into the
handsets. It detects any change of the mobile phone SIM (Subscriber Identity Module) card. This product is globally
downloadable from the web with present users in various countries.
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Micro MCS (Mobile Controller System):

It helps to remotely manage your own mobile handset with the help of add - on recipient mobile number. This
particular software is far beyond just the concept of security, in which it not only creates a backup of all the contact
details even after the loss of mobile handset but also the registered owner can retrieve, delete the contact details,
MMS (Multimedia Messaging Service) and SMS with the add-on users mobile. Moreover user can also trace the call
logs made by the new replaced SIM.

Desktop & Laptop Security:

Micro LNTS (Lost Notebook Tracking System):

It uses theft recovery technologies and enables you to hunt for the laptop and locate it when used unauthorizedly. It is
a comprehensive solution that combines Laptop Theft Recovery, Data Protection, and Secure Asset Tracking. It
minimizes data security breaches and the cost of data falling into the wrong hands. Thus, it helps reducing your
organization's risk of exposure.

Micro Life Line (MLL):

This is a web-based software solution entitled “Micro Life Line (MLL)” that enables the real-time dissemination of
information across the entire enterprise that can significantly reduce the amount of time required to complete critical
business processes. It is a three-dimensional messaging system, which enables SMS, e-mail and voice messaging
ataclick.

Micro CARMS (Cyber Activity Remote Monitoring System):

It is a unique solution offered by your company keeping in view the depth of involvement of the computer facility in
exploring new avenues of crime and its inference. It is a powerful monitoring tool that aids to curb on cyber crime and
maintain a serene environment within cyber cafes. Moreover it showcases the power of technology and the true
utilization of technology for restoring peace in society by keeping a check on the various cyber crimes.

(d) Other Segment:

Consumer Durable Product Security:

Micro Power:

It is a Sinewave Home UPS technology product based on Digital Signal Processing with in-built Smart Battery
management, 5 stage batteries Charge Control System and an in built Diagnostic aid. It has seven audio alarms to
give an idea about Reset, System Fault, Overload, Short Circuit, Low Battery, Water Reminder or if there is a weak DC
{Direct Current) connection.

Other Security Environment Product:

Micro SAMS (Student Attendance Management System):

This is a combination of software and hardware to secure any colleges comprises of management system with
attendance record of Student, and entire staffs of an institution remotely from various Locations - across the globe at
one single point. The authorized administrator can use the online Micro SAMS to remotely view all the relevant details
of all the branches of the Institution. It generates various MIS (Management Information Systems) reports in order to
take prompt action related to Attendance. RFID/ Biometric based login and logout for Lecturer, students and guest
lecturers with image captured using webcam for attendance. The system alerts the administrator about the
discrepancy. SMS/Email alert to the authorized user.

Micro EVPMS (Exhibitor Visitor Participant Management System):

It gives complete solution to the big organizers to manage the participants list and details and make proper use of it
when needed. It is also useful for the Exhibitors to manage the visitors. The visitors use this to keep a track on the
current and upcoming exhibitions and other details about exhibition and the exhibitors. It is available in two modes
Offline Version and Online Version. This system bridges the gap between the Exhibitor & Visitor. It also supports
online information via LAN (Local Area Network). It also supports E — mail and SMSes. Moreover it is an automated
system for Exhibitions and benefits Organizers, Exhibitors & Visitors.
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Micro PP (Professional Placements):

It has been specially designed for all those job-seeking people who want to survive successfully in today's
competitive world. The site assists the consultants with an opportunity to implement on-site services and place their
requirements online.

Identify Management:

Micro UID (Unique Identification Card):

It will be a leap in personal identification. It will store information such as Date of Birth, PAN, Residential, Banking,
Personal Identification, Health and Passport details along with even information on RTO Registration and Property
details using the biometric method. All information will be incorporated in a chip designed like a smart card. Micro
UID enables to create a one stop database for individual information and appropriate authentication. The system will
store unigue information of an individual for emergency access. The ID card will use biometric information of the
individual for identification as an additional avenue for authentication. The ID card will also have all the information in
abackup system at a centralized location, which will be accessible to the concerned persons. Verification is possible
only by the user, and the use of the biometric device, along with verification codes, will reduce the possibility of
duplication to almost nil.

Rural Informatics:

Micro Jai Kisan:

It is a mobile based remote management of motor pump set for the farmers in order to save time, Energy and Water.
Micro Jai Kisan for Automated Motor Pump (AMP). It will help farmers and cultivators to plan their farm irrigation in
order to save time, save water and save labor. Once the small yet hi-tech device is installed the farmers/cultivators
can switch on/off his/her motor pump from anywhere and at anytime by using a phone call (Mobile Phone or Land
Line or PCO). The Key Features include Mobile based remote management of motor pump sets, Start or stop motor
pump set from any location through phone call, Phone call can be made by mobile or landline or PCO , This unit tells
you if the power is present or not.

Power Plants & Distribution Industry Security:

Micro EBB (Electric Black Box):

Micro Electric Black Box is a device has two version one for the consumer other for the enterprise. The enterprise one
deals with monitoring and managing various parameters related to operations of any transformers. The monitoring of
this parameter helps in reducing/minimizing the transmission and distribution losses to a great extent. In the
consumer side it helps in monitoring the power consumption at each house hold. This will helps states and various
municipal corporations to manage consumer consumption of electricity apart from other regular monitoring.

(e) Upcoming Segment:
Upcoming & New Products section offers a glimpse at new products and initiatives at Your Company.
Micro E — Health:
The increasing needs of human society and ensuring access to healthcare information has become a critical factorin
determining the growth rate of this industry. It is a unique global product where all health related parameters from
simple BP (Blood Pressure) equipment to a Blood sugar, unit going up to a MRI (Magnetic Resonance Imaging) are
uploaded on real-time basis to a unique secure site. Intimation to the medical practitioners about the status of the
patients evenin Mobile Ambulances is possible. Patients can upload, access or download health related parameters
from anywhere in the world which is mapped to Web Server. Confidential data is accessible only to the authorized
users from anywhere in the world. Integrated with critical tests like MRI, CT (Computerized Tomography) Scan etc., it
also gives access to emergency databases through Web Site. Emergency Messages could be sent to family doctors
inthe form of a CD (Compact Disc), or in the form of Voice Calls. The system has an intelligent feeder, which based on
predefined configuration is able to understand the patient's current situation and to respond back.
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Micro ICCS (International Command and Control System)

“Micro International Command and Control System (Micro ICCS) serves as a framework for a Global Command,
Control, Communications, Monitoring, Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance (C3MISR) infrastructure. The
Micro ICCS accommodates all mission and operational scenarios by allowing users to access to C3MISR resources
worldwide through the Micro Information Infrastructure (MIl) embedded with various state-of-art security equipments
at any time and any place. The Micro ICCS architecture is designed to satisfy C3MISR functional requirements and
conform to the Technical Reference Model (TRM). Micro ICCS incorporates the best know-how in the industry, an
established [T-enabled security service approach, an international level tooling framework as well as a pioneering
expertise to make available the best Remote Infrastructure Security Management (RISM) services in this category.
The Micro ICCS technical architecture will evolve over time, allowing for the incorporation of technological advances.
Micro SCT (Secured Communication Terminal )

Micro SCT is a GSM Based Fixed telephone security system which can be deployed at your home /shop /office to
alert the registered user of any unwanted access to your home /shop /office. Micro SCT helps its user to get
information about any unwanted access or intrusion through an SMS anytime, anywhere in the world. Micro SCT with
help of various environmental sensors helps its user in creating a security blanket for his premises and these sensors
can be controlled globally using an SMS. SCT not only intimates unauthorized access but also provides alerts on
gas/ smoke leakage, fire breakout along with a long battery life. This product showcases a rare combination of high
quality security hardware with a communication terminal using wireless technology.

Micro VBB over Bluetooth

Leveraging the rapid rise in smart phone use, Your Company brings exciting new value at low cost to its Vehicle
Security segment. Using a custom phone and Bluetooth technology, medium-range connectivity can be offered at
low cost without subscription fees, cellular network delays or coverage issues. A mobile connectivity solution
combined with highly reconfigurable vehicle electronics makes it possible for vehicle manufacturers to easily offer
personalization options that enhance drivers' long-term vehicle ownership experience. A useful complement to
embedded telemetric and phone app solutions when a driver is out of cellular range. It is also equipped with wide
range of utility features such as automatically switch between Calls and car stereo, automatic mute, Two -way audio
output, Auto pairing function to connect to mobile phone, On leaving the car, the phone will automatically get
disconnected, use of DSP echo & Noise Reduction and many more

Micro VBB Fuel Monitoring System

Your company has developed Level sensors around solid-state capacitive technology to detect the level of gasoline,
petroleum, jet fuel and other fuel types and grades for the Vehicles. These fuel level sensors which output reliable
level measurement signals which remain stable even when the temperature and the pressure changes. Each fuel
level sensor is designed and integrated for the application in which it will be used, whether it is used for a small utility
vehicleto alarge fuel carrier tanks. Sensors are designed to client's custom length requirement and specification.

(H) News letter

Newsletters are a potential key to open the doors of success for running a new, existing or future business, and it has
to be effective and persuasive. Writing a monthly or quarterly newsletter that is unique and relevant to your audience
can be a worthwhile promotion for your business. Newsletters are published by all types of organizations whether be
it a club, church, association and businesses, especially companies, to provide information of interest to their
members, customers, investors or employees. The Attempt of micro news letter is to spread a word to all our
associates, employees and stakeholders about significant contributions made by Your Company in making this
world a safe and secure place to live in. Micro newsletter updates about the recent achievements, events latest
technological development etc.

Your company also publishes monthly newsletters with the following objectives;

Keeps In Touch — Being a renowned name in the security arena, Micro Technologies need to take care of everyone
involved inthe success of some or the otherway.
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Hook In New Cuslomers — A newslatter can be a very simple strategy 1o tum & one-time visilor inlo 4 Meatima
CLUstomer,

Eztablish Your Expertise -- No one knows morne about your business than you do which makes you an expert To
shara this nuggets of knowledge through vour newslatter to dasean your ralationship with your existing customears
and convince polantial customers thal yousane the answer 1o their problems.

(1) Brand Visibility

Greates tha brand vigindity, the greater ane the chances that your products get soid as 1he greater is tha brand
retention in the minds of the customars. For increasing the sales of your products, we pead 1o put nesa betors tha
people so that they galn inguisitiveness and sagamess to know more about tham. Keeping these in view your
compary focused (i efiors majorly in twe kind of prominent madia tools viz. Prinl media and Online based media
and marketing lechniguee. Your company cholee towards print media relates to its properios 8s (deat medium. s
availabie inbath large and small numbers, can be accessad sasiy, and s engaging, versatile anda crealive,

Your company pellaves thal with every onkine marketing channel ana descipang, there mist be ools 1o make the task
ol "Markating” more afficient and effective and hence your company has embraced "Socal Media® as a reliable ool
tey s Lo e marlaating plan
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ANNLUAL REPORT 2010-11

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE |

Your difectors believe thel sound corporsle governance is ontical 1o enhance and relain Imvestor trust, Accordinghy,
confinuous effort is abways o seek toensure that we aitain ol peformance rules wiih integrty. Your board exercises its
fickuciary responsitulities m the widest sanssa of the term . We also endeavaur to enhance long-tarm sharehoider value and
respect minonty nghts in all our busness decisions. Thus Transparency through Corporate Governance al Micro
Technologies is not just adherence Iomandatony rukes and guideiines bul also obsenving itin the spint behind the lstter

By combining ethical values with business acumen, giobalisation with national interests and core businesa with
emerging business, the Company alms to be amongsl the largest and most respected global organisalions. The
Company will continue to focus its meowrces, strengite and strategies to achieve its vision of becoming a truly global
iwader in 1T and sacurity industry. while upholding the core values of excellence, ntagrty, rasponsibitTy, unity and
understanding, which ame fundamental 1o the Corporate Govemance Framewark. The corporate govemanca principles
of your Company emphasize a quality Board, sound Intarnal controls, and transparenay and accolntabillty to ai
shareholdarg,

COMMITMENT OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT:
Toensure transpamency and professionalism in all decizions and transactions of your Comgsany;

2 Ta engure accountahility n all our dealing with our employvees, shareholoers, customers and the community &t
lare,

3 To schieve excellienca in Corporate Governance through adequats disclosures, confirming to, and excesding
wharaver possitle, the prevalent mandatony guidelines;

. o enhance Snarenoldss valls MIougn pruoeant Inancial decikions, Sound DusNess oscsions and high
standards of ethics throughout the organization,

Your Company & in compliance with all the requiremenis of the corporate govemantce code as enshringd in Clause
40 of the fisting agreament.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION
Table 1: The details of the Directors on the Board & Category of Directors as on March 31,2011
are given below:
Attendance No of Directorship / Committee
Name Category Particulars Memberships/Chairmanships
Board Last AGM Other Committee | Committee
Meeting 28/06/10 Director- Chairman- Membership (***)
ship (*) ship (***)
Chairman&
Dr. P Sekhar Mar|1aging 8 Present 3 Nil 1
Director
Ms. Jayanthi S Executive 4 Not Present 3 Nil 1
Director
Independent
BgsF:{rr?L.th Non Executive 4 Present Nil 2 Nil
Director
Independent
Mr. A. R. Kale Non-Executive 5 Present 3 1 2
Director
Independent
Prof. Paul Jerome | Non-Executive | Nil | Not Present Nil Nil Nil
Coleman .
Director
Alternate to
Mr.l Raghvendra Prof. Paul 3 Present ’ Nil Nil
Raichur Jerome
Coleman
Mr. Prakash
Br:av:ea as Independent Not
(Appointed wef Nors!Exetc:utlve 3 Present Nil Nil Nil
May 21, 2010) rector
Mr. Vijay Bhatia Independent
(Resigned wef Non-Executive 3 Present Nil Nil Nil
Feb 5, 2011) Director

[* The Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above, does not include Private Ltd Companies, Unlimited

Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956.]

[*** In accordance with clause 49, membership/chairmanship of only the Audit Committee, Shareholders//Investors'

Grievance Committee and Remuneration Committee of all Public Limited Companies has been considered.]




As per Clause 49 (I) (A) (i) - Where the Chairman of the Board is a non-executive director, at least one-third of the Board
should comprise of independent directors and in case he is an executive director, at least half of the Board should
comprise of independent directors.

Therefore since the Chairman Dr. P Sekhar is also an Executive Director more than half of the Board comprises of
independent directors.

Further the majority members of the Board (5 out of 6) are independent directors which show the basic adherence to
corporate governance principles.

Mr. Vijay Bhatia who had been associated with the Company since April 2010, has resigned from the Board of Directors
of the Company with effect from February 5, 2011.

Mr. Mukund Gupta who has been working with the Company for past over a decade and was currently the Chief
Executive Officer has been promoted and designated as an Executive Director. Consequently Mr. Ganapathy V, who
had been working as the Chief Financial Officer, was promoted as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Mr.
Milind Mehta, CA who had been looking after finance and accounts related matters is now the Chief Financial Officer.
Allthese appointments have taken effect from 1% April 2011.

NUMBER AND DATES OF THE BOARD MEETINGS HELD:

Among other things, key matters like periodic operating and financial results, acquisitions, joint ventures,
capital/operating/budgets, findings/comments of the Statutory, and Internal auditors, risk management, internal
contrals, issue of capital and other resource mobilization efforts are brought to the Board. The Board also regularly
deliberates onthe Company's positioning in the Indian and global IT scenario and adopts and approves the strategy for
medium and long term growth. Detailed presentations are made at the Board Meetings by the Managing Director &
CEO and Executive Directors on various strategic and operational issues.

Eight Board Meeting were held during the year, as against the minimum requirement of four meetings. The dates on
which the meetings were held are 8th April 2010, 21* May 2010, 10" August 2010, 8" November 2010, 10" December
2010, 8" January 2011, 5" February 2011 and 12" February 2011. Your Company has held at least one Board meeting in
every three months and the maximum time gap between any two meetings was not more than four months.

DISCLOSURE TO SHAREHOLDERS REGARDING APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
ALONG WITH THEIR PROFILE:

Dr. R. S. Deshmukh and Prof. Paul Coleman are retiring by rotation. Dr. R. S. Deshmukh who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for reappointment at this ensuing Annual General Meeting. Prof. Paul Coleman who retires
by rotation as a director and being eligible offers himself for reappointment at this ensuing Annual General Meeting. Mr.
Raghavendra Raichur has been appointed as an Alternate Director to Prof. Paul Coleman. Their attendance record in
the Board / General Mestings during the year under review is givenin Table 1.

Dr.R. S. Deshmukh
Dr. R. S. Deshmukh, a doctorate in Solid State Electronics and with his wide experience in technology, he has guided
Micro Technologies activities in the GIS front and gave a thorough understanding in analyzing the method of study,
determining the design tools, coding method with the backup procedures. He also had been a professor in
Engineering College.

Prof. Paul Coleman

Dr. Paul J Coleman, M.S. in physics and a Ph.D. in space physics hold the position of the Chairman of NASA funded
Girvan Institute of Technology. He was awarded with outstanding awards for his contributions to the exploration of the
solar system by NASA and in exploration of the moon. He was a John Simon Guggenheim Fellow and a Senior Fulbright
Scholar and was appointed by President Reagan to the National Commission on Space. He was also appointed by
Vice President Quayle to the Space Policy Advisory Board.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The Code of Conduct of the Company is applicable to all the whole-time directors and the employees of the Company.
The Board has also adopted a Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors, both of which are available on the
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Company's Website. All the board Members and senior management have affirmed their compliances with the Code of
Conduct.

SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Considering the requirement of the skill-sets on the Board, eminent persons having an independent standing in their
respective field/profession and who an effectively contribute to the Company's business and policy decisions are
considered for appointment upon the Board. The number of Directorships and memberships held in various committees
of other companies by such persons is also considered.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters, the Board has constituted a set of
following committees with defined and specific terms of reference viz; Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Share Transfer and Investor Grievance Committee. This year the Company has constituted an Allotment Committee to
act as an empowered agent of the Company for the purpose of taking informed decisions regarding the allotment of
shares pursuant to conversion of warrants, FCCBs or Private Equity investments.

Micro Technologies (India) Limited has been reviewing and making appropriate changes in the composition and working
of the committee from time to time not only to comply with various requirements under the Companies Act, 1956 and
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, but also to bring about greater effectiveness of the committee.

1] AUDIT COMMITTEE
Terms Of Reference
The Audit Committee reviews, acts and reports to the Board of Directors, inter alia, with respect to:
» Auditing and accounting matters, including the recommendation for appointment of our independent
auditors;
+ Company's compliance with legal and statutory requirements;
» Integrity of your Company's financial statements, the scope of the annual audits and fees to be paid to the
independent auditors;
» Performance of your Company's Internal Audit function, independent auditors and accounting practices and
if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and fixation of audit fees
+ Risk management activities including a review of top risks like exposure, potential impact and mitigation
plans.

Though the financial results are sent to the Audit Committee and the Board at the same time, the Audit Committee reviews
the audited / unaudited quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results and places a report on the same to the Board for
its consideration and approval. The Committee relies on the expertise and knowledge of management, the internal
auditors and the independent Statutory Auditor in carrying out its oversight responsibilities. It uses External Expertise
also, if required.
The Audit Committee of your company was re-constituted in the month of February 2011 on account of resignation of Mr.
Vijay Bhatia in whose place Mr. Prakash Bhave has been inducted as a member of the Audit committee.
The Audit Committee of your Company, presently comprises of three Directors, two of them ( Mr. Kale & Mr Prakash
Bhave) being Independent Non Executive directors and Ms. Jayanthi Sekhar who is the Executive Director. All the
members including the chairman have adequate financial and accounting knowledge.

Mr. A.R. Kale - Chairman

Ms. JayanthiS. - Member

Mr. Prakash Bhave - Member

The terms of reference of the audit committee are extensive and include all that is mandated in clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement and section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.

Meeting and attendance during the year
Minutes of each of the Audit Committee meeting are placed before, and discussed at, the next and following Board

Meetings. Four Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year ended March 31, 2011
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. Number of meetings
. Number of meetings held
Name of the Director i
during the year attenckd during the
year
Mr. A. R. Kale 4 4
Ms. Jayanthi S 4 4
Mr. Vijay Bhatia
(Resigned wef Feb 5, 4 3
2011)
Mr. Prakash Bhave 4 1

Executives of the Accounts department, Finance Department, Secretarial Department and representatives of the Internal
and Statutory Auditors attend the Audit Committee Meetings if required.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee Meeting was present at the last Annual General Meeting.

2] REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee of the Company is empowered to review the remuneration of the Executive Directors,
Executive Officers and the non-executive directors.
Terms Of Reference
1. To determine your Company's policy on and approve, remuneration packages for executive directors and
their relatives working in your Company, including pension rights and compensation payment.

2. To approve the remuneration payable to the managerial personnel [under the Companies Act, 1956], taking
into account the financial position of your Company, trend in the industry, the appointee's qualification,
experience, past remuneration and performance.

Constitution and Compaosition

The Board has constituted Remuneration Committee, comprising Three Independent Non Executive Directors. However
this committee underwent a re-constitution on account of resignation of Mr. Vijay Bhatia in whose place Mr. Prakash
Bhave has been inducted as a member of the Remuneration committee. The Committee has been constituted to review
and approve, inter alia, the recommendation for the appointment of Managing Director / Whole Time Director / Manager
and their compensation package, annual increments, incentives, additional perquisites etc. Following is the constitution
of the Remuneration Committee as revised:

Dr.R.S.Deshmukh -Chairman
Mr.A.R.Kale -Member
Mr. Prakash Bhave - Member

Remuneration of non-executive Directors
Non- executive directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company apart from the Sitting fees @ Rs. 2000/- per
Board Meeting for attending meetings of the Board.

Remuneration of executive Directors

The terms of remuneration of Dr. P Sekhar and Mrs. Jayanthi S are as per the Service Agreements signed with them. The
remuneration committee has reviewed the same and this was within the overall limit as prescribed under the provisions of
the Act.

Micro Technologies (India) Limited has no stock option plans and hence, such instruments do not form a part of the
remuneration package payable to any executive and/or non-executive director.
During the year under review, none of the directors was paid any performance-linked incentive.

Remuneration paid/payable to Executive Directors during 2010-11
Salary includes all elements of remuneration, i.e. salary, conveyance, HRA, allowances and benefits. Your Company has
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not issued any stock options to any of the directors. The term of executive directors is for a period of five years from the
date of appointment.

During the year 2010-2011, your Company did not advance any loans to any of the executive and/or non-executive
directors.

The Table gives details of the remuneration paid or payable to Executive directors during the year 2010-11.

Name Salary & Allowances Commission | Total (Gross)
Rs.

Dr. P Sekhar

(Chairman & Managing 60,98,400 156,66,666 217,65,066

Director)

Ms. Jayanthi S

(Executive Director) 30,49,200 78,33,334 108,82,534

year under review, only one meeting of the remuneration Committee was held on 1* october 2010 which was attended by
allthe Committee Members.

3] SHARE TRANSFER AND INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

On account of the resignation of Mr. Vijjay Bhatia the Board has re- constituted Share Transfer and Investor's Grievance
Committee, comprising of -

Dr.R. S. Deshmukh -Chairman
Dr. P Sekhar -Member
MrA.R.Kale -Member

Meeting and attendance during the year

Name o the Director |  Number of neetingaheld | Number of mestings
Dr. R. S.Deshmukh 4 4
Dr. P Sekhar 4 4
Mr. Vijay Bhatia
(Resigned wef Feb 4 3
5, 2011)
Mr A.R.Kale 4 4

The Share Transfer and Investors' Grievance Committee is empowered to oversee the redressal of investors' complaints
pertaining to share transfers, non-receipt of annual reports, dividend payments, issue of duplicate certificates,
transmission (with or without legal representation) of shares and other such miscellaneous compilaints. In addition, the
committee also looks into matters, which can facilitate better investor services and relations.

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer:

Ms. Sudipta V, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of SEBI Regulations
and the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges in India. The Compliance Officer can be contacted at the
Registered Office address of the Company or at enquiry@microtechnologies.net.
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Complaints or queries regarding the shares of the Company can be forwarded to the Company's Registrar and transfer
Agents M/s LinkIntime India Private Limited.

Investors Grievance Redressal
The total number of complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction of investors during the year under review
and their breakup are provided as under:

Analysis of Replied Complaints from: 01/04/2010 TO 31/03/2011

COMPLAINT OPENING
SR. NO. DESCRIPTION BALANCE RECEIVED REPLIED BALANCE

Non Receipt Of

1 Dividend/Interest 0 13 13 0
Non Receipt of

2 Annual Report 0 ! ! 0
Change of

3 Address 0 1 ! 0

4 Bank Details 0 8 8 0
Correction in

5 Name 0 1 1 0
Revalidation /

6 Replacement 0 12 12 0

7 ESC Details 0 6 6 0
Procedure for

8 TRF/Transmission 0 1 1 0

9 LTR of I_ndemmty 0 5 5 0
for Duplicate
Issue of fresh

10 demand draft 0 3 3 0
TOTALS 0 48 48 0

There were no outstanding complaints as on March 31, 2011. No investor grievance remained unattended/pending
for more than 30 days and no request for share transfers and dematerialization received during the financial year was
pending for more than 30 days and 15 days respectively.

4] ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE
Your Company has in view of operational efficiency constituted a Functional Committee in the form of an Allotment
Committee with effect from 21st May 2010.

It was necessary to form, delegate and empower these committees in order to delegate various responsibilities of the
Directors for considering various matters like conversion of FCCBs, Preferential warrants conversion etc.

This committee meets for considering the above mentioned specific purposes and would also approve the same. This
would enable the Board to concentrate on its core functions. Meetings of the committee are held as and when the need
forthe same arises. The time schedule is decided in consultation with the Committee members and the Board members.
The Company's guidelines relating to Board Meetings are applicable to these Committee Meetings as far as may be
practicable.
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This Committee has the authority to engage external experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers appropriate
to assistinits work.

This committee shall submit a report to the Board after every meeting on the various matters considered and approved by
them for perusal and noting.

The main function of this Committee are to consider the viability of the various offers for allotment of shares either through
private equity, conversion of warrants or conversion of FCCBs etc. It also considered the issue of compulsorily
convertible debentures done to HT Media in the month of January 2011. The main constituents of this committee are:

Dr. P Sekhar - Chairman
Ms. Jayanthi S.- Member
Mr. A.R. Kale - Member

Mr. Vijay Bhatia was one of the founding members of this committee however he has been replaced by Mr. A. R. Kale after
he joined the Board of Advisors of the Company. The allotment committee met five times during the year for considering
the various allotments that happened during the year. All the directors have attended all the meetings of this committee.

Meetings and attendance during the year

. Number of meetings Number of meetings
Name of the Director held during the year attended during the year
Dr. P Sekhar 4 4

Ms. Jayanthi S. 4 4

Mr. Vijay Bhatia

(Resigned wef Feb 5,2011) 4 4

Mr. A. R. Kale 4 4
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS (AGM)
Location, date and time of the Annual General Meeting held during the preceding 3 years are as follows:

TIRNCIAL | LocaTiON DATE TIME | SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED
5009-2010 EL 225, Micro 28th June 2010 9.30 AM | 1. Ratification of Re - appointment
Infotech Park, of Dr. P Sekhar as Chairman and
MIDC Electronic Managing Director
Zone, MAHAPE 2. Ratification of Re - Appointment
Navi Mumbai of Ms. Jayanthi Sekhar as
400709 Executive Director.
3. Authorisation under Section
372A of the Companies Act, 1956
4. Authorisation for QIP (Qualified
Institutional Placement)
5. Raising additional long term
funds.
1. Issue of 3300000 share
2008-09 EL-225, Micro 30th September 11.00 warrants on preferential basis to
Infotech Park, 2009 AM Promoter and non Promoter group
MIDC Electronic 2. Re -issue of 39100 Forfeited
Zone, MAHAPE shares to Dr. P Sekhar, Chairman
Navi Mumbai and Managing Director
400709 3. Increase in Borrowing Limits
upto Rs. 500 Cr u/s 293 (1) (d)
4. Increase in limits for creation of
Mortgage and charges
u/s293(1)(a)
2007-2008 | Hotel Abbott, | 29t September | 11.00 151) '”geafg in A“tho”;edzcap'ta'
Vashi 2008 AM Cr:(r)(r;ess. crores to Rs. 25

Generally, all the resolutions in the Annual General Meeting are passed by show of hands

The Chairman and Managing Director (CMD) and Four Independent Non- Executive Directors of your Company

attended the Annual General Meeting held on 28" June 2010.
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POSTALBALLOT DURING THE YEAR
1] Resolutions put through postal ballot during the year are as follows:

FINANCIAL YEAR DATE TIME SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED
ogh 4.00 issue of compulsorily convertible
2010 -2011 January PM debentures
2011

2] Procedure Followed For the Postal Ballot:

S.No. Particular Date

1 The Board meeting held to Approve the conduct of postal ballot for passing the
resolution for seeking approval of shareholders for issue of issue of Compulsorily 10.12.2010
Convertible Debentures through Postal Ballot documents, Appointment of the
Scrutinizer, Approval of the calendar of events.

2 A copy of the Board Resolution along with the calendar of events forwarded to the 17.12.2010
Registrar of Companies Within one week of the Board Meeting. o

3 Print Notice,postal ballot forms and arrange for selfaddressed envelopes (bearing 22129010
the name and address of the Scrutinizer), address slips, etc. o

4 Despatch of Postal Ballot Notices and Forms completed 24.12.9010

5 Release of Advertisement in newspapers giving the date of completing of dispatch 57 122010
of the Notice and the last date for receipt of postal ballot forms from the o
shareholders.

6 Last date for receipt of postal ballot forms. 25.01.2011

7 Preparation of Scrutinizer's Report and submission of the same to the Chairman by | 28.01.2011
the Scrutinizer,

8 Declaration of results. 28.01.2011
9 Result Announced to the Stock Exchanges and other authorities 29.01.2011
DISCLOSURES

Materially significant related party transactions which may have a potential conflict with the interests of company
at large:

During the year 2010-11, No transactions of material value had been entered into by your Company with promoters or
Directors or Management, their subsidiaries or their relatives neither had any potential conflict with the interests of your
Company.

Transactions entered into with related parties have been already disclosed in this chapter.

Details of non compliance by your Company, penalties, strictures imposed on Your Company by stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last three
years

Your Company has complied with the requirements of the stock Exchanges.
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy whereby no person has been denied access to the Audit Committee
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

In accordance with Clause 54 of the Listing Agreement, the Company has maintained a functional website at
www.microtechnologies.net containing basic information about the Company viz., details of its business, financial
information, shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate governance, contact information of the designated
officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances, etc. The contents of the
said website are updated from time to time.

The financial results are published in the following newspapers — Economic Times, Free Press Journal and Navshakti
Times and also displayed on the Company's website for the benefit of the public at large.

Further, the Company disseminates to the Stock Exchanges (i.e. BSE and NSE), wherein its equity shares are listed,
all mandatory information and price sensitive/ such other information, which in its opinion, are material and/or have a
bearing on its performance/operations and issues press releases, wherever necessary, for the information of the
public at large. For the benefit of the shareholders, a separate email id has been created for shareholder
correspondence viz., enquiry@microtechnologies.net and investors@microtechnologies.net

DISCLOSURE UNDER CLAUSE 53 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT REGARDING CERTAIN AGREEMENTS
WITH THE MEDIA COMPANIES:

The Company has entered into a Debenture Subscription Agreement for Fully Convertible Debentures worth Rs. Twenty Crores
with M/s HT Media Limited on 17" December 2010.
Further it has also entered into an advertising agreement with M/s HT Media for an amount of Rs. Ten crores.

CORPFILING

As per the requirements of Clause 51 of the Listing Agreement, all the data relating to quarterly financial results,
shareholding pattern, etc., are electronically filed on the Corporate Filing and Dissemination System (CFDS) portal
'www.corpfiling.co.in' within the timeframe prescribed in this regard.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

FORTHCOMING AGM

19" Annual General Meeting

Date : 28" June,?2011.

Time : 9.30a.m.

Venue : EL-225, FUTECH PARK, TTC INDUSTRIAL AREA, MIDC, MAHAPE, NAVI MUMBAI -400 709

Tentative schedule Board Meeting Schedule
Unaudited first quarter financial results First half of August,2011
Unaudited second quarter financial results First half of November,2011
Unaudited third quarter financial results First half of February,2012
Unaudited fourth quarter financial results First half of May, 2012

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March Second half of September, 2012
31,2012

BOOK CLOSURE DATES FOR THE PURPOSE OF DIVIDEND

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of your Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 21st Day of
June, to Tuesday, 28th day of June, 2011, both days inclusive, for the purpose of annual general meeting and
payment of dividend declared.

DATE OF DIVIDEND PAYMENT

The payment of dividend, upon declaration by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, will be

made on or before 28" day of July, 2011.

a) To all those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic form, as per the ownership data made available to
your Company by National Securities Depository Services Limited [NSDL] and /or Central Depository Services
[India] Limited [CDSL] as of the end-of-the-day on 20" day of June, 2011and.

b) To allthose shareholders holding shares in physical form, after giving effect to all the valid share transfers lodge
with your Company on or before the closing hours on 20" day of June, 2011.
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LISTING ON STOCKEXCHANGES

Your Company's securities are listed on the following stock exchanges:-

Equity Shares

Global Depository Receipts

Foreign Currency

(GDRs) Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited Luxeg(gc]) :rr]% s tock Smgagﬁgiﬁxgy ge.
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Société de la Bourse de #1900 -
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001 Luxembourg S.A. SGX Centre 1
B.P 165,L 2011 - Singapore 068804
Luxembourg.

Exchange Plaza,
Plot no. C/1, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E)
Mumbai 400 051.

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the year 2011-12to BSE and NSE.
The Company has paid custodial fees for the year 2011-12 to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL}, on the basis of number of beneficial accounts

maintained by them as on 31:March, 2011

STOCK CODE:
Stock Exchange Code
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 532494
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd MICROTECH
ISIN number for equity shares INE358B01012

STOCK MARKET DATA

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) National Stock Exchange (NSE)

Monthly High price Low price High price Low price
April 2010 209.00 182.65 210.00 184.6 0
May 2010 198.25 176.10 199.00 175.50
June 2010 195.25 185.00 195.85 185.20
July 2010 209.10 185.15 209.50 185.00
Aug 2010 20750 185.00 208.20 185.40
Sept 2010 228.60 189.05 229.50 189.20
Oct 2010 221.00 188.55 216.00 190.00
Nov 2010 214.95 163.55 212.70 163.05
Dec 2010 175.6 0 12990 176.00 145.30
Jan 2011 17250 136.05 172.50 135.05
Feb 2011 14460 111.00 144.25 110.10
March11 13590 11650 137.50 117.00
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SHARE PRICE ON BSE
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REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS
M/s Link Intime India Private Limited
C/13, Panalal Silk Mills Compound
L B S Marg, Bhandup {W), Mumbai- 400078
Tel No: (022) 26663838 FaxNo: (022) 25062691
Email: isrl@intimespectrum.com

The M/s Link Intime India Private Limited is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of M/s Micro Technologies India

Limited. All work relating to physical transfer, transmission, splitting of share certificates, dematerialisation and
rematerialisation is done by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.
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DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattern of shareholdings among various categories as on 31* March 2011 is as under:-

SHARE
SHARES OF SHAREHOLDERS | AMOUNT % OF

NOMINAL VALUE OF| NUMBER % (INRS.) [ EQUITY
1-- 5000 12748 | 89.05 156216130 10.93

5001 -- 10000 821 5.74 6589180 4.73

10001 - 20000 351 2.45 5302620 3.81
20001 - 30000 128 0.89 3346590 2.40
30001 -- 40000 66 0.46 2360620 1.70
40001 -- 50000 57 0.40 2668430 1.92
50001 -- 100000 82 0.57 5693180 4.09
1000071 - *wwwrsas 62 0.43 98019590 70.42
Total: 14315| 100.00 139196340 100.00

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2011.

No of shares % of
Code | Category held Holding
A PROMOTERS HOLDING
Indian Promoters
Individuals 3165837 22.75
Corporate Bodies 1592345 11.44
Sub -Total 4758182 34.19
NON PROMOTER HOLDING INSTITUTIONAL
B INVESTORS
Mutual Funds/UTI (Incl. Foreign Mutual Funds) 0 0
Flls 153850 1.10
Sub -Total 153850 1.10
C OTHERS
Bodies Corporate 4411594 31.69
Public 3956423 28.42
NRIs 244379 1.75
GDRs 3900 0.03
Others 391306 2.82
Sub -Total 9007602 64.71
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 13919634 100.00
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SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM AND THE SCHEME OF TRANSFER-CUM-DEMAT

Share transfers received by your Company are registered within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided the
documents are complete in all respects. As stipulated, an intimation in the form of an 'option letter' is sent to the
purchaser / transferee upon completion of the process of registration of transfer of shares. A shareholder who wishes
to exercise the option of direct dematerialisation of shares without taking the physical delivery can send the demat
request form as well as the option letter, duly signed and authenticated by the depository participant simultaneously
generating the electronic request within 30 days of the date of option letter. If this procedure is not followed within the
prescribed time, your Company will proceed to dispatch the share certificates, duly endorsed in favour of the
purchaser/transferee.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES
99.76%o0f your Company's paid up Equity Share Capital has been dematerialized up to March 31, 2011. Trading in
Equity Shares of your Company is permitted only in dematerialized form as per notification issued by SEBI.

OUTSTANDING GDRS:
Outstanding GDRS as on March 31, 2011 represent 3900 shares constituting 0.0355% of the paid up Equity share
capital of your Company.

OUTSTANDING FCCBS:
The number of FCCBs outstanding as on March 31,2011 are 120.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Investors and shareholders can correspond with the registered office of your Company at the following address:
Micro Technologies (India) Limited

46-C, Electronic Sadan No-1,

MIDC, TTC Industrial Area, Mahape,

Navi Mumbai—400705

Email: investors@microtechnologies.net
website: www.microtechnologies.net

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
This chapter, read together with the information given in the chapters entitled Management Discussion and Analysis
and Shareholder Information, constitute a detailed compliance report on Corporate Governance during 2010-11.

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has obtained the certificate from the auditors of your Company regarding compliance with the
provisions relating to corporate governance laid down in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the stock
exchanges. This report is annexed to the Directors' Report for the year 2010-11. This certificate will be sent to the
stock exchanges, along with the annual return to be filed by your Company.

GO-GREEN INITIATIVE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi ("MCA") has undertaken a "Green Initiative" in the field of Corporate
Governance by permitting paperless compliances by companies (vide its Circular No. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011
and Circular No.18/2011 dated April 29, 2011). Further the Ministry has also clarified that the service of documents by
a company can be made through electronic mode instead of sending the physical copy of the document(s). In
pursuance of the same, we take immense pleasure in informing you that your Company has, starting from this year,
initiated this Go-Green Programme by sending the soft copies of Annual Reports to the shareholders who have
already registered their email addresses with the Company’s R&TA — Link Intime. Further with a view to encourage
the same further, we request you to kindly register your email addresses with Link Intime for receiving soft copies of
the Annual Report instead ofthe printed copy.
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OTHER INFORMATION
Share Capital history since 1992

Date of No Of Nominal .
Security Description Allotment Shares Value | Premium
Subscribers to the memorandum 16-Sep-92 20 10.00 0.00
Additional Shares 8-May -96 480,000 10.00 0.00
Additional Shares 5-Dec-98 2,140,000 10.00 0.00
Bonus Issue (1:7) 5-Dec-99 374,270 10.00 0.00
Additional Shares 5-Jan-00 5,710 10.00 0.00
Private Placement 22-Feb-00 745,000 10.00 50.00
Private Placement 3-Mar-00 380,000 10.00 50.00
Public Issue 29-May-00 1,360,700 10.00 50.00
Forfeited Shares 1-Oct-02 (39,100) 10.00 0.00
Private Placement 12-Jan-05 2,325,000 10.00 56.00
Conversion of Warrants 31-Mar-05 400,000 10.00 56.00
Issue of shares underlying GDR 7-Dec-05 1,500,000 10.00 247.00
Conversion of Warrants 31-Mar-06 400,000 10.00 56.00
Conversion of Warrants 12-Jul-06 428,400 10.00 56.00
Crorerentall allotment of equlty 20-Jul-07 250,000 | 10.00 240.40
Conversion of Warrants 31-Mar-08 200,000 10.00 240.40
conversion of FCCBs 24-May-08 26,549 10.00 293.89
Conversion of Warrants 30-Mar-10 1,840,000 10.00 128.29
PBBRssion of 21-May-10 80,551 10.00 240.40
Conversion of FCCBs 6-Aug-10 209,432 10.00 240.40
Conversion of FCCBs 21-Aug-10 161,102 10.00 240.40
Conversion of Warrants 22-Sep-10 552,000 10.00 128.29
Conversion of warrants 15-Oct-10 100,000 10.00 128.29
Total 13,919,634
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION UNDER CLAUSE 49(V) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT:

To,

The Board of Directors,

Micro Technologies (India) Limited
Navi Mumbai

We, Ganapathy V, CEQ and Milind Mehta, CFO of Micro Technologies (India) Limited, (“Company”) hereby certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of the company for the year ended
31*March, 2011 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:

() these statements do notcontain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

(i) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the
yearwhich are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

{c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial
reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which | am aware and the steps we have taken or propose to
take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and to the Audit committee
(i) Significant changes ininternal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i)  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements; and

(i)  Instances of significant fraud of which | have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of

the management or an employee having a significant role in thecompany's internal
control system over financial reporting.

GanapathyV Milind Mehta
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date: 24" May, 2011

Declaration under Clause 49 (I) (d) (ii) of the Listing Agreement We, Ganapathy V, CEO and Milind Mehta ,CFO of
Micro Technologies (India) Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, declare that all the members
of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2011.

GanapathyV Milind Mehta
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPI.IANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members

Micro Technologies (India) Limited,
46-C, Electronic SadanNo.1,
Mahape,

Navi Mumbai 400705

We have examined the Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Micro Technologies (India) Limited for
the year ended 31st March, 2011, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with
the Stock Exchanges.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination as
carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance (as stipulated in Clause 49
of the Listing agreement) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to review the
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on financial statements of the Company.
We have conducted our review on the basis of the relevant records and documents maintained by the company and
furnished to us for the review, and the information and explanations given to us by the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in Clause49 of the above mentioned Listing
Agreements.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Makarand M. Joshi & Co
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Makarand Joshi
Partner

Membership No-5533

Navi Mumbai
Date: 24" May, 2011
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

MICRO MICRO
| SECURE
PARTICULARS soLUTIONS | RETAIL

LIMITED LIMITED

Financial year of the Subsidiary ended on 31.03.2011 31.03.2011

Date from which they became Subsidiary 25.10.2007 | 10.01.2008

Share of the subsidiary held by the company
as on 31st March, 2011

a) Number & face value 8020000 8150000

b) Extent of holding(%) 97.19% 99.96%

The net aggregate amount of the subsidiary companies Profit/(loss)
so far as it concerns the member of the holding company

a) Not dealt with in the holding company’s accounts

I} For the financial year
ended 31st March, 2011 195987572.16 [136116199.73

ii) Upto the previous
financial years of the
subsidiary company 145778816.77 |110987220.95

b) Dealt with in the holding company’s accounts

I} For the financial year

ended 31st March, 2011 NIL NIL
(i) For the previous financial year of the subsidiary company
since they become the holding company’s subsidiaries NIL NIL

(Note: the Company has passed a Board Resolution authorizing the Company for not attaching the accounts of the subsidiaries
u/s 212 of the Companies Act.A detailed note on the same is given in the Directors' Repori)

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. P. Sekhar Ms Jayanthi S.
Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director
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INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY:

(As required by the Central Government of India pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956)

MICRO SECURE SOLUTIONS LIMITED

:: Particulars As on March 31, 2011 | As on March 31, 2010
1 Share Capital 82527780 82500000
2 Reserves 483424552 290171642
3 Total Assets 762537099 421655989
4 Total Liabilities 762537099 421655989
5 De.talls ofIn vclastment (exlcc.ap’f in case 50000 Nil

of investment in the subsidiaries)
6 Turnover 1412801080 1079975316
7 Profit before taxation 267312929 184313648
8 Provision for taxation 65658878 33979713
9 Profit after taxation 201654051 150333935
10 Proposed Divi dend 8252778 8250000

MICRO RETAIL LIMITED

:;'. Particulars As on March 31, 2011 | As on March 31, 2010
1 Share Capital 81522730 81500000
2 Reserves 366766254 234121298
3 Total Assets 540560726 315645025
4 Total Liabilities 540560726 315645025
5 D etails of Investment (except in case Nil Nil

of investment in the subsidiaries)
6 Turnover 1502829946 1054967524
7 Profit before taxation 175054373 138175986
8 Provision for taxation 38883705 25108320
9 Profit after taxation 136170668 113067666
10 Proposed Dividend 4076137 4075000




ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11 } jﬂf Micro

Technologies
DIRECTOR’S REPORT J

Dear Shareholdears,

Your Directars are pleased to presant the Nineteanth Annual Report and the audited accounts for thae linancial year
ended March 31,2011

FINANCIALRESULTS
The financial pertotmance of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2011 Is summarized below,

(Amount in Million Rupeas)

Particulars S;ETEE?? Sgangg_aég?g Consolidated
Turnovar-Sales & Other Incomes 3759.81 312617 6015.93
Operating Profit 1267 .64 1263.55 1773.93
less: Depreciation & Interest B670.14 469.04 734.06
Profit before Tax(PBT) 597.5 794.51 1039.87
Provision for Tax-Current year 129.09 141.50 22375
Provision for Tax-Deferred tax 2583 16.63 34.26
Income Tax for earlier years 1.15 0.00 2.60
Net profit before Minarity Interest 44143 636.38 779.26
Less: Minority Interest 0 0 2.76
Met Profit after Minority Interest 441 43 636.38 776.5
palance of Profit from previous year 2194.71 1636.23 2536.18
Amount Available for Appropriation 2636.14 2272.61 331267
Transferred to General Reserve 33.11 47.73 3815
Proposed Dividend 27.84 2579 4017
Dividend Tax 4.62 4.38 6.67
Balance Carried to balance Sheet 2570.57 219471 322768

(" Figures are rounded off to the nearest decimal)




REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

You would be pleased to note that your Company has achieved significant growth during the last financial year.

On a standalone basis, your Company achieved Total Income of Rs. 3759.80 million during the year under report as
against Rs. 3126.17 million during the previous year, representing an increase of 20.19%. The Net Profit After Tax stood at
Rs. 441.43 million compared to Rs. 636.38 million in the previous year.

On a consolidated basis, your Company achieved Total Income of Rs. 6015.92 million during the year under the report
and Net Profit After Tax stood at Rs. 776.49 million.

Overall, 2010-11 has been a very satisfying year. Your Company emerged stronger out of the global economic downturn
as it stayed close to its customers and helped them in the recovery process. The Company was aggressive in its quest for
new contracts, executed on its full services strategy and maintained pricing discipline. This helped to deliver 20.19%
revenue growth for the year along with overall performance.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have recommended a dividend of Rs. 2 per Equity Share @ 20%o0f the Equity share capital (last year Rs. 2
per Equity Share @ 20%) for the financial year ended March 31st, 2011 subject to approval by shareholders at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend will be paid to members whose names appear in the Register of Members
ason June, 2011; inrespect of shares held in dematerialized form, it will be paid to members whose names are furnished
by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited as beneficial owners as on that
date.

The dividend pay out for the year under review has been formulated, keeping in view your Company's need for capital for
its growth plans and the intent to finance such plans through internal accruals to the maximum.

DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 read with
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 made thereunder.

SUBSIDIARIES
Your Company has two subsidiaries viz; Micro Secure Solutions Limited and Micro Retail Limited incorporated in the year
2007 and 2008 respectively. Your Company holds more than 95% of the total equity share capital of these companies.

Further, in view of Company's increased presence in Australia, your Company has incorporated a Pty Ltd Company in the
Country of Australia by the name of Micro Technologies limited. Your Company holds a 45% stake in the equity of this
Company. The operations of this company are remotely controlled by Mr. Aditya S. the Chief Strategic Officer and a
Director inthis Australian Company.

Further, your Company has incorporated in the month of April 2011, a new Wholly owned Subsidiary and a branch office
in the tax free zone of Ras-Al-Khaimah in Dubai for better control and administration of the huge market potential in the
country of Dubai.

You would be further pleased to note that Your Company has very successfully launched the International Command
Control centre at its Mahape Office, Navi Mumbai. We plan to aggressively market the relatively new concept Not only in
the entire country but even have agood hold and brand name in the International Market. This centre has been set up
through a joint venture company formed with 50-50 partnership with the Israeli Company M/s Hash Security Group.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Vinayak Hajare and Mr. Vijay Bhatia who have been associated with the Company since the past few years, have
resigned from the Board on May 21, 2010 and February 5, 2011 respectively. The Board appreciates the contribution
made by them during their tenure as director of the Company. Mr Mukund Gupta has been designated as an Executive
Director (*) with effect from 1% of April 2011. Dr. R.S Deshmukh and Prof. Paul Coleman who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers themself for reappointment at this ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your directors recommend their re-
appointment.
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A brief write-up on the directors seeking re-appointment on account of retirement by rotation and regularization has been
given inthis Annual Report under the heading 'Corporate Governance'.

(*)This is designated role but not enrolled on Board of Directorship
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS DURING THE YEAR:

1. Conversion of warrants:
On September 22, 2010, 5,52,000 equity shares and on 15th October 2010, 1,00,000 equity shares were allotted to
promoter group upon exercise of right of conversion of share warrants at a price of Rs. 138.29/-

2. Conversion of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB)

On May 21 2010, 80,551 equity shares were allotted pursuant to conversion of 5 bonds of FCCB, On  August 6, 2010,
209,432 equity shares were allotted pursuant to conversion of 13 bonds of FCCB and on August 21, 2010, 161,102
equity shares were allotted pursuantto conversion of 10 bonds of FCCB of USD 100000/- each.

3. Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP)

Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) includes both tangible and intangible assets including Advances and payments of Rs.
93.79 Cr. The part of the project is the purchase of a land worth Rs.25 Cr for future expansion. The Expenditure incurred
are Preliminary in nature and the same would be capitalized after establishing the commercial viability of the project and
would be allocated project wise). They include preliminary environmental monitoring and engineering work, costs
associated with planning approval process for the land development and material purchase. The Directors are of the
opinion that the proposed land development will be financed and that it is probable that the project will proceed to
completion. If the project were not probable, this would involve the expensing of a substantial proportion of the Rs. 25 Cr
included in capital work in progress at 31 March 2011 through the profit and loss. The part of the CWIP worth Rs.68.79 Cr.
involves proceedings towards development of modules to be made into the future products as per the ongoing projects.

The Directors have considered the probability of the project proceeding by assessing the commercial viability of the
project, the expectation of obtaining finance and the requirements of the regulatory processes

Some facilities / assets do remain idle for some time due to technical or economical reason. Sometimes it requires
considerable time to bring the assets for its intended use. However, Idle assets no longer required, are expensed after
proper scrutiny atthe year end.

4.Loan and Advances

Your company has targeted high growth sectors such as infrastructure & logistics, Oil and Gas , telecommunication,
education, rural Informatics, for this we have developed and enhanced our product line, Considering the pipeline of
good business opportunity and for the brand promotion ,we have given Rs.80.71 Cr in this year as Advance to Supplier
for Critical EQuipments and Components which are required for the integration of the Products. Also your company has
given Rs. 10 Cr as Advance for Marketing and Brand Promotion to HT Media considering its plan to penetrate the Indian
and international Market.

We have a Strong Relationship with our Suppliers and also hope to create same relationship in new marketplace over
wide geographies.

No individual loan or advance has terms and conditions that materially affect the amount, timing or certainty of the

consolidated cash flows of the Group.
Directors believe in same philosophy of mutual understanding and support to conquer the market together. They believe

in equal growth of company, Investors and Partners (Supplier, Franchisee) together. None should be felt left behind. We
believe inidea of growing as a family rather individually.

5. Human Resources Development

Your company's human resource strategies and practices are designed to ensure that they integrate with and support the
corporate business strategies of your Company. The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation of the contribution
made by all employees in ensuring high level of performance and growth during the year.

6. Extraordinary General Meeting
Your Company has not convened any Extra-ordinary General Meeting during this period from the last AGM.
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7. Postal Ballot
Your Company has convened Postal Ballot for issue of compulsorily convertible debentures
and the result for the same was declared on 28" January 2011.

8. Delisting/Fresh listing of Securities

The shares of your company will continue to be listed on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE) and The National Stock
exchange (NSE), which has nation-wide trading terminals and, therefore, provides full liquidity to the investors.

The Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) issued by your Company during the year are listed with Luxembourg Stock
Exchange, (LSE), Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB's) issued by your Company are listed with Singapore
Stock Exchange, (SGX).

The details regarding Conversion of FCCB to be mentioned

9. Directors' Responsibility Statement

As required by sub-section (2AA) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors state:

(a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) That the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of your Company for the period;

(c) That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

(d) That the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

10. Consolidated Financial Statements

In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements read with Accounting
Standard AS-23 on Accounting for Investments in Associates, the audited Consolidated Financial Statements are
provided in the Annual Report.

PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT

As per Section 212 (8) of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company vide a Board Resolution passed on 24th March, 2011
has been exempted attach the Directors' Report, Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of our subsidiaries such as
an attachment as however we present the audited Consolidated Financial statements in the Annual Report. Accordingly,
the Annual Report does not contain the financial statements of these subsidiaries. We will make available the audited
annual accounts and related information of subsidiaries, where applicable, upon request by any of our investors, these
documents will also be available for inspection during business hours at our Registered Office in Mahape, Navi Mumbai,
Maharashtra and also at the Registered Office of the subsidiaries in Andheri, Mumbai Maharashtra.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Directors adhere to the
requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India's and the Stock Exchange's Corporate Governance
practices and have implemented all the stipulations prescribed. Your Company has implemented several best corporate
governance practices as prevalent globally. The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement forms part of the Annual Report.

The Company has engaged M/s Makarand M. Joshi & Co, a Practising Company Secretaries Firm, based in Navi
Mumbai to render advisory services and supervise the over all statutory compliances and adherence to corporate laws
within the secretarial function of the Company. They have had a rich and varied experience of past eleven years in the
areas of Statutory compliance services, Consultancy and services in aspects of Merger & acquisitions, takeover and
jointventures, due-diligence audit, public issue/private placement consultancy etc.

Further the Company has also engaged the world renowned Legal Consultants — LEGASIS, which stands for Legal
Systems and Integrated Solutions. Legasis is a process driven organization and stands apart from other LPO companies
because of its distinctive IT-enabled legal support services Legasis' core strength is in its ability to deliver value to law
firms and corporate counsel by leveraging the industry expertise and legal framework. They provide the following
services: Legal Research, Document Review, Contract Management, Legal & Regulatory Compliance Management,
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Due Diligence Support, IPR Support Services, Litigation Support, Document Management and Corporate Secretary
Services.

The company has engaged Ernst & Young Pvt. Ltd. w.e.f. Feb 2011, as an advisor on key identified indirect tax related
matters.

AUDITORS

The Auditors, M/s. K.M.Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Navi Mumbai have expressed their willingness for re-
appointment as auditors of your Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. A certificate from M/s K.M. Gupta &
Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai has also been received to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be
within the limits as prescribed under Section 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

The board recommends appointment of M/s. K.M. Gupta & Co. as auditors.

K. M. Gupta & Co. is a medium sized C.A. firm in the field of Audit and Taxation for more than 34 years. The firm has a
grueling, hardcore and penetrating experience in the areas of Accounting, Internal Audit, Management Audit, Statutory
Audit, Company law matters, Taxation — (Direct & Indirect). The firm has well qualified, well trained and highly motivated
man power.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors wish to express their appreciation of the continued co-operation and support of the Central and State
Governments, Bankers, Financial Institutions, Customers, Dealers, Suppliers, Consultants and all the shareholders. The
Directors also acknowledge and wish to thank for the hard work, dedication and commitment to all the employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr.P. Sekhar Ms Jayanthi S.
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director

Place : Navi Mumbai
Date : 24th May 2011
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Particulars as prescribed under section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of
continued Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988:

Conservation of energy and Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The operations of your company are not energy intensive. Your Company evaluates on an ongoing basis new
Technologies and Techniques to make infrastructure more energy efficient. Investments are made on a continuous basis
to reduce energy consumption.

The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo are contained in the notes to the accounts in schedule R. Your
Company continues to strive to improve its export earnings.

Development, Technology absorption, Adaptation and Innovation 5" February 2011

Your Company has continually invested into efforts for developing technologies and products for affordable and high end
security products. A number of products that were IT enabled security and messaging focused, was introduced during
the year and has been actively accepted by the global market. Your company has also partnered with the local
governments and corporate in developing products that addressed specific local needs.

Specific Areas in which Product Development is carried out by the Company

a. Security Group which focuses on developing latest products oriented towards security business. The products
include Fuel Monitoring system for consumption and usage of fuels in vehicle to Rs 11.5 Cr, ATM Security for ATM
monitoring and remotely controlling of electrical equipments amounting to Rs.15. Cr. An investment of Rs 15 Cr on
product development related to Australia specifically Lost Note Book Tracking System and Fleet Monitoring System.
Additional 7 Crwhere invested into development of Street Light Control System. Investment of 11 Cr on development
of product to efficiently monitor of Electricity Distribution points. Additional investment of 10 Cr was done for
combination of BTS vertical combined with sales territory management. These products incorporate the state of the
art technologies and also are built to perform under the rigorous conditions of extreme Indian and foreign
environments as certified by various testing laboratories such as ERTL (Electronic Research Testing Laboratories),
ARAI (Automotive Research Agency India), and CCOE (Chief Controller of Explosives) etc.

b. Messaging group which focuses on developing latest products oriented towards messaging business. The
investments are predominantly done on mobile based solutions Mobile Control System (Admin) 6.5 Cr, Swoosh or
Friend Finder Rs. 3 Cr for enhancing social engagement, Lets Go Together an application majorly developed to
derive benefit on car pooling for the Australian market was invested tothe tune of 10 Cr.

Benefits Derived From Product Development

As a result of the Company's Product Development activities, it has been able to retain its technological leadership,
achieve cost reduction and retain customer acceptance despite working capital constraints. Improving export business
with development of customer specific OTC (Over the Counter) Products. Your Company has achieved a brand image in
customer's perception as an innovative and Research oriented company.

Future Plan of Action

In line with the Product Development road map and to put the Division on a fast track, Micro Technology has entered into
agreements with a number of global technology companies in order to bring latest & appropriate technologies. These
products will drive the cost of security down by promoting mass multiplication.

Expansion of company's business based on product development in Israel and Australian market.

Your Company has entered into a licensing agreement with Kobian PTE Ltd in Singapore for development and
upgradation of technological products for International projects related to Asia and South East Asia.

To develop & encourage indigenous technology as a part of our cost effective product development strategy. Our
endeavor is to emphasize more on R& D to maintain our design superiority. Further investment in Development will be
planned as and when needed.
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Product Development Investments

Development Investments categorized under various research and development activities during the year amounted to
Rs. 88.53 Cr, which is 23.46 % of the turnover.

Director believe that the technological development undertaken shall yield commercial results over 6 useful lives hence
has been depreciated over six useful lives of the software modules. We estimate the useful life of our capitalized software
and amortize the value over that estimated life. If the actual useful life is shorter than our estimated useful life, we will
amortize the remaining book value over the remaining useful life or the asset may be deemed to be impaired and,
accordingly, a write-down of the value of the asset may be required.

The Directors have considered the probability of the project proceeding by assessing the commercial viability of the
project, the expectation of obtaining finance and the requirements of the regulatory processes

Fixed Asset Valuation:

During the year under review, your company has upgraded the technologies and accordingly procured the latest new /
upgraded version. It has aided your company to upgrade the product versions and also to develop new product lines
enabling it to increase its market penetration. Furthermore, your company has increased / improved the economic
valuation, through vertical integration of modules enabling an efficient turnaround time of newer product technologies.
Considering the optimum maximum utilization of its assets and to keep the technology upgraded, certain depreciable
assets have been replaced and restructured with better and newer technologies to rip off higher economic benefits and
quicker commercial results.

To match with these new and improved versions of technology, your company has restructured  its uneconomical assets
by replacing it with economical one.

Particulars of Employees

The information required under provisions of sub-section (2A) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with
Companies (Disclosures Of Particulars In The Report Of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 and, forming part of the reports
annexed hereto.

Employees employed throughout the financial year and in receipt of the remuneration exceeding Rs.24,00,000/- p.a.
Maharashtra and also at the Registered Office of the subsidiaries in Andheri, Mumbai Maharashtra.

- Remuneration Date of
Sr. Name, Designation/ received (Rs.) Commencem Last
Qualifications and| Nature of - f
No |~ age (in Y Duti During year ended ent o Employment
ge (in Years) uties 21.03.11 Employment
Gross Net
1 gr. IESlekhard Chairman and From Director of
achelor an i .
Masters Degree in ’I;)Ai?:;%? 9 60,98,400 44.51,542 Incorporation ;_St r? oftlwareP K
Science and a PhD echnology Far
in Solid State
Electronics and
Nuclear Physics.
(Chairman &
Managing Director)
57 years
2 | Mrs. Jayanthi S. Executive 3049 200 23.47 636 From NA
Master Degree in | Director T Y Incorporation
Economics
(Executive Director)
50 years
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. P. Sekhar Ms Jayanthi S
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director

Place : Navi Mumbai.
Date :24" May, 2011
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AMNLIAL REPORT 2010-11

AUDITORS’ REPORT |

To the Members
MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

1 We heve pudipd the attachen Baance Sheet of MICAO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
{"the Compary 85 &l 31st March, 2011, the Prafit and Loss Accoun) and the Cash Flow Statarment far the
yEQI anded on date ennexed thereto. Thesa fingncial staternants ars the respongibility of the Company's
managemant. Qurresponsibily & 10 exprass an opinion on hese finanoial tatements bassd on |:.~r.|rns:{.ulilgmI

2. Wi condunied ow awdi In scoordance with audinng sianaaros genseraly accaoted M inda Thosa standands
require that we plan and perform the awdit 1o obtam reasonable asswance about whather the fmancial
atitamants ara frea of material misstatement. An audlf includes samining, on et batls. avidence supporting

‘The smaounts and the discloauras in the tinancial stafements. An audit also inchides assessing ihe account
principiee used and significant estimates made by Manageament, 88 well 88 evaltating the overall knanci
slatarmnar prosentation Wi balleve that o audil provicias s reasonabis besss for-our opinion.

a Ag required by the Companies (Audilore Raport) Oroer, 2003 sued by he Central Govessirmant af (ncia (n
terma of sub-section (44) of section 227 of the Compenies Aot, 1856, we enclose inthe Annexure a sigtement
o tha matters apeciiedin paragraphs 4 and S of the said oidor.

4. Furtharto ol comments [nthe dnnesure rofeifed 1o above, we popor that:
a) ‘Wa have oblained all the intormation and explanations, which to the best of our owiadne and beliet ware
necessany for the purposes of our auwdil;
B In e aginion, proper books of acoount &2 requanaa by law have been kepd by tha Company so.fal 85
appears fromn our eamanation of ihose booss;

¢) Tha Batance Sheat Profl end Loss Apcourd end Cash Flow Statemen| deall with by this repod e n
ggraaTment with the books of account;

d} In our opinan, the Balanca Shest, Profil and Loss Accoinl and Cash Flow Statement daall with by ihis
repor comply wilh the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C) of sechon 211 of 1he
Companies Act, 1856,

&) On e basis of written representations received from the directars. 85 on 318! March, 2011 and taken on

- renord by the Board of Directors, we repaort that nona of the directors is-disqualified &s on 318t March, 20711
from being appointad aa adirector in lerms of Sechon 274{1) (@) of the Comparuea Act, 1856;

fi  tnowr opinion ant to the best of our information and acoording ™ the explanations given to us, he sad
accourl read togeiher with Signiicant Accounting Policies and notes theraan, give the infarmation required
by the Companses Act, 1858, in the manner so required and give 8 trus and fair view I conformity with the
acroding principles ganerally accaphac in indke,

Il inthecaseofihe Balance Shest, of the state of affgirs of the Lompary &5 at 315t Maroh, 2011
i) inihecassof the Profiland Loss Accourt, of the profit for the yaes andad on that dale and

i) inthe case of ibe Cash Fiow Staterren|, of the-cash Hiows for the year ended on that dets.

For K M Gupta & Co
Charterad Accountams

Kamal Agrawal

Partner

Membership No - 058748
Firm Reg No. 308107E

Place; Navi Mumbai
Dated: 24th May, 2011



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in the paragraph 3 of our report of even date to the Members of Micro Technologies (India) Limited on the
account for the year ended 31st March, 2011.

1.

Inrespect of its fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals which in our opinion, is
reasonable having regards to the size of the company. The discrepancies noticed on such verification were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the books of Account.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not disposed off a
substantial part of its fixed assets during the year and the going concern status of the Company is not affected.

Inrespect of inventories:

a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable
intervals.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedure of physical verification
of inventories followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
the nature of its business.

c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records of its inventories and the discrepancies noticed on such physical verification between physical stock and
book records were not material and have been adequately dealt with in the books of account.

a) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties listed in the
Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. As the company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,
paragraph (iii)(b), (c) and (d) of the Order, are not applicable.

b) The company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties listed in the
Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. As the company has not taken any loans,
secured or unsecured, from parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,
paragraphs (iii}(f) and (g) of the Order, are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business with regard to purchases of
inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed
any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control systems:

In respect of particulars of contracts or arrangements and transactions entered in the register maintained in
pursuance of Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956:

a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations givento us, particulars
of contracts or arrangements that needed to be entered into the register have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regards to the fact that the
items purchased/sold, services rendered/received are of a special nature and suitable alternate sources do not
exists for obtaining comparative quotation, the transactions made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements
entered into the register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act and exceeding the value of Rupees Five Lakhs in
respect of any party during the year, have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prices at
which the transactions for similar goods/ services have been made with other parties.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of section 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules frame there under.

In our opinion the internal audit functions carried out during the year was commensurate with the size of the company
and nature of its business.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of Cost Records under Section 209 (1) (d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the activities carried out by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues:
a) The Company during the year have been generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Value Added Tax,
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

Central Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues except
for Advance Tax

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
aforesaid, were in arrears, as at 31 March 2011., for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and has not incurred cash
losses during the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given by management, we are of
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances on the
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities and hence, the question of
maintenance of adequate records for this purpose does not arrive.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company is not a chit fund / nidhi /
mutual benefit fund or society. Therefore the provisions of clause (xiii) of paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations give to us, the Company is not a dealer or trader in
shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the order are not
applicable tothe Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations give to us, the company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us in our opinion,
term loans availed by the company were, prima facie, applied by the company during the year for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

On the basis of an overall examination of the balance sheet of the company, in our opinion and according to the
information and explanation given to us, there are no funds raised on short-term basis which have been used for
long-term investments and vice versa.

The Company has made preferential allotment of shares/warrants to parties and companies covered in the register
maintained u/s 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year. In our opinion, prices at which shares have been
issued is not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us, the company has issued fully
convertible debentures which would be converted into equity shares after the end of one year from the date of issue
of debentures at the prevailing market price. As per the agreement entered with the debenture holders no security or
charge inrespectthereofis required to be created.

The company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported during the period,
nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

For KM Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Kamal Agrawal

Partner

Membership No - 058748
Firm Reg.No. 309107E

Place: Navi Mumbai
Dated: 24" May, 2011
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE | , ASAT 3105 0
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital A 139,196,340 128,165,490
Convertible Equity Share Warrants 14,105,580 36,646,850
Fully Convertible Debentures 200,000,000 -
Reserves & Surplus 4,064,897,641 3,463,541,459
LOAN FUNDS B 4,418,199,561 3,628,353,799
Secured Loans C 792,817,479 445,075,236
Unsecured Loans D 1,082,583,273 989,406,210
1,875,400,752 1,434,481,446
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 64,129,730 38,304,203
TOTAL 6,357,730,043 5,101,139,448
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS E
Gross Block 2,794,904,966 2,760,066,867
Less : Depreciation & Amortisation 805,492,340 888,861,803
Net Block 1,989,412,626 1,871,205,064
Capital Work-in-Progress including Capital Advances 937,938,345 653,971,545
2,927,350,971 2,525,176,609
INVESTMENTS F 414,806,800 331,006,800
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories G 778,399,317 700,548,172
Sundry Debtors H 1,479,780,774 1,166,589,620
Cash & Bank Balances I 473,829,023 416,296,214
Loans & Advances J 807,157,833 418,604,514
3,539,166,947 2,702,038,520
Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities K 442,086,392 313,753,830
Provisions L 81,508,283 143,328,651
523,594,675 457,082,481
NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,015,572,272 2,244,956,039
TOTAL 6,357,730,043 5,101,139.448
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts R
As per our Audit Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For KM Gupta & Co Dr.RSEKHAR
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
KAMAL AGRAWAL
Partner
Membership No. 058748
Firm Reg.No. 309107E
Ms SUDIPTA V. Ms JAYANTHI S.
Navi Mumbai, 24" May, 2011 Company Secretary Executive Director
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS SCHEDULE 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
INCOME
Income from Operations M 3,742,929,121 3,102,240,613
Other Income N 16,878,964 23,934,207
3,759,808,085 3,126,174,820
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Sales 2,052,860,025 1,5674,412,992
Personnel Cost 78,168,973 111,694,317
Administrative & Other Expenses 0 314,771,180 125,295,618
Selling & Distribution Expenses P 46,367,106 51,226,376
2,492,167,284 1,862,629,303
Operating Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 1,267,640,801 1,263,545,517
Interest & Finance Charges Q 152,812,452 85,348,498
Depreciation & Amortisation 517,326,822 383,690,520
Profit before Taxation 597,501,527 794,506,499
Provision for Taxation
Current Tax 129,085,042 141,500,000
Deferred Tax 25,825,529 16,622,526
Income Tax for Earlier Years 1,157,983 -
Profit after Taxation 441,432,973 636,383,973
Balance in Profit & Loss Account brought forward 2,194,707,655 1,636,230,404
BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 2,636,140,628 2,272,614,377
Appropriations:
Proposed Dividend 27,839,268 25,794,200
Corporate Dividend Tax 4,623,754 4,383,724
Transferred to General Reserve 33,107,473 47,728,798
Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 2,570,570,133 2,194,707,655
2,636,140,628 2,272,614,377
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Equity shares of par value Rs 10/- each
Basic 32.81 57.92
Diluted 27.80 43.08
Number of Shares used in computing earning per share
Basic 13,455,931 10,986,631
Diluted 15,954,850 14,832,087
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts R
As per our Audit Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For KM Gupta & Co Dr.PSEKHAR
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
KAMAL AGRAWAL
Partner
Membership No. 058748
Firm Reg.No. 309107E
Ms SUDIPTA V. Ms JAYANTHI S.
Navi Mumbai, 24" May, 2011 Company Secretary Executive Director
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS

YEAR ENDED 31.03.2011

YEAR ENDED 31.03.2010

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before Tax and Extraordinary ltems
Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation

Loss on Discarding of Fixed Assets

Interest & Finance Charges Paid

Dividend Income

Provision for diminution in value of investments written back
Provision for Gratuity

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments For :

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables

Cash Generated from Operations

Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Sales of Investment

Sale of Fixed Assets

Dividend Income

Purchase of Investment

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

517,326,822
249,794,521
152,812,452
(12,000,340)

1,088,579

597,501,527

909,022,034

383,690,520
85,348,498
(8,000,490)

(10,000,000)

4,000,000
322,724

794,506,499

455,361,252

1,506,523,561

1,249,867,751

(313,191,153)

(184,609,113)

(388,553,320) (230,752,571)
(77,851,145) (188,433,221)
128,203,613| (651,392,005) 76,161,395 | (527,633,510)
855,131,556 722,234,240
195,437,069 105,463,642
659,694,487 616,770,598
- 10,500,000
- 358,000
12,000,340 8,000,490
(83,800,000) (171,005,800)

(1,169,295,705)

(1,241,095,365)

(1,107,320,253)

(1,259,467,563)

(1,241,095,365)

(1,259,467,563)

Issue of Shares (Including Share Premium) 203,116,764 254,453,600

Issue of Share Warrant (22,541,270) 36,646,850

Issue of Fully Convertible Debentures 200,000,000 -

Proceeds from long term/short term borrowings 441,219,620 497,051,237

Interest & Finance Charges Paid (152,812,452) (8,53,48,498)

Dividend Paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax) (30,048,975)| 638,933,687 (12,635,373) 690,167,816
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 638,933,687 690,167,816
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 57,532,809 47,470,851
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 1st April, 2010 416,296,214 368,825,363
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2011 473,829,023 416,296,214
As per our Audit Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For KM Gupta & Co Dr.PSEKHAR
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
KAMAL AGRAWAL

Partner

Membership No. 058748

Firm Reg.No. 309107 Ms SUDIPTA V. Ms JAYANTHI S.
Navi Mumbali, 24" May, 2011 Company Secretary Executive Director
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE - A

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED:

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 250,000,000 250,000,000
250,000,000 250,000,000

ISSUED:

1,39,73,034 (PY.1,28,69,949) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 139,730,340 128,699,490
139,730,340 128,699,490

SUBSCRIBED:

1,39,58,734 (PY.1,28,55,649) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 139,587,340 128,556,490
139,587,340 128,556,490

PAID UP:

1,39,19,634 (PY.12,816,549) Equity shares of Rs 10/- each Fully paid 139,196,340 128,165,490
139,196,340 128,165,490

SCHEDULE -B

RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 79,374,700 17,528,000

Add: Forfeiture of Share Warrants - 61,651,200

Add: Forfeiture of Equity Share - 195,500

Closing Balance 79,374,700 79,374,700

Bond Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance - 103,405,942

Less: Transfered to Share Premium Reserve - 103,405,942

Closing Balance - -

Share Premium Reserve

Opening Balance 999,730,307 660,270,765

Add: Received during the year 192,085,914 236,053,600

Add: Transfered From Bond Redemption Reserve - 103,405,942

Closing Balance 1,191,816,221 999,730,307

General Reserve

Opening Balance 189,728,798 142,000,000

Add: Transfered from Profit & Loss Account 33,407,789 47,728,798

Closing Balance 223,136,587 189,728,798

Profit & Loss Account

2,570,570,133

2,194,707,655

4,064,897,641

3,463,541,459
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS

AS AT
31.03.2011

AS AT
31.03.2010

SCHEDULE-C

SECURED LOANS

Loans and Advances from Banks
Cash Credit\Overdraft from :

Axis Bank Ltd

Indusind Bank Ltd

State Bank of India

Industrial Development Bank of India

(The above loans are secured against Current Assets, entire Fixed
Assets and property situated at Mahape belonging to Micro Cloud
Computing Pvt. Ltd and corporate guarantee of Micro Associates
Consultancy (India) Pvt Ltd. & Micro Cloud Computing Pvt. Ltd and
personal guarantee of Directors Dr. P Sekhar and Ms Jayanthi S)

Vehicle Loan from :
HDFC Bank Lid
Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd

(The above loans are secured against mortgage of respective vehicles)

SCHEDULE -D

UNSECURED LOANS

From Banks

From Others:
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
Commercial Paper

SCHEDULE - F

INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments (at cost) :
In Equity

Quoted - (Non-Trade)

100 (RPY. 100) Equity Shares of Indian Overseas Bank of Rs 10/- each fully
paid up

[Market Value Rs.14,360/- (PY. Rs.9,195/- )]

Unquoted - (Trade)

In Subsidiary companies

80,20,000 (PY.80,00,000) Equity Shares of Micro Secure Solutions Limited
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

81,50,000 (PY.80,00,000) Equity Shares of Micro Retail Limited of Rs 10/-
each fully paid up

123,091,297
149,395,373
479,336,884

40,054,795

301,404
637,726

160,773,660
50,025,058
233,034,407

464,368
777,744

792,817,479

445,075,236

348,503,273

484,080,000
250,000,000

142,074,210

597,332,000
250,000,000

1,082,583,273

989,406,210

1,000

88,800,000

155,000,000

1,000

80,000,000

80,000,000
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE - F (Contd.)

Others

1,99,802 Equity Shares of Ocean Distributors Pvt Ltd 40,741,625 40,741,625
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

1,70,045 Equity Shares of Sommelier India Pvt Ltd 53,564,175 53,564,175
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

1,30,000 Equity Shares of Sun Automation Services Ltd 76,700,000 76,700,000
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

414,806,800 331,006,800

SCHEDULE - G

INVENTORIES

(As taken, valued and certified by the management at lower of cost or

net realisable value)

Finished Goods 778,399,317 609,302,572
Work -In- Progress - 91,245,600

778,399,317 700,548,172

SCHEDULE -H
SLINDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured, Considered Good )

Outstanding for More than Six Months 245,809,049 85,616,169

Others

SCHEDULE - |

CASH & BANK BALANCES

Cash On Hand

Balance with Scheduled Bank

In Current Accounts

In Deposit Accounts

-Against Margin Money for LC / BG
-Others

SCHEDULE - J

LOANS & ADVANCES

Unsecured Considered Goods
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Deposits

1,233,971,725

1,080,973,451

1,479,780,774

1,166,589,620

509,297 851,990
10,986,497 304,407,980
52,228,631 1,833,225

410,104,598 109,203,019
473,829,023 416,296,214
604,402,636 412,237,244
202,755,197 6,367,270
807,157,833 418,604,514
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
PARTICULARS 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE - K
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors :
Against Acceptances 314,053,982 21,588,870
Others 57,994,715 248,032,308
Unclaimed Dividend 982,656 853,707
Other Liabilities 69,055,039 43,278,945
442,086,392 313,753,830
SCHEDULE -L
PROVISION
For Income Tax (Net of Taxes Paid) 43,956,682 109,150,727
For Proposed Dividend 27,839,268 25,794,200
For Dividend Tax 4,623,754 4,383,724
For Gratuity 5,088,579 4,000,000
81,508,283 143,328,651

73



¥90'G02'1/8'L | €08'198'888 | 9€G'G8I 02S'069'€8E |618'9GE'G0S | 298'990°09.°2 | 092'098 €80'6£1'099 | ¥¥O'¥62'001°C JedA snolAsld
¥90°602°128°}| 929°CLv'686°L| OVE‘26L'G08 | G82'969°009 | 228‘92E°LLS |€08°198°'888( 996'V06'V6.°C | 908°061°0S8 | S06°82€°G88 | 298°990°09.L°C lelop
8/8'/06'9 691°190'8 ¥20'962'C - 652'€SS Si8'erL'l £ve2'/6E'0L - 065'901'2 £69'062'8 SaIniX|4 % ainjuing
SONILLIH ? HNLINYNS
le.'6l9 leL'e9s 6/2'/€9 - 00025 6/2'08S 000'002'L - - 000'002'L syBiy AdoQ g 82UBIIT ‘MOY-MOLY
S¥9'vES'e 90v‘11G'C Giv'GLy - gzgs'eel £26'GEE 168'986'C - €82'911 896'0/8'2 suonejelsy| [edu1os|q
9G6/'9€0'y ¥¥8'029'c 80.70S°L - 216'G9¢ 96/'8EL'L 26G'6/1's - - 2GG'6/1's SIoIYsA
186'L06'2€8'| | 618'09F'Ov6'| | 28G'V8L'86L | G8C'969'009 | 10E'GLL'SIS |91G'G0.'€88 | IGE'1GE'SP.'e | 908'06¢'0S8 | 099'VE1L'628 | L6%'209'91L'C | Se/eMYOS @ sweisg sendwo)
6¥5'6/G'9 ¥gg'egl oL Gve'LLS'L - LEL'ECY 801L'PSL L 690°10L L1 - AR AVIES 159'62L'L sjuswidinb3 8210
AHINIHOVIN NV INV1d
0€E’'/81 68971 180'/12 - 169°Cl 99€E'¥02 969'16€ - - 969'16€ Sesiwald 89O
SONIang
Y02 L¥8'LL v0c'L¥8'LL - - - - Y02 L¥8'LL - - Y02 L¥8'LL aNV1 1OHaSVYa1
0102'E0’LE LLO2'E0’LE LLOZ'E0'LE | suondonpaq ( Suonippy | 0L02'¥0°L0| LLOZ'E0'LE suoponpeqg| Suonippvy 0102t0°1L0
uQ sy uQ sy uQ sy uQ sy uoQ sy uQ sy sie|naiyed
Jeop oyi Buung Je9p 9yl Buung
320|q 19N uoneisaidaq Jo} UoISIAOId )o0|g SS0JD
(seadny u1 junowy) S13SSV a3axid
3 - 3TNA3HOS

1102 HOHVIN 1SLE 1V SV 133HS FONVIVE 40 1HVd DNINHO4 STTINAIHOS
a3Ling (vIaND S3IDOTONHDIL OHIOIN

74



MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

{(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.2011 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE - M

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Sales of IT, Messaging & Security Products 3,699,780,386 3,099,888,513

Installation & Service Charges 43,148,735 2,352,100

SCHEDULE - N
OTHER INCOME

Interest on Fixed Deposit

Dividend Income

Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment written back
Miscellaneous Income

SCHEDULE - O

ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENSES
Office Expenses

Rent, Rates, Taxes
Postage, Telegram & Courier Charges
Printing & Stationery
Electricity Charges
Insurance Charges
Conveyance
Communication Expenses
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Charges
Repairs & Maintenance

Building / Premises

Plant & Machinery

Others
Membership Fees & Subscription
Security Charges
Professional & Consultancy Charges
Software Development Charges
Transport, Freight & Clearing Charges
Directors Sitting Fees
Payment to Auditors
Loss on Sale of Motor Car
Loss on Discarding of Fixed Assets
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net)

Prior Period Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses

3,742,929,121

3,102,240,613

2,572,426 5,674,938
12,000,340 8,000,490
- 10,000,000
2,306,198 258,779
16,878,964 23,934,207
2,409,144 1,902,680
391,098 1,617,058
2,341,906 2,346,097
4,343,561 4,395,124
1,057,839 1,090,606
1,473,242 1,288,093
1,047,984 1,721,505
5,810,333 3,767,535
1,615,403 1,454,564
369,507 82,523
737,996 594,577
2,914,971 1,499,850
1,860,845 1,318,019
432,622 675,544
11,747,063 18,923,759
4,063,578 3,219,702
402,392 150,835
36,000 104,000
910,300 650,000
- 322,724
249,794,521 -
17,476,844 75,425,162
2,408,360 2,071,509
1,125,671 674,152
314,771,180 125,295,618
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

{(Amount in Rupees)

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
RTICULAR
PARTICU S 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
SCHEDULES - P
SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Advertisement Expenses 40,158,924 48,016,516
Travelling, Lodging & Boarding Expenses 5,109,821 2,696,057
Business Promotion Expenses 414,098 513,803
Transportation Charges 684,263 -
46,367,106 51,226,376

SCHEDULE - Q
INTEREST & FINANCE CHARGES
On Fixed Period Loan 119,791 125,903
On Working Capital Loan 144,483,296 72,214,498
Others 8,209,365 13,008,097

152,812,452 85,348,498
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULE'R'

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT AND
LOSS ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31*MARCH, 2011

1. Nature of Operations

Your Company has successfully innovated more than 300 products through its strong base of Research and
Development in the field of Information technology encompassing both software and embedded. This positioning
has helped the company to expand its global foot print. Your company's, diverse product line covers industries
such as Oil & Gas, Banking, Logistics, Telecommunication, Infrastructure etc. to provide the much-needed
security, life Style and Support Systems and Web-based software. Company uses its strong relationship with
domestic and global business partners for market penetration and presence. Company has introduced newer
policies and strategies to facilitate development of newer products and have a faster go-to- market approach.

2. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost conventions, on accrual basis of
accounting to comply in all material respects, with the mandatory Accounting Standards as notified by the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as amended (the Rules') and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 (the Act’). The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and the
accounting policies not referred to otherwise are in conformity with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (Indian GAAP')

(b)Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the 'Indian GAAP' requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating
to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of incomes and
expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Differences between the actual
results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are known/ materialized.

(c)Fixed Assets

(I} Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes all
expenditure necessary to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

(i) Capital work-in-progress comprises advances paid to acquire fixed assets along with incidental expenses
incurred to acquire such fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

(d)Depreciation:
Depreciation is being provided on all tangible assets on “Straight Line Method” as per the rates and in the
manner prescribed in Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956.

(e) Amortization
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to
the assets will flow to enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. The Intangible assets are

recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment loss, if any.

77



(f) Impairment of Assets:
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment
loss is charged to profit & loss account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss if
any is recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable
amount.
(g) Foreign Currency Transactions:

() initial Recognition:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the original rate of exchange in force at the time, transactions
are affected.

(if) Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates as on the date of transaction.

(iii) Exchange Difference:
Exchange difference arising on the settlement or transactions of monetary items or on reporting date such
monetary items at rates differs from those at which they were initially recorded during the year or reported in

previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expense in the year inwhich they arise.

(h) Investment:

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as Current
Investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments.

Currentinvestments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis.

Long term investments including investment in subsidiaries are carried at Cost. Cost includes any incidental costs
incurred towards acquisition of said investment. However, provision if necessary for diminution in value is made to
recognize a decline other than the one temporary in nature.

(i) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

) Sale of Goods:

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards in respect of ownership of products are
transferred by the company. Sales are recorded net of Returns, Sales tax/ Value added tax and applicable trade
discounts and allowances.

i) Software Development and Licensing:

Revenue is primarily derived from sale of developed software and related services and from licensing of
the software products. Software sales are recognized only on customers' acceptance of delivery.

Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fixed-price maintenance contracts are recognized
proportionately over the period in which services are rendered.

iii) Interest:

Interest income is recognized on time proportionate basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.
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iv) Dividend:

Dividend income from investment is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established. Dividend
from subsidiary company declared after the year end till the adoption of account by board of directors, is
accounted during the year as required by Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.

v) Others:

Other revenue (including in respect of insurance or other claims or refunds, etc.) is accounted for in the year in
which the right to receive the payment is established.

(i) Expenditure:

The cost of software / hardware purchased / developed and incidental cost incurred for software development are
expensed during the year.

Cost of maintenance services for software developed is not provided for, even since in many of the related services
and licensing of software products do stipulate free maintenance as part of the contract. The maintenance
obligation are in the opinion of the management, not material in value and based on empirical experience, not
expected to crystallize in the near future and hence not provided for.
Cost of warranties is also not provided for in the context of its specific exclusion in terms with the customers.
Provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.
(k) Inventories:
Raw Materials, works-in-progress and finished/ traded goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
Self-developed software is valued at cost of development or at net realizable value, whichever is lower.
() Research & Development:
Revenue expenditure on Research & Development is expensed as and when incurred and Capital expenditure
incurred on Research & Development is added to the Cost of respective fixed assets.
(m)Employees Benefits:
(I) Provident Fund:
The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company makes monthly contribution at a specified
percentage of the covered employee's salary. The Company has no further obligation under the provident fund
plan beyond its monthly contribution.

(i) Gratuity:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on actuarial valuation and the required
provision is made as at the balance sheet date.

(n) Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the Acquisition, Construction or Production of qualifying assets are

capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.
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(o) Income Tax:
Tax expense for a year comprises of Current tax and Deferred tax.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, after taking into consideration,
the applicable deductions and exemptions admissible under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax
rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry
forward of losses under tax laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can berealised.

Deferred tax resulting from timing differences which originate during the tax holiday period but are expected to
reverse after such tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing differences originate using the
tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. At each balance sheet date, the
company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrealised deferred tax assets to the
extent it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient taxable income
will be available against which the deferred tax can be realised.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT, during the period that
MAT is permitted to be set off under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (specified period). In the year, in which the MAT
credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in the
guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), the said asset is created by way
of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same
at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlerment to the extent there is
no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the
specified period.

{p) Segment Reporting
Segment Reporting as per Accounting Standard 17: The Company operates solely in the Information
Technology Solutions Segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which the
products of the Company are sold.

(q) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent
liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to accounts. Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed inthe financial statements.

(r) Cash Flow Statement:

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the “Indirect Method” set out in Accounting Standard 3 on “Cash Flow
Statement” and presents the cash flows by Operating, Investing and Financing activities of the Company.
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3) NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:
(@) Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding guarantees given by bank in favour of various government

authorities and others are as under; (Amount in Rupees)
. For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2011 March 31,2010
t(?}léacr:%r;%epe:nglven by banks on behalf of 3,07,21,521 3.51.00.911
Total 3,07,21,521 3,51,09,911

(b) Prior period items include:- Expenses / Income related to previous year not provided for are separately
classified as prior period expenditure /income during the current year in accounts.

(c) In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of the current
assets, loans & advances, deposits, in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value stated in
Balance Sheet.

(d) Balances in respect of some of the debtors, creditors, advances and deposits are subject to confirmation.
(e) During the year, there has been no factoring of receivables. (Previous Year- Rs.10,20,82,480/-).
() Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds:

On 20" July, 2007 the Company issued 150 foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCB) of a face value of USD
100,000 each aggregating USD 15.0 million. As per the terms of the issue, the holders have an option to convert
FCCB in to equity shares at an initial conversion rate of Rs 312.84 per equity share at a fixed exchange rate
subject to certain price adjustment as per the terms of the issue. However as a result of terms of issue, the
conversion price as on date is Rs 250.40 per share. Further under certain conditions, the Company after July 20,
2010 but before July 21, 2012 has an option for earlier redemption of the bonds, in the whole, but not in part.
Unless previously converted or redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the Company will redeem these bonds
with a redemption premium of 7.75% (which is identical to the gross to the yield in case of redemption at
maturity) calculated on a semi-annual basis.

The FCCBs as detailed above are hybrid instruments with an option of conversion into specified number of
shares and an underlying foreign currency liability with redemption at a premium in the event of non conversion
at the end of the period. A number of factors would influence the conversion decision including movement in
the quoted price of the Company's shares, the rate of exchange, interest rates in the market, the growth in
financial performance and profitability of the Company and the performance of the industry in which the
Company operated, etc. In the opinion of the Company, the lesser number of conversions into equity sharesis a
temporary aberration due to the current economic conditions. The Company expects that the bond holders
would continue to opt for conversion rather than redemption and consequently no premium are expected to be
payable and therefore, the same is not provided for.

For the reasons stated above, the FCCB liability in respect of 120 bonds (previous year 148 bonds) as at the
year end is continued to be considered as a non monetary liability in terms of Accounting Standard 11 (AS-11)
(Revised) “The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates” and accordingly the same is not restated at the
year end exchange rate.

(g) Provision for current tax is made taking into account the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred Tax
resulting from “Timing Difference” between book & taxable profit is accounted for using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted and subsequently enacted as on the balance sheet date. Major component of
Deferred Tax arising on account of temporary timing difference is as under:-
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[Amount In Augess)

paciculars ol o
Deterad Tax Liakilily

[epreciaton £,41,28,730 3,83, 04,208
Total 6,41,29,730 3,83,04,203

iy Burifig the year under rensss the Company Mas 1ased shol e loan of Bz 25,0000 000/ { Aupees Twaniy
Fiva Crores Only| thraugh 'Commarncial Fapar snd thersame & outstanding & on e dats of Balancs Shest.

() Asper lechnical evaluation done by e obmaary, cariam softwares were uneconormical fo use dus tn changesn
technology dnd hence whersno: supposed 1o give Liture economis berefit and net book Valup ofthess softwares
were charged off to peofit & Inss account durng he curment year valuing As 24,97 94,521/- If thess wers not
charged off to Profit & Loss sooouny, the profit would have been higher by the samea amount

(I FPirsuant to the provisions of Sections 2064 and 205C of the Companies Act, 1856, the dovidand which ramains
uriclaimedunpaid for 8 pariod of seven yaars o the date of ranster o the unpaid dividend scoount = requird
to be transfemed to the Imestor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Cantral Govermment.

The stamuss of dividend remainmg unclammed (& grvan hereunoar

— ¥ear | A i Flogessr
2003 2004 51,300
2004-2005 94,425
20052006 4.13,083
2006-2007 80,648
20072008 1,18,868
2008 2009 1,01,867
20052010 1.21 668

Total 0,82 658

A meven pedrs Heave not expirsd o dabs of bansfer 1o he unpaid dividend aeeount ihe amart s nol
required o be transtemed to Investor Education and Protection Fund [IEPF]

iki Thare ara no spacific ciaims from suppliers under mtarast on oetayed paymants coverad unoar Smad Scale &
Anclllary Act, 1993

(ll Tha company doss nol Nave any dues payibie o any micr, sral and mediem anarpieees as al Ihe yeer and.
The lderdificaion of he miceo, smeail & medium emerprises is based on management's knowledge of theiratatus:
I Compeny hag niot recalvid ary ntimalan fron the suppliers regaring their statue under lhe MSMELD Act
2008, Hence, dischosures, It any, relakng to amounts unpaid 68 at the year end. togefher with mierest peid /
Payaiie s recuines urcar e saic act have nal Paar glen,

{m) Payments to Auditors:

{Ermoginit in Rupoon)

S For the year ended |  For the year ended

| Particulars March31,2011 | March 31,2010

Statitory Audi Feas £,00,000 4.00,000

Tax At Feas 150,000 1, 00,000

Cerificason Fees 1 50,000 150,000
Total 8,000,000 6,50,000




{n) Directors’ Remuneration:

{mh“ﬂ“i
Salanes and Allowance 8,147 60O 83,168,000
“Commession 23,500,000 *6,74,31,583
Bitling Fees 36, 000 104000
Total 3,26,83600 7.57,51,583

*Tha abova commessionio Directors incliedes commission pald of B=z.1 9698 462 and FA=. 2,34 61 626 fof
previous yeses 2007-08 and 200809 a8 the sarme was nal provided loe of paid In the sarlle years: The
camputation of tha net profit in accordenca with Section 188 {1) and Section 340 of ihs Companies Act, 1956 is
&6 Undat:

:I!:. |!r!“ =
Profit for the year befora taxation as per P/L 59,7501 527 | T9,45,06498
Add:
Dirscior's Hemunaraton 81,47 600 A.316,000
Profif / (Loss) on the sale of Fixed Asseta | Invesiments {3.22.724)
Daprecialior as par Accounts 817328822 | 3B8,3880520
Commission Paid to Direciors’ 2,35,00,000 6,73,31,583
Logs;
Deprecialion as per Saction 350 of Companies Act, 1856 51,73.36822 38,3680,520
tet profit on which remunemsatonis payable 63,01 48,127 | BT 04,768,805
Maximum permissibls remuneration payable 6,30,14,913 | B,70.47 681
;H:::unurnl}nn {Imcluding commission ) paid for the curmant 9.96.47 50U 4,04 87465
mnnrmlnn {including commission | paid far (he previous = 4.3 50,088
Total remunerstion (Including commission) paid | 3,2847.600] 7,56,47,563
(o} Exponditure in Foreign Exchange {Amount in Rupess)
- i ot tha year enedodd | Far the year sndud
b Mmrch 31,2011 | Mareh 51,2010
Valus of Fripoi of Capiisl Eoode §.71.714,. 58 Gae B0 11,64 286
Value of impan of Purcheases 16,3031 2% 1T 4AF 215
Travaling Expermas 1558 557 f 43 603
Hank Charpos 245 BEE £.75.535
il Pald on PGS Bord g1.85918 38, 6, 20t
Total 1,87,94,91.222 1,77,78,07,538
ip} Value of Exports {Amaunt in Aupess)
Particulars ‘March 31,2011 arch 31,2010
Valig of Goods Exported 1,28,74 30,018 1,08,54 68,123
Total 1,28,74,30,016 1,08,54 68,123




{g) The yearsnd foresgn currency sxposuras that have nol been apacifically hadgiad by a derivaliveinstrumeant
or otherwise are given below:

Porliculers Am ot 31/02/2017 EL
— e = mﬁm, i M

B aiisedi i
! In fupees, I Rupess
Do LI5S0 115,597 648 51,2564 853 LS00 83 10,078 41,73.75.843
OwecssFom | usn 468 2,06.200 - -
Creditars Lsh 167 4AE (5 S6EI0 LISET 1.6T.50s T, A

{r} Employee Benelils

Musciosurs as required by Accountng Standard 15 (Mevised)on Employves Benafits:- inrespect of gratuity. 4
defned baneli sohems (Dagec on aoiuadial vatustion) are green besow -

Summury of sssumptions
Date of Valuation 31.03.2011
Ratirement age 60 Years
Altrition Rate 2%
Fulure Salary Rise 6%
Raie of Discounting 8.25%
Mortality Table LIC (1884596) Ulimate

The actuarizl value of gratuty as on 31 03.2011 calculated on the abowe sssumptiong works auf 0
Ra. 50, 88,678/ and the sama has baen provided in e books

{8} Dulalls of Capacities, Production and Slocks:

The-activity of the Company 1 1hat of software aevalopment, rardware & softwars IneQranon, OeveEomment o
iTralated sscurty products, F-commarce ant infamst serices, Cus o tha lechnicaliies mvolved of the

integration botwaan tha softwane and tha hardware, | s difficult 1o give the guantitatyve details of ebove ftems.
Thé closing stocks ag valusd and cartified by {he management ara 88 under

{Aumoend In Aupses)
: Particulars 201011 2000-10
Value of Cloging Stock 77.63.98.317/- 700548172/ -
Sale of Product! Software during the Yaar 3,74,29,29,121)- 310,22, 40,613/ -
{comprses of System (megration, Software
Product /Solution and Technical Services)

(t} Related Party Disclosures es per Accounting Standard - 18:
| Relama Partles:

1 SLBSIDHARY COMBANY
Kiorn Secwe Solutions Lemdesd
hicro Fatail Limited

(i) ASSOCIATED
Micro Assocates Conaultanoay (1) Privele Limitiea
Micra Capitals Private Limitad
Addon Automation Privats Limibed
Youlh Promociers Privale Limited

{iii) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Bir P Seknar - Chairman & Managng Disacto
Me. Juyanthi S - Exscutive Director



2 Transactons Detween e Company. and elated partes and the smius ol omsfendng balances ag at

March 31, 2011

tAmaunt o Rispons}

Particufars

Subsidiary Company

Associates

2001

200910

201811 | 200810

M1 | 200810,

Matire of Transact on:

Recapt againsl
Bhare Warmnt

3,75, 00, 00

29732350

10371750 | 68,14.500

Forteitum of
Corvertibds Warrarits

- | .79,81.600

ﬁdu@m Received
Bale of Goods

Bd BB 43 483

47 67,64,678 |

Putchasa of Goida

43751753

4,568,85,273

Sale of Sotware
Modiips

26,02, 34,508

10,3246, 700

Prafaremial lssue of
Shares

7 63,36,080

7 4R, TE.600

1,38.29,000

fjapdslt EJ-IJ!.EBEI'Id'iI"g

Outstanding Balances:

24.38,00,000

| 15.00,00.000 |

- 471,683,236 |

Outstancing towards
Purchess of Goods

N Ja0Es T

Recenvabie aganst
Sales of Goods

Sharp Warrard
Leposil
Advance Received

e ¥,06.,48,330

20,732,360

3A.57.250

5A5600. 585.500

[u)Segment Information:
1) Business Segment: The Company |2 pnmarnly engaged in the busingss of Inlormanon Technology

Sofution: Segment

1} Becgraphical Segmenl: The secondary reponing segrment for thi Company & geagraphical segmend
based on localkion ol customers, which a7e g5 ollows

Information for Secondary Segmants:

Fevenues frorm 5455490105 | 126 74.30.018 . 3,74,29,29,121

exdemal

customers fnef) | (201 67.74,490) | (1,08.54,66,123) 3.10.22.40,614 |
[nciuthing eale

af senioes)

Segment 32641 52,707 | ZEB67 18821 | 1.0630452,000 | BEB 1324718

e (147.17.86631) | (2500274502 | (1.40,61,61,008) | (5558221529 )

Flgures In brackete are for the Arevious year



{v)Eamings Per Share (EPS) s per Accounting Standard 20:

The Company meportz basic end diuled Eamings per Share (EFE) Inoaccordance with Accouning
Sandard 20 on Eamings per Share Basa EPS (s computsd by Ine net profil ar loes for the year by the

witighted average no of equity shares outetandging during the year

Basis of caloulation of Besis and Diluted earming per Eq

Lehy shisre s a8 under:

For the year ended | For the year ended

Baricohves March 312011 | March 31,2010
Profit Afier Tax (Rs. in Lacs) 4414.33 6363.84
Weighted average number of Equity Shares
- Basic 1.34,55.831 1,08,86.631
- DHluted 1.55,54.850 1.48,32,087
Mominal Value of Equity Shares (Re.) 10.00 10.00
Earning per Share (Rs )
- Basi 32.81 57,82
- Diiliilexd 27,80 43.08

{W)Previous year comparallves:

Prenioug yaar fgunss han been regrauped and reamanged whoaresr radumed toconfimm ithis yaars

clesaification

Az par our Audit Beport of even ome alfached For ang on cenall of me Boma

For K M Gupia & Co Dr.RSEKHAR
Chartered Accounlants Chaimman & Managing Dirsctor
KAMAL AGRAWAL
Pariner
Membership MNo. 058748
Firm FHeg Mo, 309107E

Ms SUDIPTA V. Ms JAYANTHI 5.
Mayl Mum=al, 247 May, 2011 Company Secietany Exmcutve Direcior
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ABSTRACT ]

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company's General Business Profile

Additional Intormetion as mauired under Part IV of Schedule Vi ko the Companes Asd, H058

Fesgiasimtion Datails: [LTaJoJaJulrie]mjijejefa Pl L [Ccld] & & & 5 & |
Fsagsi a1y P [eTRTET&ETET ] EaCnds [ T1101]

Haiinos ool (i fafaf-fofa]f .- Te[af1]k]
I Canital reiesd Surlng He pear [Aaound i Ba. Thousands)

Fubilo ssos AN N N | Figh lmsum CI L L L IRirey
Honus lsms LI [ [ [ [wf{v[e] Privetafecomants | | [ | JeE{3]<) @
i Dty b 1 [EjrlL] EmpoywesBins | | | | | [W]PjR [
Fiscsipls D Fian

FOCE Cormgesinn F 1 01 1 Je[lsit]wa]
i Posiion of Mehilisstun snd Oeplgment of Purnds (A i . Thosssmsis)

Tiplial Lsstiiing. [ETATETFTRTATHT ] ot st (e Al Fio] 0] |
Souroes of Funds

Pairlap Caplsl [riafa]tfe[e] [ } Resares B Swphis [ a TAJEJA BT [ 7] |
B! Lo FIeTeTalilel [ imsanradloes [ O B|A[E] S]] |
Darbarrmd lae ey [Erefefa]al T [ 1

Appheaiion of Fands N N

Pt Fluied Asmais. fziejejrla|lsle] | | e (#]1f+lafei8a| | |

b Cprmemyl Assein l3fal vt B18] Fla] | MiscowssssEspeniiive | B 1 1 LL1 F 0 T 1 |

A intend L

W Ferformamee of Company [Ameunt im Bs. Thousesmd]

Tamoveruding cifer Foors) [ETFT SB[ B[ 0] 0 iTomExpandiurs [ 2 4B 2] 1 [ 8] F] |
Frroafid emn balon [(ET YR T ] Jrhiiossabecwe] & | a] 9] 4] 8] 9 | ]
Bame Enming Pur Snam in As, (Al 2] 8] 71| Onidondfom (%o EoutyBhore] [T D[ W] |

{Figuas ok nppropridie bow + for B, | oy Loss)

vV Gonans Mumsa of thes Principal Prodiassieswenn of Cnmpang

Praduast Dipeneplion Mnrhetry af Comrputer Weorksiooue s Siatwon Serwere o
Dt Hyrthadin! Sofivans Pradiicis

Fem Co0a[TTG Cose) (g ]af 7] 1]
Produzs Descegnan [Sofwane Daswinnmarieshing el Corwersinn Sardoes |
B Cantin{ T Cone) [8]s5) 2] sa{sfal o]+l

As pai our Audit Hepon of even cale aiached For and on bahall of (e Board

For K M Gupla & Co Dr.RSEXHAR
Cheariered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director

KAMAL AGFAWAL
Pariner
Membership Mo, 058748
Firm Aeg Mo, 308107E
Ms SUDIPTA V. Ma JAYANTHI S.
Mewd Mumbial 247 May, 2011 Comparny Secratary Execitiva Director
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ANNLUIAL REPORT 2010-11

AUDITORS’ REPORT |

Ta the Board of the Directors of

MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Wi nave auciied the atiachec Conscicated Balance Shest of MICRO TECHNOLDGIES (INDIA) LIMITED (the
Company) and its subsidiares, MICRO SECURE SOLUTIONS LIMITED and MICRO RETAIL LIMITED (logether
relarred (o as "the Group®) as al 3181 March 2011, and the Consolidated Prolit & Loss Account and the Consolicated Cash
Flow Staternent for the year ended on that dete anrexed thereto. Thesa financial statermants are the responsibiliies of fhe
COMpany's managemant, Our responsibiily (s (o eorass an opnionon hese manckal stalernents based on ouraudit

We conducted our sudit in accordance with the audiing standards generally accepted m india. Those standards requare
ihat we plan and perform fhe audit 1o obiain reasonable assurance about whather tha linancial staternents are prepansd,
in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting framework generally accepied in india and-are free of
rmatatial misstatamant. An audid includes axamimng, on a tast basis, evicance supparting the amounts and sciosures in
the financigl staterments, An audt alzo mcludes assessing the accourting orinciples used and significant estimate made
by maragement, a5 wall as evaluating the overall fmancial stalemants presantation, Wi babave that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opirkcn

Wa repor thal the consolidated financial statamants have been prepared by he Group's manageman! in accordanca
with the requirements of Accourting Siandards [(AS) 21, Consoiidated Financial Statemenis, prescribed. by the
Companies [Acoounting Standards) Aules, 2006

O ihe basiz of mformanon and explanabon gven o us, and on consideration of the separate audit reponis on individual
audited fmancial statemants of the Company & (18 subsidiaries, inour opinion thal the consolidated financial statemanta
give atrue and fair viesw in conforméty with the accounting principles generaly accapted in India.

a} Incasa of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the corsolidatad siate of affairs of the Company and ite subsidiaries as
at 37st March 2011,

b) Incasa of the Consoidated Pralit and Loss Account, of the consolidated results of operations of tha Campany and is
subsidiaries for the yearenced on that date; snd

o) Incasa ol Ihe Consolidated Cash How Stalemant, of e conschtaied casn Nows of Me COmpany and 15 subDsEiangs
for the yearended on that date.

For KM Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Kamal Agrawal

Partner

Membership No—-058748
Firm Reg. No: 309107E
Place: Navi Mumbal
Dated: 24" May, 2011.



MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

{(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
SOQURCES OF FLINDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital A 139,196,340 128,165,490
Convertible Equity Share Warrants 14,105,580 36,646,850
Fully Convertible Debentures 200,000,000 -
Reserves & Surplus B 4.901,456,811 3.976,160,953
5,254,758,731 4,140,973,293
MINORITY INTEREST 15,982,147 15,673,446
LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans C 1,068,364,457 489,795,956
Unsecured Loans D 1,083,166,273 989,406,210
2,151,530,730 1,479,202,166
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 76,856,260 42,591,557
TOTAL 7,499,127,868 5,678,440,462
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS E
Gross Block 3,262,471,454 2,946,580,178
Less : Depreciation 859,759,510 906,909,167
Net Block 2,402,711,944 2,039,671,011
Capital Work-in-progress including capital advances 940,256,763 656,286,963
3,342,968,707 2,695,957,974
INVESTMENTS F 171,056,800 171,006,800
GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION 82,100,000 -
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories G 929,086,175 833,319,367
Sundry Debtors H 2,445,291,304 1,728,823,382
Cash & Bank Balances I 677,996,998 477,306,157
Loans & Advances J 958,295,257 567,529,552
5,010,669,734 3,606,978,458
Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities K 958,269,289 590,041,186
Provisions L 149,429,718 205,520,997
1,107.699.007 795,562,183
NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,902,970,727 2,811,416,275
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE M 31,634 59,413
(To the extent not written off/adjusted)
TOTAL 7,499,127,868 5,678,440,462
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts S
As per our Audit Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For KM Gupta & Co Dr.RSEKHAR
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
KAMAL AGRAWAL
Partner
Membership No. 058748
Firm Reg.No. 309107E
Ms SUDIPTA V. Ms JAYANTHI S.
Navi Mumbai, 24" May, 2011 Company Secretary Executive Director

89



MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
INCOME
Income from Operations N 5,997,676,249 4,591,809,705
Other Income (o] 18,250,682 24,515,156
6,015,926,931 4,616,324,861
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Sales 3,684,683,464 2,586,460,051
Personnel Cost 112,154,498 132,867,112
Administrative & Other Expenses P 342,612,424 171,463,220
Selling & Distribution Expenses Q 102,545,597 119,918,538
4,241,995,983 3,010,708,921
Operating Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 1,773,930,948 1,605,615,940
Interest & Finance Charges R 180,515,490 94,379,904
Depreciation & Amortisation 553,546,627 394,239,905
Profit before Taxation 1,039,868,830 1,116,996,132
Provision for Taxation
Current Tax 223,751,057 200,100,000
Deferred Tax 34,264,702 17,110,559
Income Tax for Earlier Years 2,595,378 -
Net Profit before minority interest 779,257,694 899,785,573
Less : Share of Minority Interest 2,764,058 6,309,136
Net Profit 776,493,635 893,476,437
Balance in Profit & Loss Account brought forward 2,5636,176,624 1,738,788,334
BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 3,312,670,259 2,632,264,771
Appropriations:-
Proposed Dividend 40,168,183 38,119,200
Corporate Dividend Tax 6,671,432 6,478,358
Transferred to General Reserve 38,148,824 51,490,589
Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 3,227,681,820 2,5636,176,624
3,312,670,259 2,632,264,771
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Equity shares of par value Rs 10/- each
Basic 57.71 81.90
Diluted 47.88 60.84
Number of Shares used in computing earning per share
Basic 13,455,931 10,986,631
Diluted 16,260,850 14,832,087
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts s
As per our Audit Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For K M Gupta & Co Dr.P,SEKHAR
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
KAMAL AGRAWAL
Partner
Membership No. 058748
Firm Reg.No. 309107E
Ms SUDIPTA V. Ms JAYANTHI S.
Navi Mumbai, 24" May, 2011 Company Secretary Executive Director
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2011

{(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

YEAR ENDED 31.03.2011

YEAR ENDED 31.03.2010

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit before Tax and Extraordinary Items
Adjustments for:

Depreciation & Amortisation

Loss on Discarding of Fixed Assets

Interest & Finance Charges Paid

Dividend Received

Provision for diminution in value of investments written back
Provision for Gratuity

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Preliminary Expenses Written off

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for:

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables

Cash Generated From Operations
Income Tax Paid
Net Cash From Operating Activities

. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Sales of Investment

Sale of Fixed Assets

Dividend Income

Purchase of Investment (Including subsidiaries share)
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

1,039,868,830

1,116,996,132

553,546,627 394,239,905
249,794,521 -
180,515,490 94,379,904
(12,000,340) (8,000,490)
- (10,000,000)
2,126,733 4,450,000
322,724
27,779 | 974,010,811 27,734 | 475,419,777
2,013,879,641 1,592,415,909
(716,467,922) (430,741,866)
(390,765,705) (207,909,285)
(95,766,808) (243,014,475)
368,009,153 | (834,901,282)| 217,405,270 | (664,260,356)
1,178,978,359 928,155,553
286,806,503 128,326,063
892,171,856 799,829,490
- 10,500,000
- 358,000
12,000,340 8,000,490
(83,850,000) (171,005,800)

(1,450,351,881)

(1,522,201,541)

(1,215,856,087)

(1,522,201,541)

(1,368,003,397)

(1,368,003,397)

Issue of Shares (Including Share Premium) 205,617,014 254,453,600
Issue of Share Warrant (22,541,270) 36,646,850
Issue of Fully Convertible Debentures 200,000,000 -
Proceeds from long term/short term borrowings 672,628,880 491,570,878
Interest & Finance Charges Paid (180,515,490) (94,379,904)
Dividend Paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax) (44,468,609) 830,720,525 (22,170,465) 666,120,959
Net Cash From Financing Activities 830,720,525 666,120,959
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 200,690,840 97,947,052
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 1st April 2010 477,306,158 379,359,106
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31st March 2011 677,996,998 477,306,158
As per our Audit Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For KM Gupta & Co Dr.P,SEKHAR
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
KAMAL AGRAWAL
Partner
Membership No. 058748
Firm Reg.No. 309107E

Ms SUDIPTA V. Ms JAYANTHI S.
Navi Mumbai, 24" May, 2011 Company Secretary Executive Director
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE - A

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED:

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 250,000,000 250,000,000
250,000,000 250,000,000

ISSUED:

1,39,73,034 (PY.1,28,69,949) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 139,730,340 128,699,490
139,730,340 128,699,490

SUBSCRIBED:

1,39,58,734 (PY.1,28,55,649) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 139,587,340 128,556,490
139,587,340 128,556,490

PAID UP:

1,39,19,634 (PY.1,28,16,549) Equity shares of Rs 10/- each Fully paid 139,196,340 128,165,490
139,196,340 128,165,490

SCHEDULE - B

RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 79,374,700 17,528,000

Add: Forfeiture of Share Warrants 61,651,200

Add: Forfeiture of Equity Share 195,500

Closing Balance 79,374,700 79,374,700

Bond Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance - 103,405,942

Add : Transferred to Bond Redemption Reserve -

Less: Transferred to Share Premium account - 108,405,942

Closing Balance — -

Share Premium Reserve

Opening Balance 1,170,730,307 792,270,765

Add: Received during the year 194,535,654 275,053,600

Add: Transferred From Bond Redemption Reserve - 103,405,942

Closing Balance

General Reserve

Opening Balance

Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss Account
Closing Balance

Less: Minority Interest in Reserve and Surplus
Profit & Loss Account

SCHEDULE -C

SECURED LOANS

Loans and Advances from Banks

Term Loan from Canara Bank

(Secured against project asset/ Leasehold property in Marol Industrial area,
Corporate Guarantee of Micro Technologies (India) Pvt Ltd. and Personal
Guarantee of Directors Dr.P Sekhar and Ms Jayanthi S)

1.365.265,961

1,170.730.307

193,490,589 142,000,000
38,449,140 51,490,589
231,939,729 193,490,589
2,805,399 3,611,266
3,227,681,820 2,536,176,624
4,901,456,811 3,976,160,953
10,619,000 14,639,420
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Cash Credit\Overdraft from :
Axis Bank Ltd 123,091,297 160,773,660
Indusind Bank Ltd 149,395,373 50,025,058
State Bank of India 479,336,884 233,034,407
Industrial Development Bank of India 40,054,795 -
(The above loans are secured against Current Assets, entire Fixed Assets and
property situated at Mahape belonging to Micro Cloud Computing Pvt. Ltd and
corporate guarantee of Micro Associates Consultancy (India) Pvt Ltd. and
personal guarantee of Directors Dr. P Sekhar and Ms Jayanthi S)
Canara Bank 173,836,345 30,081,299
(Secured against Stocks and Book Debts, Corporate Guarantee of Micro
Technologies (India) Ltd. and Personal Guarantee of Directors Dr.P Sekhar and
Mrs Jayanthi S)
Bank of India 91,091,634 -
(Secured against Company's entire current assets, movable and immovable
fixed assets of the Comapny, both present and future and corporate guarantee
of the holding company & Personal Guarantees of Directors Dr. P Sekhar & Ms
JayanthiS)
Vehicle Loan from :
HDFC Bank Ltd 301,404 464,368
Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid 637,725 777,744
(The above loans are secured against mortgage of respective vehicles)
1,068,364.,457 489,795,956
SCHEDULE -D
UNSECURED LOANS
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
From Banks 348,503,273 142,074,210
From Others:
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 484,080,000 597,332,000
Commercial Paper 250,000,000 250,000,000
Loan from Directors 583,000 -
1,083,166,273 989,406,210
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS

AS AT
31.03.2011

AS AT
31.03.2010

SCHEDULE - F

INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments (at cost) :

In Equity

Quoted - (Non-Trade)

100 (PY. 100) Equity Shares of Indian Overseas Bank
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

[Market Value Rs.14,360/- (PY. Rs.9,195/- )]

Unquoted - (Trade)

Others

1,99,802 Equity Shares of Ocean Distributors Pvt Ltd
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

1,70,045 Equity Shares of Sommelier India Pvt Ltd
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

1,30,000 Equity Shares of Sun Automation Services Ltd
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

5000 ( NIL) shares of Micro Hash Security Systems Private Limited
of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

SCHEDLULE - G

INVENTORIES

(As taken, valued and certified by the management at lower of cost or
net realisable value)

Finished Goods

Work -In- Progress

SCHEDULE -H

SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured, Considered Good )
Outstanding for More than Six Months

Others

SCHEDULE - |

CASH & BANK BALANCES

Cash On Hand

Balance with Scheduled Bank

In Current Accounts

In Deposit Accounts

-Against Margin Money for LC / BG
-Others

SCHEDULE - J

LOANS & ADVANCES

Unsecured Considered Goods
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Deposits

1,000

40,741,625

53,564,175

76,700,000

50,000

1,000

40,741,625

53,564,175

76,700,000

171,056,800

171,006,800

929,086,175

742,073,767
91,245,600

929,086,175

833,319,367

460,204,532
1,985,086,772

162,425,731
1,566,397,651

2,445,291,304

1,728,823,382

1,085,172 1,471,393
104,260,416 309,264,725
72,032,310 1,833,225
500,639,100 164,736,814
677,996,998 477,306,157
754,338,105 560,696,982
203,957,152 6,832,570
958,295,257 567,529,552

95




MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOL.IDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE -K

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors :

- Against Acceptances 571,173,121 21,588,870

- Others 203,133,548 456,344,133

Unclaimed Dividend 982,656 853,707

Other Liabilities 182,979,964 111,254,476
958,269,289 590,041,186

SCHEDULE - L

PROVISIONS

For Income Tax 96,013,370 156,473,439

For Proposed Dividend 40,168,183 38,119,200

For Dividend Tax 6,671,432 6,478,358

For Gratuity 6,576,733 4,450,000
149,429,718 205,520,997

SCHEDULE - M

MISCELLENEOUS EXPENDITURE

(To the extent not written off /adjusted)

Opening Balance 59,413 87,147

Less : Written off during the year 27,779 27,734

31,634 59,413
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MICRO TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE - N
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Sales of IT, Messaging & Security Products 5,963,991,100 4,589,457,605
Less Excise Duty 9,573,966 -
Installation & Service Charges 43,259,115 2,352,100
5,997,676,249 4,591,809,705
SCHEDULE -0
OTHER INCOME
Interest on Fixed Deposit 3,609,110 5,785,338
Dividend income 12,000,340 8,000,490
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment written back - 10,000,000
Miscellaneous Income 2,641,232 729,328
SCHEDULE - P 18,250,682 24,515,156
ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENSES
Office Expenses 2,953,196 2,569,482
Rent Rates, Taxes 1,758,058 2,843,318
Postage, Telegram & Courier Charges 3,722,212 3,117,565
Printing & Stationery 7,153,246 6,422,322
Electricity Charges 2,299,026 2,624,919
Insurance Charges 1,655,845 1,435,805
Conveyance 1,923,545 3,158,280
Communication Expenses 7,296,747 4,721,620
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Charges 4,397,828 3,607,741
Repairs & Maintenance
Building / Premises 592,927 173,999
Plant & Machinery 779,646 672,522
Others 3,125,863 1,740,747
Membership Fees & Subscription 2,758,896 1,541,509
Security Charges 1,484,175 1,544,254
Professional & Consultancy Charges 14,193,698 23,014,114
Software Development Charges 4,447,768 3,219,702
Transport, Freight & Clearing Charges 814,875 283,447
Directors Sitting Fees 50,000 165,000
Payment to Auditors 1,225,750 912,875
Loss on Sale of Motor Car - 322,724
Loss on Discarding of Fixed Assets 249,794,521 -
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net) 26,201,397 104,199,070
Preliminary Expenses Written off 27,779 27,734
Prior Period Expenses 2,539,882 2,229,355
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,415,539 915,117
SCHEDULE - Q
SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES 342,612,924 171,463,220
Advertisement Expenses 94,667,648 114,897,794
Travelling, Lodging & Boarding Expenses 6,588,836 3,692,862
Business Promotion Expenses 561,560 1,315,936
Transportation Charges 727,553 11,946
SCHEDULE - R 102,545,597 119,918,538
INTEREST & FINANCE CHARGES
On Fixed Period Loan 1,741,021 2,103,199
On Working Capital Loan 170,409,289 78,854,750
Others 8,365,180 13,421,955
180,515,490 94,379,904
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ANNLUIAL REPORT 2010-11

SCHEDULE ‘S’ |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES AND NOTES FORMING FART OF THE BALANGCE SHEET AND PROFTT AND
LOSS ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2011

1.

{=)
1)

i)

5)

&)

(B}

Nature ol Operations.

Your Compary has succassiuly innovaled more than 300 products (heough I8 strong base of Resaarch and
Developmend in the feld of Information technology encompassing both sofiware and embedded. This positioning
hes helped the company 1o expand its global Teot print, Your company's, diverse product line cavers indusiies such
as Ol & Gas, Banking, Logistics, Telecommunication. Infrastructure gic. to provide the much-needed security, |ife
Styie and Support Systeme and ‘Wab-based software, Company usss s strong relationghip with domestic and
global business partnars for markat penetrabion and presence. Company has infroduced newer policies and
sirateges to facilitate devalopment of newer products and have a faster go-to- market approach

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation ol Financial Statements:

e Consolidated Financial Stalements are prepared in sccordance with Acoounting Standard 21(A5-21)
"Consolidated Financlal Statements” lssued by The Insfitute of Charered Accountants of India (ICAL, These financial
slalements comprises MICRD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LUMITED (The Comparny) and its majority owrad &
controled subsidiares MICAO SECURE SOLUTIONS LIMITED & MICRO RETAIL LIMITED (Together refer to as "The
Group"), The financial statermants ol each of thase companies are prepared Using unifomm  acoounting
policies inaccordance with the generally acoeptad accounting principles in Indla.

The Consolidated Financlal Stalemants are prepared under the historcal cost conventions, on-accrual basis o
acooumting toocomply noall matenial respecis, with the mandatory accouwting standards g8 notifed by the
Companies {Accounling Standards) Rules. 2006 as amendad (the Rules) and the redevant provisions of he
companies Act 1956 (the Act), The eccouniing policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the
accounting podclos ot rafersed o othanwiss are In conformily with indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principlaes
(Indian GAAP

Minarity Interests share of nel profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against ihe
incoamie of The: group in order 1o arrive at the net ncomes attributable (o sharahoidars of the group.

Minarity Interests share |n the Share Capltal and Reserve & Surplus of the consalidated subsidiardes are dentified
and presantad n the Consofdated Balance Shest eaparateby,

Accourting  podicies’ nol  specifically referred to olherwize are consistent with the genemElly sccepted
accounting princples followad by the group

The group fodows a Marcantile Systam of Acoounting; the linancial statemants ane prepared as per historicas cos
comvention and onaccrual basisinless otherwise specified hereinafter

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statemeants m contormity with the ‘Indian GAAF requires management to make estimatas
and assumptions that may affect the repored amodnts of assets and liabifities and disclosures refating 1o contingent
iataitties as Al the date of ihe financial statemants and the reporfed amounts of incomes and expansas during the
reporting pericd. Although these estimates are based upon managemant's best knowledge of curent events and
actons, actual results could differ fram these estmates. Difterances batwesan the actual results and estimatas ame
recognized in the year in which the resufts are Enowny materalized.



(©

@

)

(

Q)

(h)

(i)

Fixed Assets

() Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes all
expenditure necessary to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

(i) Capital work-in-progress comprises advances paid to acquire fixed assets along with incidental expenses
incurred to acquire such fixed assets that are not ready for theirintended use at the reporting date.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is being provided on all tangible assets on “Straight Line Method” as per the rates and in the manner
prescribedin Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

Amortization

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the
assets will flow to enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. The Intangible assets are recorded
at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Impairment of Assets:

An asset s treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss
is charged to profit & loss account in the year in which an asset identified as impaired. The impairment loss
recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
Foreign Currency Transactions:

() Initial Recognition:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the original rate of exchange in force at the time, transactions
are affected.

(i) Conversion:
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates as on the date of transaction.

(i) Exchange Difference:
Exchange difference arising on the settlement or transactions of monetary items or on reporting date such
monetary items at rates differs from those at which they were initially recorded during the year or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expense in the year in which they arise.

Investment:

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as Current
Investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis.

Long term investments including investment in subsidiaries are carried at Cost. Cost includes any incidental costs
incurred towards acquisition of said investment. However, provision if necessary for diminution in value is made to
recognize a decline other thantemporary nature.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
revenue can bereliably measured.
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(k)

i) SaleofGoods:
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards in respect of ownership of products are
transferred by the company. Sales are recorded net of Returns, Sales tax/ Value added tax and applicable trade
discounts and allowances.

i) Software Developmentand Licensing:

Revenue is primarily derived from sale of developed software and related services and from licensing of the
software products. Software sales are recognized only on customers' acceptance of delivery.

Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fixed-price maintenance contracts are recognized
proportionately over the period in which services are rendered.

i) Interest:

Interest income is recognized on time proportionate basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.

iv) Dividend:
Dividend income from investment is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established. Dividend
from subsidiary company declared after the year end till the adoption of account by board of directors, is
accounted during the year as required by Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.

v) Others:

Other revenue (including in respect of insurance or other claims or refunds, etc.) is accounted for in the year in
which the rightto receive the paymentis established.

Expenditure:

The cost of software / hardware purchased / developed and incidental cost incurred for software development are
expensed during the year.

Cost of maintenance services for software developed is not provided for, even since in many of the related services
and licensing of software products do stipulate free maintenance as part of the contract. The maintenance obligation
are in the opinion of the management, not material in value and based on empirical experience, not expected to
crystallize in the near future and hence not provided for.

Cost of warranties is also not provided for in the context of its specific exclusion in terms with the customers.
Provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.

Inventories:

Raw Materials, works-in-progress and finished/ traded goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
Self-developed software is valued at cost of development or at net realizable value, whichever is lower.

Research & Development:

Revenue expenditure on Research & Development is expensed as and when incurred and Capital expenditure
incurred on Research & Development is added to the Cost of respective fixed assets.
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(m) Employees Benefits:

(")

(©)

®)

() ProvidentFund:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company makes monthly contribution at a specified
percentage of the covered employee's salary. The Company has no further obligation under the provident fund
plan beyond its monthly contribution.

(i) Gratuity:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on actuarial valuation made as at the balance
sheetdate.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing Costs that are aftributable to the Acquisition, Construction or Production of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Income Tax:
Tax expense for ayear comprises of Current tax and Deferred tax.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, after taking into consideration, the
applicable deductions and exemptions admissible under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
forthe year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised. If there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses under tax laws,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax resulting from timing differences which originate during the tax holiday period but are expected to
reverse after such tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing differences originate using the tax
rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. At each balance sheet date, the company
reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrealised deferred tax assets to the extent it has
become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient taxable income will be available
against which the deferred tax can be realised.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT, during the period that MAT is
permitted to be set off under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (specified period). In the year, in which the MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in the guidance
note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the
profit and loss account and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the specified period.

Segment Reporting
Segment Reporting as per Accounting Standard 17: The Company operates solely in the Information Technology

Solutions Segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which the products of the
Company are sold.
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(g} Prowigions, Contingent Liabillties and Contingent asseis:

Frovistons mvohang substantial cegres of estimaion in measwrement are recognized when fhere i & present
obligation ae & result of past evards and It & probable that thers wil be an outliow of resources, Contingant llabsities
ara not recognised bul are disclosed in the notes to eococounts, Contingent essels are neiher recogrised o
disciosad Intha linancial statemenis.

() Cash Flow Statement:

The Cash Flow Staterment |s prepared by the "Incdeact Mathod” sat out in Accounting Standard 3 on “Cash Flow
Statement” and presants the cash flows by Operating, Investing and Financing activities of the Company,

3) NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

The Subsidiary Companies Considered In Consolidated Financial Statements are

HNama of the Subsidiaries ; Er.ll'rir of Proportion of
R Secure Solutlons Limitacd Ircdle a7 18%
hioro Fstail Limited [g7u]f:1 B0 06%

(a) Contingani liabllities:

o)

<)

(g}

(e}
i

Comtingent abdlities in respect of outstanding guarantaas given by bank In favaur ol varous govemman
suthonities and othars sre as undar;

{Amount In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31,2011 March 21,2010

Guaraniees gven by banks on behalf of the 30721521 3,53,08,348
Group

Cigim against Group not acknowledged - as - 26,46.953
debts

Total 3,07,21,521 4,79,55 302

Prior penad fems incledes Expenses fIncome related o previous year not prowvded for are separately clessified
ag prior penpd expendliure f Incomes durng the current year in account

In the opinion of the Board and 1o tha Best of thelr knowiedge and badied, the value on realization of the currant

asgels, loans & advancas, deposits, In the ordinary course of business will nol be less than the value stated in
Balanca Shaat,

Balances inrespoct of some of the debtors, creditors, advances and deposits arm subject to confirmation
Duting the year, thare has been nafactoring of receivables. (Previpus Year- As, 10,20,82 480/},

Foralgn Currency Corveartibie Bonds

O 20" July, 2007 the Company lssued 150 loregn currency convertible bonds (FCCA) of & face value of USD
100 000 each aggregating USD 15.0 million. As par the terms ofthe issue, the holders have an oplion to conver
FOCR in fo equity shares &l an inilisl cormversion rate of As 312.84 per equity share al a lieed exchangs rate
zubject io certain prce adjusiment as parthe torms of ihe issue. However as a resuli of ferme of issue, the
cOMWErsian price a2 on dale is Rs 250 40 per share, Furthear under cartain conditlons, 1he Company aftar July 20,
2000 but before July 21, 2012 has an opbion for earlier redermption of the bonds, in the whole, but not in part,
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Unless previously converted or redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the Company will redeem these bonds
with a redemption premium of 7.75% (which is identical to the gross to the yield in case of redemption at
maturity) calculated on a semi-annual basis.

The FCCBs as detailed above are hybrid instruments with an option of conversion into specified number of
shares and an underlying foreign currency liability with redemption at a premium in the event of non conversion
atthe end of the period. Anumber of factors would influence the conversion decision including movementinthe
quoted price of the Company's shares, the rate of exchange, interest rates in the market, the growth in financial
performance and profitability of the Company and the performance of the industry in which the Company
operated, etc. Inthe opinion of the Company, the lesser number of conversions into equity shares is atemporary
aberration due to the current economic conditions. The Company expects that the bond holders would
continue to opt for conversion rather than redemption and consequently no premium are expected to be
payable and therefore, the same is not provided for.

For the reasons stated above, the FCCB liability in respect of 120 bonds (previous year 148 bonds) as at the year
end is continued to be considered as a non monetary liability in terms of Accounting Standard 11 (AS-11)
(Revised) “The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates” and accordingly the same is not restated at the
year end exchangerate.

(g) Provision for current tax is made taking into account the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred Tax
resulting from “Timing Difference” between book & taxable profit is accounted for using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted and subsequently enacted as on the balance sheet date. Major component of Deferred

Taxarising on account of temporary timing difference is as under:-
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2011 March 31,2010

Deferred Tax Liability

Depreciation 7,68,56,260 4,2591,557

Total 7,68,56,260 4,25,91,557

(h) During the year under review the Company has raised short term loan of Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five
Crores Only) through 'Commercial Paper' and the same is outstanding as on the date of Balance Sheet.

(I) As pertechnical evaluation done by the company, certain softwares were uneconomical to use due to changes
in technology and hence where not supposed to give future economic benefit and net book Value of these
softwares were charged off to profit & loss account during the current year valuing Rs. 24,97,94,521/-. If these
were not charged off to Profit & Loss account, the profit would have been higher by the same amount.

() Pursuantto the provisions of Sections 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, the dividend which remains
unclaimed/unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the unpaid dividend account is required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government.

The status of dividend remaining unclaimed is given hereunder:-

Year Amountin Rupees
2003-2004 51,300
2004-2005 94,425
2005-2006 4,13,082
2006-2007 80,648
2007-2008 1,19,868
2008-2009 1,01,667
2009-2010 1,21,666
Total 9,82,656

As seven years have not expired from date of transfer to the unpaid dividend account, the amount is not required
to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
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()} There ame no specific clams from aupplles undes interest on delayed payments covared under Small Scale &
Ancillary Act, 1993,

i Thecompany does not have ary dues payable 1o ary micro, small and medium enterprises a3 at ihe vaar end.
The identification of the mici, small & madium anferprises is based on managemant's knowledge aof heir
gtafug, The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the MSMED
Act 2006. Hence, disciosures, if any, retating (o amaounts unpasd as at the year and, togather with interest pasd /
peyable as required under the said act have not been given.

{m) Payments to Auditors:

(Amount In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Merch31.2011 | March 31,2010
Statuory Audit Fops 8.50.000 6,00,000
Tax Aldit Fres 2.00,000 1,560,000
Cartification Fees 1,650,000 1.60,000
Total 12,00,000 9,00,000
(n1 Expenditure in Foraign Exchange
(Amount in Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31,2011 March 31,2010
Valle ot import of Capital Goods 1,71,74,58 595 160,11 64,268
Value of Impaort of Purchasas 16,30,31 275 17, 14,47.215
Traveling Expeansas 15,58, 552 £,43,863
Bank Charges 246 882 6,75935
Imtarest Paid on FCCE Bend 31,85818 38, 76,297
Total 1,87,94,91,222 1,77,78,07, 538
le} Value of Exports
{Amount in Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the yeer ended
March 31,2011 March 31,2010
Valua of Goods Exported 1.91,60,07.923 1.3280,85,369
Total 1,91,60,07,999 1,32,80,85,359
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(p) The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been specifically hedged by a derivative instrument or

C)

n

otherwise are given below:
Particulars As at 31/03/2011 As at 31/03/2010
In Foreign Currency In Rupees In Foreign In Rupees
Currency
Debtors USD 1,80,63,085 79,89,30,248 | USD 1,38,38,763 |62,33,11,553
Advance from | USD 20202 9,11,933 - -
Customers
Creditors USD 1,67,409 75,56,849 | USD 3,65,056 1,63,89,219

Employee Benefits

Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) on Employee Benefits:- In respect of gratuity, a
defined benefit scheme (based on actuarial valuation) are given below:-

Summary of assumptions
Date of Valuation 31.03.2011
Retirement age 60 Years
Attrition Rate 2%
Future Salary Rise 6%
Rate of Discounting 8.25%
Mortality Table LIC (1994-96) Ultimate

The actuarial value of gratuity as on 31.03.2011 calculated on the above assumptions works out to Rs.
65,76,733/- and required provision regarding the same has been made in the books

Details of Capacities, Production and Stocks:

The activity of the Company is that of software development, hardware & software integration, development of IT
related security products, E-commerce and internet services. Due to the technicalities involved of the integration
between the software and the hardware, it is difficult to give the quantitative details of above items. The closing
stocks as valued and certified by the management are as under

{(Amount in Rupees)

(comprises of System Integration, Software
Product /Solution and Technical Services)

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
Value of Closing Stock 92,90,86,175 83,33,19,367
Sale of Product/ Software during the Year 5,99,76,76,249 4,59,18,09,705
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{z! Related Party Disclosures as per Accounting Standard - 18:

1. Relastad Parias:

(Il Associates

Micro Associates Conatiltancy (1) Private Limited
Micra Capitals Private Limitad
Actclan Autosmation Private Limited
Youth Promoiers Private Lenited

(I} KeyManagerial Personngl
Or P Bekhar—Chairman & Managing Director

Mz Jayanthi 5 - Executive Director

2 Tranzactions belween ihe Company and related paries and the stalus of outstanding balances as al

March 31, 2011

{Amount in Rupees)
Particulars Assoclates Key Managerial Personnel

201011 _[ 2008-10 201011 2009-10
Nature of Transaction:
Racaipt againet Share
Warrart 5,75.00,000 28732350 1.03,71.780 69,714,500
Forfaidura of Corvertibe
Warranis 1h78.51,600
Advance Receved - - - 5,85.500
Loans Taken from Direcior 5, 83,000
|.oans Hepakd 1o Direchor - - - 5,83.000
Frefarantial lasme of
E s 7 63.36,080 7.45,76,600 1,38,28.000 -
Culstanding Balances:
Deposit Outstanding . 4,71 83,235 -
Shara Warrant Deposit 106,468,330 2497 32350 3457250 -
Loan from Director H,83,000 -
Mm HEEEI'-EH = = 5|m|5m 5|B‘5'l-ml}

ity Segment Infarmation:

il Business Segment; The Company is primanty angeged in fhe business ol Information Technology Solutions

Segment.

i} Geographical Segment: The secondary reporting segment for the Company |8 gecgraphical segmentason
losaton of customers, which are as foliows



(Amount in Rupees)

Information for Secondary Segments:

customers (net) (3,26,37,24,346) | (1,32,80,85,359) -
(including sale

Particulars Domestic Exporis Unallocated Total
Revenues from 4,08,16,68,250 1,91,60,07,999 - 5,99,76,76,249
external

(4,59,18,09,705)

of services)
Segment 3,22,45,88,715 3,25,00,74,460 2,13,21,63,700 8,60,68,26,875
Assets (2,03,27,25,401) | (2,90,59,37,728) (1,05,80,33,357) (6,47,40,02,646)

Figure in brackets are for the previous year

(u) Earnings Per Share (EPS) Accounting Standard 20:

The group reports basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on
Earnings Per Share. Basic EPS is computed by the net profit or loss for the year by the weighted average no of

equity shares outstanding during the year.

Basis of calculation of Basic and Diluted earning per Equity share is as under:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2011 March 31,2010

Profit After Tax (Rs. in Lacs) 7,764.94 8,997.85

Weighted average number of Equity Shares

- Basic 1,34,55,931 1,09,86,631

- Diluted 1,62,60,850 1,48,32,087

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Earning per Share (Rs.)

- Basic 57.71 81.90

- Diluted 47.88 60.84

(v) Previousyear comparatives:

Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever required to confirm to this year’s

classification

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For KM Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants

KAMAL AGRAWAL
Partner
Membership No. 058748
Firm Reg.No. 309107E
Ms SUDIPTA V.
Navi Mumbai, 24" May, 2011 Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr.P.SEKHAR
Chairman & Managing Director

Ms JAYANTHI S.
Executive Director
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